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INFORMATION SUMMARY 

Dexia Crediop S.p.A. 
Share Capital €450,210,000 fully paid
Company Register Rome no. 04945821009
Register of Banks no. 5288
Parent Bank of the Dexia Crediop Banking Group
Registered as a Banking Groups
Member of the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund
Company subject to the activity of direction and coordination of Dexia Crèdit Local. 

Independent Auditors
Mazars & Guérard S.p.A.
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THE COMPANY

About us
Dexia Crediop is a public sector and project financing bank, which combines the international expertise of
the Dexia Group with a tradition and experience accumulated in nearly 90 years. It was established with the
aim of directing Italian national savings towards financing public works and infrastructures to further the
country’s development and has grown to become market leader in this Sector. 
Over time, the Bank has developed an excellent approach to the market with a view to providing customers
with effective support, while working closely with its shareholders. In addition to Dexia/Dexia Crédit Local,
the parent bank, some of Italy’s leading co-operative banks are also shareholders:  Banca Popolare di Milano,
Banco Popolare, Em. Ro. Popolare S.p.A. (Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna).
With assets in excess of 51.0 billion euro, Dexia Crediop is the point of reference for territorial agencies, the
principal public administration offices and the largest providers of public services, offering them a vast range
of financial services: the financing of major public works and infrastructures, the issue of bonds by territorial
agencies, international bonds, financial engineering and structured finance, securitisation, project financing,
consultancy and support for privatisations and restructuring, the dynamic management of debt, as well as
asset management.
Transparency and trust lie at the heart of Dexia Crediop’s philosophy. Its particular attention to prudence and
risk management has been recognised by the international economic and financial community. In fact, Dexia
Crediop has one of the highest credit ratings among Italy's banks: Aa2 (Moody’s), AA- (Standard & Poor’s)
and AA (Fitch Ratings).
Dexia Crediop's dealings with customers have always been characterised by its emphasis on trust, transparency
and the long term, coupled with a responsible approach to matters of public utility that has satisfied and
anticipated the growing demand for innovative financial solutions and financial risk management, bearing
in mind the budgetary, regulatory and institutional constraints that are typical of the public sector.
On the financial front, the Bank seeks to ensure the quality and added-value of its products and services,
operating on financial markets through the following different business lines: sales, origination, syndication
& portfolio, long-term funding, cash management, public finance market engineering, ALM short term and
ALM long term.
Synergies with the Group enable Dexia Crediop to extend and constantly update the range of products and
services offered to Italian customers, with a strong commitment to the sector of major infrastructures and
sustainable development, which translates into a commitment to take action that is socially responsible, based
on social, environmental and ethical standards.

The Dexia Group
Dexia is a European bank and world leader in financial services for the local public sector. Thanks to its market
capitalisation worth 20.3 billion euros and with over 35,000 employees, it is among the top fifteen banking groups
in the Eurozone and on 31 December 2007 it was present in over 37 countries.

An unparalleled model in the banking sector
The two main pillars
Dexia's future rests on two main pillars: its retail banking business in Europe and its leadership on the world
stage in the sector of public sector financing and project financing.
Dexia intends to develop its retail banking services, which have so far been offered to the traditional markets
in Belgium, Luxemburg, Slovakia and Turkey, in order to become one of the leading European actors in this



sector, while at the same time reinforcing its worldwide leadership in public sector financing and project financing,
through a programme of geographical expansion.
Dexia is certain of its own potential and of having the capacity, therefore, to achieve extremely significant
operational and financial results, which includes reaching one of the objectives announced by the Group in
September 2006, i.e. an increase in share dividends of at least 10%.

Financial stability
Dexia’s programmes for growth are ambitious but prudent, in line with the philosophy of the Bank on the matter
of risk management and the maintenance of financial stability. The Group meets the highest standards when it
comes to underwriting, risk management, operational discipline and product performance.
Dexia can boast some of the highest ratings in the banking sector and the Group’s main companies – Dexia Crédit
Local, Dexia Bank and Dexia BIL – have earned  AA/Aaa/AA+ ratings. Three of Dexia’s European subsidiaries issue
bonds, guaranteed with triple A ratings, while the subsidiary FSA, one of the leading world financial assurance
companies, has recently achieved triple A status.

Long-term commitment and the Group’s values
Dexia’s long-term commitment is to ensure its clients excellent levels of service, which are reliable and conscious
of their needs, as well as to guarantee harmonious company development, the protection of the environment and
sustainable growth. The motto “short term has no future” sums up Dexia’s specific company philosophy, providing
an excellent description of the Group’s approach, which rests on solid foundations for the management of its own
business lines.
In achieving its own objectives and making its business choices, Dexia is driven:
by its Ambition to constantly enhance its business and financial performance, without neglecting its distinguishing
characteristics relating to social values and environmental protection;
by its Respect for all parties concerned, including customers, shareholders, employees, suppliers and others;
by its Passion for innovation, which allows it to pursue it objectives, while making a contribution towards
social development.

Dexia’s main lines of business
Financial services for the public sector, project financing and credit enhancement
Over the last ten years Dexia has become world leader in public sector financing and project financing and now
operates in over thirty countries including France, Belgium, Italy, North America, Mexico, Germany, Spain,
United Kingdom, Scandinavia, Switzerland, Austria, Slovakia, Poland, Romania, Czech Republic Australia, Israel,
Bulgaria, Hungary and Japan.
Dexia responds to the financing needs of local authorities and other government agencies through direct loans,
underwritten lending, liquidity guarantees and the purchasing of their securities
The Bank offers its customers a complete range of products including structured loans and borrowing management,
and uses its know-how in project financing operations throughout the world, in compliance with its strategies
based on rigorous selection criteria in line with the Group’s risk management standards. Dexia concentrates its
business in the transport sector, the environment and other essential infrastructures as well as in the field of
renewable energy supply. The Group finances its institutional investors in countries where it operates as a retail
bank, such as in Belgium, Luxemburg, Turkey and Slovakia.
Through its American subsidiary, Financial Security Assurance (FSA), Dexia ensures the enhancement of
the credit quality of its municipal bonds, infrastructure financing projects and asset-backed securities (financial
assets issued against loan securitisation operations). The financial assurance company, FSA, now occupies a
front-stage position in the assurance market for municipal bonds in the United States.
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Retail financial services
Dexia is one of the leading retail banks in Europe and offers a vast range of banking and insurance services to
over six million customers - including private individuals and small and medium-sized enterprises - in Belgium,
Luxemburg, Slovakia and Turkey.
It is one of the leading banks in the sector in Belgium and Luxemburg, while in Slovakia it has the role of regional
bank. Dexia’s DenizBank is in sixth position among private banks in Turkey. Dexia Insurance Services, on the
other hand, provides all kinds of insurance products in the field of life and non-life insurance, via the Group’s
retail outlets in Belgium, Luxemburg and France.
In addition, Dexia offers private banking services through numerous structures, including joint-ventures, mainly
in Belgium, Luxemburg, France, Spain, Switzerland and Denmark.

Treasury Management and the Financial Markets
Dexia's main activities allow it to occupy an extremely important position on capital markets, where Dexia
finances and manages its own assets, developing sophisticated investment products and solutions for its customers
in various lines of business. The Treasury Management and Financial Market segment generates significant
profits as well as providing funding support for the entire Group.

Asset management
Dexia Asset Management now ranks among the leading asset management companies in Europe as regards the
level of managed assets and for the range of investment instruments it offers. These include traditional and
alternative investment funds and socially responsible investments, a sector in which Dexia is leader in Europe.
Dexia is also specialised in the management of investment funds and asset management for institutional and private
customers.
Dexia Asset Management has offices in Brussels, Luxemburg, Paris and Sydney and maintains a close relationship with
its customers locally, throughout Europe, the Middle East and Australia.

Investor services
RBC Dexia Investor Services was founded in 2006 in a joint-venture with the Royal Bank of Canada to offer
professional custodian services, fund and pension fund management, and services to shareholders for international
institutional agencies. The Company is now one of the top ten custodian banks in the world and does business
in fifteen countries, spread over four continents.

Dexia’s main summary details as at 31 December 2007
Balance sheet Total EUR 604.6 billion

Net profit - Group quota EUR 2,533 million

Earnings per share* EUR 2.18

Tier 1 ratio (5) - ratio between
the core equity capital
and the total capital requirement 9.1%

Return on own equity 17.8%

Operating expenses / net banking
income or operational efficiency index 55.6%
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MESSAGES FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Message from the Chairman

The Dexia Crediop Financial Statements for 2007 are the first to carry my signature.
I was elected as Chairman of this Bank at the last Shareholders’ Meeting, following
the unexpected and premature loss of Mauro Cicchinè, a banker for whom I held
great esteem and affection. The interim period was ensured by Bruno Deletré in
competent and refined manner. My sincere thanks go to him for proposing my
candidature, which was also favoured by my long-standing friendship with
Antonio Pedone, the Bank’s Honorary Chairman. My gratitude also goes, of course,
to the Managing Director Marc Brugière Garde, who joined the other Directors in
facilitating in every possible way my integration into a lively, developing environment
full of innovatory spirit.

The Dexia Group is well known on the world stage with its dual commitment as a specialized intermediary in
financing public authorities, particularly district administrative authorities in France and Italy, and as a universal
bank, as in Belgium and Turkey, capable of providing its clientele with a vast selection of products or banking
services. The spirit that characterises the Company, however, is unitary and finds expression through its single
brand name, Dexia, which will allow the quality of our services and the innovative nature of our products to be
recognised in every country, no matter what company name is used to identify the business there. The choice
of values, like respect, ambition and passion will contribute towards giving operational substance to the brand,
as a concise instrument of identification.

In 2007 there was a 1.5% increase in GDP in Italy, which was good though not particularly sustained, especially
if compared with growth in the other countries in the Eurozone. The Italian economy is still failing to express
the potential it definitely holds and which during the 50s and 60s allowed Italy to reduce the differences that
existed with other important European countries as regards the per capita income. The weight of accumulated
public borrowing is certainly a factor which is holding us back in addition to the excessively slow progress in
updating public administrative procedures and culture and in particular its   infrastructure: railways, roads,
incinerators, gasification plants and so on continue to be the subject of conferences and bitter debate, rarely the
subject of uncontested operational decisions. The government that will emerge from the coming elections hopes
to set a series of priorities and to implement them within the specified timescales. It is absolutely essential for
the future of our young generation, our relations with Europe and our position in the world.

The great debate in the newspapers on the use of derivatives in financing local authorities and in the
management of their debt has, in a way of speaking, been an obstacle to Local Government business-style
initiative. Unlike the private sector where contractual freedom is not subject to constraints, the use of
derivatives in Local Finance has been regulated by the Ministry of Economy and Finance, which has
limited it to merely eight types and subjected it to increasing disclosures towards the Central Authorities.
Since the topic was again reviewed in the last Finance Bill, there are now a number of provisions being
issued aimed at making the procedures even more transparent and the public interest better protected.
If Dexia Crediop’s operating results are lower than last year’s due to a reduction in the use of loans by
local authorities, they have improved for the banking Group which it belongs to due to a more efficient
allocation of assets.
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Lastly, Dexia Crediop has continued in its banking mission which recognises a sense of social responsibility for
the environment and culture. With regard to the first profile there has been a process of careful self-assessment,
as required to obtain confirmation of EMAS certification. On the cultural front I would like to highlight the
publication of the book “Casaluce: Un ciclo trecentesco in terra angioina”. It is a work which traces the dramatic
history of some neglected late-Giottesque masterpieces, which were snatched from their natural home, and are
now partly on display at the Castel Nuovo and Santa Maria ad Nives, and partly kept in storage in the San
Martino Monastery. It is our hope that this publishing initiative will help to provide a definitive and dignified
home to such an important collection of art work, in a land which is tormented by neglect and decay. In
conclusion, a decision has been made to revitalise the Associazione Alberto Beneduce, inviting Antonio Pedone
to become Chairman; the first resolution taken was the creation of an award for academic research on the use
of derivatives by local authorities.

I would like to express my sincere best wishes to all stakeholders, regional and local authorities, customers,
suppliers, and above all to those who work together with us.

Mario Sarcinelli
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Message from the Managing Director

First of all, I would like to take this opportunity to remind you that 2007 was the first
financial year to be completed under the Chairmanship of Mario Sarcinelli, who
last April accepted responsibility for chairing the Bank’s Board of Directors. Since
then not a day has gone by without him making some precious contribution to our
activities based on the culture and experience which has made him a well-known
and respected figure.

Dexia Crediop’s set of results for 2007 were satisfactory in the main, especially if
analysed in the light of the negative conditions in the reference market.
Consolidated net profits reached 115.8 million Euro, showing a strong increase
(+25%) over the 92.7 million from the previous year.

In 2007 the Italian local public sector registered a considerable reduction in net recourse to borrowing -
mainly as a result of the objectives set by the internal Pact of Stability - and in many cases in investments. In
an environment where the loan and bonded loan market has registered significant reductions in new flows,
the Bank managed to maintain its high market share.

This difficult situation provided the opportunity of further appreciating the strategic choices made by the
Bank in recent years, aimed at the development and innovation in financial services to local and territorial
authorities and to the public sector in general. This will also provide us with an additional opportunity in the
future of developing and defending Dexia Crediop’s potential for creating wealth.

The year 2007 was a particularly favourable year for the Bank’s business activities in the sector of infrastructures
built or managed by private entities, such as companies which provide public services in the energy and
environment sectors. 
In addition, there was further considerable consolidation of the Bank’s leading role in business related to
financing public works and infrastructures, in principal corporate issues, as well as in project finance and
structured financing operations. 
Operations in the financial markets allowed the Bank to reach 9th place in the special league table of
bookrunners of banking issues in the domestic market. 
Dexia Crediop achieved these results by maintaining and further implementing the procedures and measures
aimed at ensuring its customers a correct balance between the use of traditional financial instruments and a
judicious recourse to innovative financing solutions. Dexia Crediop has traditionally dedicated, and will
continue to dedicate, significant attention to the compliance of its activities and presence in the market-place,
both as an essential instrument for protecting the various stakeholders and as a determining factor in its
marketing success.
The development of the Bank’s mission within the Dexia Group to safeguard the significant Italian market,
and the increasing attention, aroused in the opinion of the public and operators regarding environmental
questions and the realization of investments aimed at sustainable development, mean that we can look at the
current financial year with confidence, encouraged by the knowledge that the Company’s principal resources
are the professionalism and motivation of our employees together with the commitment and entrepreneurial
spirit with which they work.  

Marc Brugière Garde
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

Honorary Chairman
Antonio Pedone

Board of Directors*

Mario Sarcinelli Chairman
Bruno Deletré Deputy Chairman
Marc Brugière Garde CEO - Chief Executive Officer
Gérard Bayol Director
Guido Leoni Director
Franco Nale Director
Alain Delouis Director
Graziano Tarantini Director

Board of Statutory Auditors
Ezio Maria Simonelli Chairman
Pierre Paul Destefanis
Vincenzo Ciruzzi

OTHER COMMITTEES 

Management Committee*

Marc Brugière Garde 
Riccardo Massa
Jean Bourrelly
Stefano Catalano

* On the date the Report on Operations
was approved by the Board of Directors
(12 March 2008).

From left to right
Seated: Marc Brugière Garde and Mario Sarcinelli.
Standing: Stefano Catalano, Jean Bourrelly and Riccardo Massa.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

Loans disbursed for Public and Structured Financing
(millions of euro)

Business in 2007 in terms of disbursement flows was above
5 billion euro, though down on the previous year due to
market trends.

The figure includes every technical form of loan
provided during 2007.

Loans
(millions of euro)

The increase in the overall loan figure (+9%) is due, in
particular, to the increase in loans to banks (+57%)
compared to substantial stability in financial assets
available for sale and customer loan and advances.
Customer loans and advances and financial assets
available for sale represent 41% and 31% of total loans.

The figure includes every technical form of loan existing
as at 31 December  2007.

Breakdown of loans
The composition of the loans by counterparty shows a
prevalence of loans to governments and public authorities
(61%).

The figure includes every technical form of funding
existing as at 31 December  2007.

Breakdown of funding
The breakdown of funding highlights the important
contribution made by securities in circulation (39%).

The figure includes every technical form of funding
existing as at 31 December  2007.
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ROE
The ROE for 2007 amounts to 8.3% and suffers from
the reduction in net income set against an increase in
shareholders’ equity.

Return on Equity is calculated as the ratio between net
profits for the year and shareholders’ equity at the end
of the period, excluding profits in formation. This
indicator expresses the profitability of shareholders’
equity.

Cost to income
The Cost to Income ratio in 2007 stands at 29.9%, an
increase over 2006 owing to a reduction in banking
income set against a reduction in costs.

The Cost to Income ratio is the ratio between the
operating expenses (administrative expenses and
depreciation and amortisations) and net banking
income. This indicator is a measure of productivity
expressed as a percentage of the margin absorbed by
operating expenses.

EPS
The EPS for 2007 is 0.49 euro per share and suffers from the
reduction in net profit.

Earnings per Share is the ratio between net profit and
the number of shares that make up the share capital.

Non-performing loans / net loans
The proportion of non-performing loans net of any
adjustments continues to remain at values around
zero.

The proportion of non-performing loans is calculated
as the ratio between net non-performing loans and the
total loan figure. This indicator expresses the level of
risk for the loan portfolio.

ROA
The ROA for 2007 amounts to 0.17% and suffers from the
reduction in net income set against an increase in overall
assets of 10%.

Return on Assets is calculated as the ratio between net
income and the total assets recorded in the balance sheet.
This indicator expresses the profitability of the total
capital invested.
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ORGANISATION CHART* 
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Communication
Daniela CONDÒ

General Secretary
and Legal Department
Alberto MARI

Public & Project Finance 
Riccardo MASSA
(Deputy General Manager)

Public Finance
Thomas DUVACHER

Innovation & Financial
Engineering
Anselmo BARONI

Marketing Network
Massimo GIULIMONDI

Marketing Policies
Fabio VITTORINI

Corporate & Structured Finance
Fabrizio PAGANI

Management
of Equity Investments
Nicola LA MORGIA
(ad interim)

Human Resources
Daniela  POZZALI

Internal Auditing
Giuseppe NUSINER

Compliance
Claudio  COLA

Administration
Jean BOURRELLY
(Manager)

Accountin & Management
Control
Viviana ASCANI

Back Office
Pietro CONTENTI

IT & Logistic
Pasquale TEDESCO

Risk Management
Vittorio LIMAURO

CEO - Chief Executive Officer 
Marc BRUGIÈRE GARDE

Finance
Stefano CATALANO
(Manager)

Debt & Capital Markets
Daniele ALBARIN
(Deputy Manager)

Treasury & Liquidity
Marcello SATULLI

Market Engineering
Samir BELARBI

* On the date the financial statements were approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting (24 April 2008).
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THE DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP  

Dexia Crediop S.p.A.
Rome - Via Venti Settembre, 30 (00187)
Tel. + 39 (0)6 4771.1 Fax + 39 (0)6 4771.5952
Website: www.dexia-crediop.it 

Branches: 
Turin - Via S. Francesco d’Assisi, 22
Milan - Via Messina, 38
Bologna - Galleria Ugo Bassi, 1
Naples - Centro Direzionale, Isola E/5 

DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l.  
Rome - Via Venti Settembre, 30 

Crediop Overseas Bank Limited
Grand Cayman - Cayman Islands 

Dexia Crediop Ireland Unlimited
Dublin - 6 George’s Dock, IFSC, Dublin 1 (Ireland)

OTHER DEXIA GROUP COMPANIES IN ITALY  

RBC DEXIA INVESTOR  SERVICES ITALIA S.p.A.
Milan - Via Messina, 38 

DEXIA ASSET MANAGEMENT S.A. ITALIAN BRANCH
Milan - Corso Italia, 1
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PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A.   

Subsidiaries
DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l. 100%
Crediop Overseas Bank Limited 100%
Dexia Crediop Ireland 99.99% 

Other equity investments
Istituto per il Credito Sportivo 21.62%
European Investment Fund 0.25%
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS

RE-CLASSIFIED BALANCE SHEET 
Euro

ASSETS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Cash and cash equivalents 2,685 2,773 -3.2

20. Financial assets held for trading 963,448,688 1,298,220,641 -25.8

40. Financial assets available for sale 14,543,443,269 15,396,863,358 -5.5

50. Financial assets held to maturity 477,812,831 525,580,362 -9.1

60. Due from banks 13,075,944,747 8,351,468,742 56.6

70. Due from customers 19,524,068,314 19,546,713,031 -0.1

80. Hedging derivatives 1,512,260,934 1,154,982,459 30.9

90. Fair value adjustment of financial assets 
in hedged potfolios (+/-) (85,937) 0 

100. Equity investments 750,015,000 50,015,000 1,399.6

110. Property, plant and equipment 44,811,297 44,642,267 0.4

120. Intangible assets 1,951,735 2,034,245 -4.1

of which:

- goodwill 0 0 

130. Tax assets 10,828,790 1,186,633 812.6

a) current 10,828,790 1,186,633 812.6

150. Other assets 118,746,454 44,963,141 164.1

Total assets 51,023,248,807 46,416,672,652 9.9

Euro

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Due to banks 24,458,717,063 19,565,161,023 25.0

20. Due to customers 4,629,871,864 3,077,816,433 50.4

30. Securities in issue 18,362,365,438 19,324,586,265 -5.0

40. Financial liabilities for trading 959,263,930 1,251,698,205 -23.4

60. Hedging derivatives 1,278,475,865 1,897,775,823 -32.6

80. Tax liabilities 162,296,963 173,491,704 -6.5

a) current 2,481,103 1,503,392 65.0

b) deferred 159,815,860 171,988,312 -7.1

100. Other liabilities 46,989,654 41,145,964 14.2

110. Provision for severance indemnities 4,413,616 5,762,333 -23.4

120. Provisions for risks and charges 1,421,600 2,881,777 -50.7

a) provision for retirement and similar benefits 258,439 1,266,328 -79.6

b) other provisions 1,163,161 1,615,449 -28.0

130. Valuation reserves  129,593,015 121,737,481 6.5

160. Reserves 453,800,644 411,541,962 10.3

180. Share capital 450,210,000 450,210,000 0.0

200. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 85,829,155 92,863,682 -7.6

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 51,023,248,807 46,416,672,652 9.9
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RE-CLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT
Euro

ITEMS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Interest and similar income 2,190,277,227 1,578,386,397 38.8

20. Interest and similar expenses (2,058,498,278) (1,429,419,697) 44.0

30. Net interest income 131,778,949 148,966,700 -11.5

40. Fee and commission income 11,446,520 10,795,864 6.0

50. Fee and commission expense (3,348,085) (2,985,907) 12.1

60. Net fee and commission income 8,098,435 7,809,957 3.7

70. Dividend and similar income 4,737,194 7,306,401 -35.2

80. Net trading gains (losses) 5,938,662 27,862,100 -78.7

90. Net hedging gains (losses) 682,087 (1,587,151) -143.0

100. Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: (11,050,995) 11,048,659 -200.0

a) loans 5,596,146 5,084,401 10.1

b) financial assets available for sale (21,914,108) 3,323,301 -759.4

d) financial liabilities  5,266,967 2,640,957 99.4

120. Net interest and other banking income 140,184,332 201,406,666 -30.4

130. Net adjustments for impairment of: 985,382 (5,139,149) -119.2

a) loans 985,382 (5,139,149) -119.2

140. Net income from financial activities 141,169,714 196,267,517 -28.1

150. Administrative expenses: (39,105,169) (42,509,026) -8.0

a) personnel expenses (29,643,133) (27,854,605) 6.4

b) other administrative expenses (9,462,036) (14,654,421) -35.4

160. Net provisions for risks and charges (166,727) (147,327) 13.2

170. Net adjustments on tangible assets (815,437) (825,293) -1.2

180. Net adjustments on intangible assets (2,013,552) (2,159,557) -6.8

190. Other operating expenses/income 433,799 407,225 6.5

200. Operating costs (41,667,086) (45,233,978) -7.9

250. Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax 99,502,628 151,033,539 -34.1

260. Income taxes from continuing operations (13,673,473) (58,169,857) -76.5

270. Profit (Loss) from continuing operations after tax 85,829,155 92,863,682 -7.6

290. Profit (Loss) for the period 85,829,155 92,863,682 -7.6
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INTRODUCTION: OUR CUSTOMERS
As a bank specialising in financial services for the public sector, Dexia Crediop – in line with its traditions and
the Dexia Group’s mission in the world – includes among its customers government authorities, other central
and local government authorities, territorial authorities, and companies in the infrastructure sector and public
utilities. Dexia Crediop arranges access for its customers to the capital markets, operations involving financial
engineering, structured finance, project financing, dynamic debt and liquidity and asset management; it also
provides advice and assistance in processes of privatisation and restructuring.
In line with the Bank’s mission, the Dexia Crediop’s website (www.dexia-crediop.it) is entirely dedicated to
public sector financing and project financing. It was created as a tool for informing customers about its
operations, its products and themes concerning sustainable development and now includes documentation
relating to Domestic Bond Issues, for the benefit of investors. The site provides a channel of communication for
research work produced by the Bank and has a number of sections which are exclusively aimed at customers,
such as on-line financial services and information concerning loan transactions. 
During 2007 the website’s technological architecture and graphics were completely renewed and registered
a significant increase in use, providing particularly positive spin-offs in terms of general website visibility and
the building of visitor/customer loyalty. 

THE BANK FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
In 2007 Dexia Crediop implemented its commitment to sustainable development and corporate social
responsibility in line with the Bank’s Environmental and Sustainability Policy, officially approved in 2004, and
with the international commitments which the Dexia Group has assumed: UNEP, Global Compact and
Equator Principles.
The commitment in favour of the environment has led to the renewal of the ISO1401 certification and the
(previously obtained) registration with EMAS. In 2007, it included concentrated efforts on the theme of
reducing emissions of climate-effecting gases, in line with the Group’s strategy, which has put the struggle
against climate change at the heart of its environmental program.
This objective was pursued by the Bank not only with reference to the environmental management of
its own offices, which receive energy supplies exclusively through the Consorzio ABI Energia, thereby
ensuring that all the electricity comes from an entirely renewable source, but also and, in particular, favouring
the realization of investments and projects aimed at the production of renewable energy, an essential for
achieving emission reductions of “greenhouse” gases, which are the prime culprit of climate change.
During 2007, in fact, Dexia Crediop was Mandated Lead Arranger of the first project finance in Italy for the
realization of photovoltaic systems (which used the mechanism of “energy credits”) as well as organising and
taking part in further schemes for the creation of wind farms.
The objective of contributing to sustainable development in Italy through its own loan and financing policies
was also well documented in 2007 with the commitment of Dexia Crediop in other crucial areas of social concern.
Public transport is particularly worth mentioning here, with particular reference to the project finance relating
to the public/private partnership for the construction of Line 5 of the Milan Metropolitana. For this project
the Bank received a prestigious award (Project Finance Magazine Deal of the Year 2007: European Transport
Light Rail).
Lastly, there was another important activity aimed at encouraging and spreading a sustainable development
culture among all the Bank’s interlocutors, including employees, suppliers and customers. 
Within this context, a particularly significant initiative has been the “Dexia Commission on Local Authorities
and Sustainable Development”, launched in 2005. In 2006 and 2007 they conducted research  on the theme
Ecosistema Urbano Europa in collaboration with two environmental entities (Legambiente and the Istituto di
Ricerca Ambiente Italia), the results of which were also distributed to the public. This research involved a



DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

REPORT ON OPERATIONS

kind of environmental benchmarking throughout Europe, referring to 32 cities in 17 different countries,
analysed on the basis of 25 environmental and social performance indicators. It earned the patronage of
numerous regional and international associations from cities committed to sustainability and aroused
considerable interest among the actors involved in local sustainable development.

LOANS AND FINANCIAL SERVICES FOR THE PUBLIC SECTOR 
The general situation
In 2007, the Italian local public sector registered a considerable reduction in net recourse to borrowing - mainly
as a result of the objectives imposed on territorial authorities by the internal Stability Pact - and in many cases
a reduction in investments. It is common knowledge that the role played in Italy by local authorities in the area
of investments is a very significant one and well above the European average. This retreat had quite an effect on
Dexia Crediop’s business operations, as well as on those of all the other banking and non-banking actors
within this business sector, when they saw the contraction in the size of the reference market in relation to new
flows. As is explained in greater detail elsewhere in this Report, debt management activities also suffered
unfavourable conditions, though for other reasons. On the contrary, the market was particularly favourable in
2007 to the Bank’s business activities in the sector of infrastructures built or managed by private entities, such
as companies operating in the public services, energy, environmental and telecommunications sectors.
Naturally the Bank has maintained and reinforced the procedures and measures aimed at ensuring its customers
a correct balance between the use of traditional financial instruments and a judicious recourse to innovative
financing solutions. Within this context the Bank’s traditional attention towards the compliance of its activities
remains an essential point of merit in its marketing success.

Business in the public financing sector 
As already mentioned, in 2007 the reference market, consisting of internal and international mortgage loans and
bonded loans, registered an overall reduction on the previous year (-50%) due to the considerable contraction
in the number of internal and international issues made by local and territorial authorities, which was not
offset, however, by the increase recorded in recourse to more traditional loans in 2007, sometimes with very long
repayment periods.
Dexia Crediop’s share in the overall mortgage loan and bonded loan market (excluding securitisations) remained
stable compared to last year at 39%. 
In particular, in the mortgage loan market, Dexia Crediop registered a 40% share, up 31% over 2006. 

Debt  Management 
Debt management was a significant feature of business in 2007, particularly oriented towards the re-negotiation
of liabilities. Recourse to the use of derivatives also comes within the field of debt management strategies. As is
common knowledge, access to such instruments for Italian territorial authorities is governed in Italy by a
particularly elaborate regulatory procedure, which is unparalleled elsewhere in Europe.
In the second half of 2007, recourse to the use of derivatives by territorial authorities became the subject of an
intense media campaign, which led to a general contraction in business in this segment.
Despite this, Dexia Crediop achieved satisfactory levels in flow business, thanks to its long-standing, consolidated
and prudent approach, aimed at ensuring compliance with the applicable rules and regulations and, in particular,
at promoting solutions that meet the needs of authorities, guaranteeing transparency and careful consideration
of all the transaction characteristics. 

Securitisation 
The Italian securitisation market in 2007 failed to confirm its position among the first five in the EMEA zone
(Europe, Middle East and Africa), suffering in the second half of the year from a slowdown in issues, which
prejudiced its performance in terms of volume. 
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The number of public securitisation transactions in Italy stood at about 20 with a countervalue of just above
33 billion euro. Only 3 of these were in the public sector (relating to securitisations of health service credits)
representing less than 8% of the total and showing a net reduction over 2006.
Dexia Crediop played a significant role in this specific segment of the market as joint lead manager or investor
in transactions, which represent an overall figure of over 80% of transactions with public ratings.
The securitisation transaction on real estate belonging to Venice City Council was successfully completed in
December 2007 and saw the participation of Dexia in the capacity of arranger and investor. Thanks to
favourable market conditions and the high quality of the real estate, the sale was completed earlier than
anticipated in the initial business plan, allowing the Municipal authorities to receive a large gain.
Lastly, there are two important new aspects worth noting in the sector of public asset securitisations. 
The first relates to the segment of the ABS on health service credits, which was characterised by a significant level
of legislative changes, which considerably modified its structure. The 2007 Finance Act (and the Finance
Ministry Memorandum implementing it) stated that commercial debt restructuring operations (including
health service debt) must have maturities of less than twelve months. As a consequence the three ABS health
service credit restructuring transactions were already supported in 2007 by short-term loan restructuring
transactions with non-public placement.
The second aspect is that, on the basis of the latest guidelines issued by Eurostat (summer 2007), securitisation
transactions in the public sector are to be calculated within public debt, when they provide for the payment of
an initial settlement sum and, only after the completion of the transaction, a further part of the settlement sum
(i.e. the deferred price), as normally happens with securitisation transactions involving public real estate.

Corporate and Structured Finance 
Dexia Crediop had a good year in 2007 as regards the Corporate and Structured Finance sector. After a difficult year in
2006, caused by a slackened infrastructure market due to political and administrative problems, business in 2007,
despite the continuation of certain as yet unsolved bureaucratic problems, was intense and highly successful in
production terms (new volumes of over 1.5 billion euro) and also in terms of the role of leader played by Dexia Crediop.

Corporate 
Corporate finance activities mostly related to companies predominantly under public control, operating in the
sector of local public services such as energy, water, refuse disposal and transport. Dexia Crediop considers these
companies to be strategically important, also in relation to the principles underlying the Bank's operations and
in particular sustainable development, a preference for the long-term and public interest. Loans and
medium/long-term bonds were underwritten in favour of extremely creditworthy counterparties including
Hera S.p.A., Asm Brescia S.p.A., IRIDE S.p.A. and Acegas S.p.A..
Corporate finance activities also involved leading private-sector companies operating in sectors of prime
interest for the Dexia Group (namely infrastructures, energy, environment and telecommunications). Dexia
Crediop also played an important part in the organisation of an international issue for Terna S.p.A. and in the
underwriting syndicate of a retail bond issued by ENEL S.p.A..

Structured Finance and Consultancy 
As regards project finance, certain important results were achieved in all sectors of Dexia Crediop’s business
activities, which contributed towards the Dexia Group’s overall result helping it to reach 3rd place in the
world in the Thomson Financial’s Finance League Tables for 2007.
In the energy sector, Dexia Crediop continued to work intensively, especially in the field of  electricity generation
using renewable sources (3 new projects financed in the wind-power sector). In addition, Dexia Crediop has
also organised and financed the first project finance in Italy in the solar energy sector (Solar Ventures).
Various roles have also been undertaken in the organisation of new wind-power and photovoltaic projects
which should be completed during 2008.
Dexia Crediop obtained the role of underwriter in the 35 billion euro operation in favour of Enel S.p.A. within
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the scope of the purchase of the Spanish utility, Endesa.
Significant work has also been done in the infrastructure sector, where Dexia Crediop has had the role of Mandated
Lead Arranger in two important project finances: the first for the construction and running of Line 5 of the Milan
Metropolitana (a project, which received a prestigious award from Euromoney - European Transport Light Rail Deal
of the Year 2007) and the second for the construction and management of the Hospital in Legnano.
On a commercial level, it is important to remember the consultancy and financial organisation  assignments
given to Dexia Crediop in various infrastructural projects, which will be financed between 2008 and 2009. These
include the tender for the authorisation to build and manage the Cispadana motorway, the loan in favour of
IRISACQUA (water sector near Gorizia) and the loan for the “Strada dei Parchi” (stretch of motorway between
Rome and L’Aquila).

Consultancy 
In the consultancy sector, Dexia Crediop concentrated on a small number of highly important strategic-
commercial assignments. One of these was the assistance provided to Milan City Council for the sale of
shareholdings in various motorway companies.

FUNDING AND ACTIVITIES IN THE FINANCIAL MARKETS  
Funding activities
Transactions completed during the year (numbering 46) raised a total nominal capital of 2,734 million euro.
As in the recent past, abundant use was made of structured bonds.
In accordance with Italian law no. 262/2005, Dexia Crediop proceeded in 2007 with the update to its prospectus
regarding domestic issues, approved by CONSOB. Dexia Crediop was Italy's first issuer to adopt this instrument,
thereby increasing the transparency of its issues as far as the investing public was concerned.
As normal, during the year the Euro Medium Term Note Programme was updated, which allows the raising of
funds on the international markets.
Lastly, a subordinate loan of 400 million euro was issued in order to extend the bank’s asset capacity. The loan
was entirely underwritten by the parent company, Dexia Crédit Local.

Rating 
The three main Agencies, Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s Investors Service and FitchRatings, confirmed Dexia
Crediop’s rating on medium/long-term debt as AA-, Aa2, and AA, respectively.
The outlook is stable in the view of all three agencies. Dexia Crediop currently confirms its position as the
highest-rated Italian bank, with a “double A” rating from all three main agencies.

Moody’s – m/l term Aa2
Moody’s – short term P-1
Moody’s Financial Strength B
Standard & Poor’s – m/l term AA-
Standard & Poor’s – short term A-1+
FitchRatings – m/l term AA
FitchRatings – short term F1+
FitchRatings – individual A/B
FitchRatings – support 1

Business in the financial and monetary markets
Origination and Sales: Dexia Capital Markets (the Group's brand name for companies operating on the primary
market) confirmed its primacy in origination for local government agencies and banking issuers. During 2007,
Dexia Capital Markets achieved a 50% market share by origination volume of international bond issues by
Italian territorial agencies.
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The desk led seventeen Italian banking issues or issues by the Group, putting it in 9th position in the special
ranking of bookrunners for domestic banking issues.
The Sales business line focused on sales to Italian institutional customers and continued its business creating
opportunities for its customers.   

Cash Management: Cash management activities continued their growth trend during the year, again as part of
a global approach to the customer. The results for the year were particularly significant compared to those for
2006 and reflected a business trend characterised by a broadening of the client base, achieved also through the
introduction of some particularly innovative products. The traditional placement activities of investment
products were set alongside this, in synergy with the other lines of business of the various Finance desks. 
Marketing of Dexia's asset management products continued during the year, with a view to supporting the
Group's specialist asset management company (Dexia Asset Management).  

Credit Spread Portfolio: this business line manages the proprietary bond portfolio, concentrated on Italian
issuers, most of whom are financial and securitisation institutions. There is also an element of sovereign risk
with regard to Italy, while no exposures are assumed in respect of the corporate sector.
This activity is carried out in close co-ordination with the proprietary portfolios of the Dexia Group, giving
rise to a significant market presence and beneficial integration with other business lines that operate on
financial markets.
Apart from credit quality, particular attention is given to the portfolio's liquidity parameters. Over 80% of
the portfolio consists of securities deliverable to the European Central Bank.
The Credit Spread Portfolio business will be managed by Dexia Crediop Ireland (DCI) from 2008 onwards.
For this reason the sale of the Credit Spread Portfolio to DCI was initiated during the course of 2007 and the
process is expected to be completed during 2008. 

Money Market: This activity involves hedging of the short-term liquidity risk and of the interest rate risk,
determined by the Euribor parameter on the banking book. These risks are also managed by using short-term
interest-rate derivatives (FRA and EONIA swaps).

A considerable proportion of short-term sources of finance are repurchase agreements with the European
Central Bank.

The ABACO project, that was launched on 1st January 2007, has made it possible to use the Bank's commercial
assets (loans to territorial authorities) in funding operations with the European Central Bank.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Shareholding Structure
As regards the shareholding structure of Dexia Crediop, there was a merger between Banco Popolare di
Verona e Novara and Banca Popolare Italiana, which came into effect on 1st July 2007.
Following this merger, the new Company took the name of Banco Popolare società cooperativa and all the
assets and liabilities which used to belong to Banco Popolare di Verona e Novara were transferred to it.
Dexia Crediop’s share capital is fully subscribed and paid up and amounts to Euro 450,210,000 consisting
of 174,500,000 ordinary shares with a nominal unit value of Euro 2.58. They are held as follows:
- Dexia Crédit Local: 122,150,000 ordinary shares, representing 70% of share capital, totalling 315,147,000 euro;
- Banca Popolare di Milano: 17,450,000 ordinary shares, representing 10% of share capital, totalling 45,021,000 euro;
- Banco Popolare (previously Banco Popolare di Verona e Novara): 17,450,000 ordinary shares, representing 10%

of share capital, totalling 45,021,000 euro;
- Em. Ro. Popolare S.p.A.: 17,450,000 ordinary shares, representing 10% of share capital, totalling 45,021,000 euro.
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Dexia Crediop does not own any of its own shares or shares in the parent company, nor did it own any such
shares during the year.

Compliance
As regards Compliance, work during the year focused principally on two major projects: the implementation of
the MiFID (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive), and actions to combat money-laundering.
As far as implementation of the MiFID regulations is concerned, the project was divided into a first phase of
assessment, aimed at identifying the areas of impact of the new European regulations in relation to the Bank’s
activities, and a second phase of structuring and realisation of the actions needed to adapt the company’s procedures
and processes in order to comply with the MiFID by 1st November, when the Directive was to come into effect.
The impact on the company of this implementation project, whose fulfilment was strictly coordinated together
with the Group, was quite considerable due to the number of resources involved and all the new systemic
procedures introduced.
As regards the significant activity carried out in relation to money-laundering, there were three main projects that
reached completion: the process of supplying registry information; the IT communication process to the
CSE outsourcer; revision of the supply and reporting process. The new IT and organisational processes became
operational at the beginning of October 2007.
It is also worth mentioning that in the second half of 2007 Compliance assisted the Central Inspectorate in the
checks made on the correctness and completeness of the data entered onto the Archivio Unico Informatico
(Single IT Archive). From 1st January 2008 this work is done entirely by the Compliance unit.
MiFID, money-laundering and the Legislative Decree 231/01 were the main subjects on which Compliance-
related training activities were organised for staff.
The leading role played by the Bank in relation to Compliance is also witnessed by the organisation of the
3rd National Meeting on Compliance, with the patronage of AICOM (Associazione Italiana Compliance), an event
which looked at the changes arising from the introduction of MiFID with the participation of important
speakers and which enjoyed vast media coverage.
The security plan, required by art. 34, sub-para.1, letter g) of It. Leg. Dec. no. 196 of 30 June 2003 (“Personal data
protection code”) was prepared in accordance with Rule 19 of the Technical Instructions, annex B to Leg. Dec.
196/2003.  

Communications
There were numerous significant events organised by Dexia Crediop on the communications front.
In February, Dexia Crediop took part in the 13th Edition of the AIAF ASSIOM ATIC FOREX Conference, organised
by the Associations of Financial Market Operators and held in Turin.
In May, the Bank took part in the 15th edition of the European Local & Regional Government Financing Conference,
held in Prague and organised by Euromoney PLC. This event is regarded as the most important in Europe for the local
government sector.
The presentation of the Notes on Current Trends was organised in June at the offices of the Bank. This event
provided an opportunity for the dissemination of a study capable of giving a complete, up-to-date picture
of the trends in the financing of Italian territorial authorities and provided operators in this sector with an
analytical estimate of budgets for Municipalities, Provinces and Regions at the beginning of 2007 and the
details of the aggregated budget statements of the territorial authorities for the period 2001 - 2006.
In June, Dexia Crediop also attended the 24th Annual Meeting of ANCI (National Association of Italian
Municipal Authorities), held in Bari, during which a number of particularly interesting topics were looked
at in detail, relating to local authority financing.
As already mentioned, the third meeting dedicated to the theme of the MiFID was held in September in the
Dexia Crediop Conference Hall, with the title “Strategies, governance, compliance: the challenges of the
MiFID and the integration of the European Financial Market” and the participation of institutions of the
highest level.
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In October, Dexia Crediop organised the 8th Meeting on Local Authority Financing held in Rome near the
Ara Pacis. The event is regarded by many as an extremely important annual appointment, an occasion for
local authority and government agency representatives to exchange views on the most recent developments
relating to local authority financing. “Territorial authorities and local public services: efficiency, management
and investments” was the central theme of the debate. The conference included the presentation of a study
conducted by the Dipartimento di Economia Pubblica – Facoltà di Economia of the La Sapienza University
in Rome and the survey on “Local public services of economic importance”, which was undertaken by the
Istituto Piepoli and commissioned by Dexia Crediop.
In October, the Bank also took part in the event “Invito a Palazzo”, organised by ABI. During this event,
participating banks open up their doors to the public providing them with the opportunity of viewing their
art collections; Dexia Crediop presented a new selection of works-of-art in an exhibition entitled “Between
vision and landscapes” illustrating the development in landscape paintings between the 16th and 19th centuries.
Another event which was attended by Bank was the first conference on "Municipalities and local authority
financing" organised by ANCI and held in Brescia. This event looked closely at the theme of constraints and
opportunities for Municipalities within the scope of local authority financing. 
Lastly, and in line with its cultural patronage activities, the Bank supported the publication of the book
“Casaluce. Un ciclo trecentesco in terra angioina” which is dedicated to the restoration work on the frescoes
located in the Cappella Palatina of the Maschio Angioino castle in Naples. The work was presented in November.

Risk Management
In relation to the general control of risks, the Bank continues to benefit from its organisational integration with
the Group
The Bank's operations in 2007 continued to feature a very low level of credit risk, reflecting its focus on customers
in the sector of local and territorial public-sector agencies, which are traditionally reliable and supported by a
satisfactory system of guarantees, which were additionally enhanced by the provisions of the 2007 Finance Bill
(Italian Law no. 296/06), which substantially modified the previous regulations relating to “financial dislocation”
of local authorities (Consolidated Law no. 267/2000). The regulations stipulated that, in such circumstances, the
servicing of debt for liabilities assisted by payment delegation should be the responsibility of the local authority’s
ordinary administrative management and no longer, as previously, managed within the scope of the financial
dislocation itself.
The Bank also made particular efforts to evaluate risks in other sectors of operation (corporate finance, project
financing, derivatives, etc), with satisfactory results in terms of both volumes and returns. This was also thanks
to the consolidated use of cash collateral contracts on derivatives, which produce a considerable reduction in
credit risk. 
On the operating risk front within the scope of managing computer security concerning access to applications,
it became necessary to identify solutions in order to ensure the protection of data included on the IT systems.
Therefore, in order to improve the audits already implemented and to enhance data confidentiality, the Bank
installed a system on which it centralises all information relating to “identities”, which can be used to
have control over access on a global basis using a specific Identity Management software called DIM (Dexia
Identity Management).
According to current regulations within the Dexia Group and Dexia Crediop’s internal procedures, interest rate
risk associated with activities on the monetary and financial markets must be measured in terms of sensitivity,
VAR and stop-loss, and compliance with the relevant operating limits must be checked on an ongoing basis.
Under Group procedures and internal rules, the ALM activity has to measure exposure to interest rate risk in
terms of sensitivity and earnings at risk. 
Short- and long-term liquidity risks are monitored via the calculation of ratios identified with reference to
liquidity requirements and the available reserves.
Legal risks are carefully monitored by the Bank. In particular, the organisational structure in the Legal
Department makes provision for the presence of lawyers detached to the operating desks whose responsibility
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it is to follow transactions right from the early stages.
Auditing activities are performed by a highly professional team on a continuous basis and in accordance with
the procedures adopted within the Dexia Group which follow best market practices and auditing standards in
accordance with the current regulations on supervision. Auditing refers to all processes within the Bank, in line
with the auditing plan and the frequency of controls as defined together at Group level.

Basel II
The principal "mission" of the Bank's structures that have the task of monitoring and limiting risks,  is to develop
and implement the Basel 2 project together with the parent company Dexia Crédit Local (DCL).
On 18 December 2007 the Belgian CBFA (Commission Bancaire, Financière et des Assurances) officially authorised
the Dexia Group to use the advanced IRBA method.  As is common knowledge, this method is the most
sophisticated among the various alternatives contained within the Basel Committee's document and will enable
users to achieve progressive and significant savings in their own resources from 2008 onwards.
This decision by the CBFA consolidates the efforts of a working team from various parts of the Group, which has
worked on the Basel II project for the last six years, and confirms that Dexia is strongly committed towards
retaining its role of excellence within the international banking environment.
Dexia Crediop will be one of the very few banks in Italy to have applied the Advanced IRBA method by
1st January 2008.
When the new methods have been fully implemented, the next step will be the development and full
implementation of the new system of reporting to the Supervision Committees (COREP); as regards operating
risks, this will mean the application of the Traditional Standardised Approach (TSA) and as regards market risk, this
will mean application of the standard method for calculating the relative capital requirement.

Equity investments
A) Equity investments in subsidiary companies
DCC - DEXIA CREDIOP PER LA CARTOLARIZZAZIONE S.R.L.
This company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia Crediop, has been operational since 2004. Its exclusive purpose
is the setting up of securitisation transactions pursuant to Italian Law no. 130/1999;
After carrying out two bond issues in the period 2004-2005 with the securitisation of portfolios made up
exclusively of securities issued by Italian public sector entities, this company did not make any new issues during 2007.
In March 2008 it carried out the third securitisation operation of a portfolio of securities issued by Italian public
sector entities, for the sum of 2.2 billion euro.

CREDIOP OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED (COBL)
In the past, this company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia Crediop, carried out funding operations on
international financial markets with Dexia Crediop's guarantee, with the proceeds being used by the parent
company.
No further funding operations have been carried out through this subsidiary since mid-2004. Its activities are
therefore limited to managing the stock of existing operations. 

DEXIA CREDIOP IRELAND
This company was established under Irish Law on 12 October 2007 with the aim of centralizing the activity of
managing the Group’s investment portfolios. It has a share capital of € 700,000,000 divided into 700,000,000
shares, each with a nominal value of 1 euro. 699,999,999 shares have been underwritten by Dexia Crediop and
1 share by Dexia Investments Ireland in its capacity as nominee shareholder.

B) Other significant equity investments
ISTITUTO PER IL CREDITO SPORTIVO (ICS) 
ICS was set up with Italian Law no. 1295 dated 24 December 1957 and is a public sector bank in accordance with
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art. 151 of It. Leg. Dec. no. 385/1993. Technically, it is a "public law entity with autonomous management". 
With the approval of the new articles of association of ICS in 2005, the Institute’s field of operations was extended
to the sector of cultural activities. The extent of the share capital belonging to the equity investors was clearly
identified and the interests of private shareholders (who hold 73.97% of the share capital) were provided with
greater protection. At the same time the need arose to replace with interest-bearing funding, the withdrawal of
450 million euro made by the Italian State at the end of 2005 from the public sector funds included in the
separately managed Contributed Funds. The year 2007 was marked as a year of transition, while waiting for the
new operational strategies to be developed and the organisation of the bank to be updated.
During 2007 ICS paid a dividend of 13.8 million euro out of its net income for 2006 of 20.4 million euro, of
which Dexia Crediop received 2.9 million euro. This was a lower dividend than in the previous year.
From a legislative point of view it is important to mention the provisions included in the 2007 Italian Finance
Bill, which were amended by the Decree Law on Violence in Stadiums and stipulated the introduction for ICS
of a few amendments to the articles of association. These included the reduction from ten to nine members of
the Board of Directors, the appointment of three directors by the government including the ICS Chairman, the
reduction from 4 to 3 members of the Board of Directors nominated by the Bank, the abolition of the
Executive Committee and the dissolving of the Bank's governing bodies with effect from 1st January 2007.
A decree issued on 3 May 2007 reconstituted the Bank’s governing bodies, putting an end to a phase of
uncertainty in the life of ICS.
Dexia Crediop’s interest in this bank at the end of the year remained unchanged at 21.622%. The investment is
not considered as one providing significant influence, since the Bank does not have an equivalent number of
votes on the Board of Directors, which also performs the functions of the General Meeting.

EUROPEAN INVESTMENT FUND (EIF) 
The EIF is an EU institution that provides support for small and medium-sized enterprises in the form of risk
capital and guarantees. The shareholders of EIF include the EIB and the European Union, as well as other banks
and financial institutions in EU member countries
Dexia Crediop’s interest in this bank at the end of the year was 0.166667%. 

Human resources
The Bank employed 238 persons as of 31 December 2007 (+2 compared to 2006).
The employer branding activities continued during 2007 with the participation of the Bank at events organised
by some important Italian public and private universities (job forums and career advice, company visits to
masters and first degree courses) and with initiatives (in particular internships) designed to facilitate access by
young graduates to the world of employment and training activities arranged for novices. 
The profitable collaboration with Dexia Corporate University was further strengthened with personnel
training and development activities, which also involved the organisation in Italy of international training events
and the active participation in projects involving international exchange of resources. As regards the overall
training activities organised during 2007, it was in fact a particularly positive year, both for the breadth and
variety of courses on offer (focusing mainly on specialist and technical skills, and on improving management
and interpersonal skills) and for the actual total number of training hours offered. 
In the area of career management, particular attention was given to designing and implementing specific
individual development plans for high potential resources, following staff assessment initiatives both at local and
international level. 
Industrial relations continued to be positive and constructive during 2007 and led to the renewal of the
in-house agreement on medical cover for senior management, middle management and professional staff,
following negotiations with the company trade union representatives.
Furthermore, the decision to bring forward the reform of the complementary pension schemes to 2007 led
to the signing of the company agreement regarding the allocation of Employee Severance Indemnities, in
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accordance with Leg. Dec. 252/2005.
As regards certain aspects of operational functions, the rationalisation of company administrative procedures
continued its progress, aimed at producing steady improvements to the quality of service with a view to efficiency
and reduction in the operational risk. The outsourcing activities of administrative control processes were completed. 

Administration sector activities 
During the year the Accounting and Budget Department played a critical part in implementing the Bank’s  role
of parent company in governance and co-ordination, with particular attention paid to the definition of the
administrative and accounting system of the new subsidiary, Dexia Crediop Ireland.
The Back Office operations, aimed at supporting the Bank’s activities, continued to develop with a view to
boosting efficiency and ensuring secure processing, with the enhancement of automatic controls and
continuous improvements to the Legacy systems. The new operational development for allocating assets to the
ECB meant that the Bank was the first to do so in the Italian banking system.
The development in IT services and the implementation of a new organisational model, based on processes
rather than products, have enabled the Bank to cope with the constant increase in volumes in the financing
area, particularly in the field of short-term transactions, derivatives and repurchase agreements.
The IT services have developed support systems to meet the Bank's needs in coping with changes in general
regulations and with the company’s decisions on widening the range of financial services and products on offer.
Thirteen projects were brought to a conclusion in this context, relating to Basel II, Anti-laundering, Market
Abuse, derivative assessment and MiFID.
During the year, work was completed in renewing the workstation hardware with alignment to  Dexia Group’s
desk platform. Experiments were performed with innovative procedures for software distribution and the
relative inventory compilation. In this way the Bank was able to reorganise all the hardware and software with
a view to standardising and optimizing the way they are managed. 
Work was completed in modernising and upgrading the electrical network and climate control systems, as well
as renovation work to certain areas of the Bank’s head office, intended for top management and company
representation.
For a number of years now the Bank has put a lot of emphasis on matters concerning sustainable development
and during this year efforts also included implementation of the activities geared to confirming EMAS and ISO
14001 certification, awarded during 2005. Dexia Crediop belongs to the ABI Energy Consortium and so
purchases energy only produced by hydroelectric power stations. It  has also initiated a project to install
sensors near the main sources of electricity consumption at the head office which will enable consumption to
be carefully monitored. 
With reference to safety in the workplace and confirming the Bank’s sensitivity towards matters covered by
the Leg. Dec. 626/94, all the 104 employees identified as VDU operators have had their scheduled medical
examinations as part of the health supervision programme.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 
The income statement of Dexia Crediop Spa reported net interest income of 131.8 million euro in 2007. This is
12% lower than the year before mostly as a result of trends in market rates despite the higher volume of activity. 
Net fee and commission income was 4% higher than in 2006 at 8.1 million euro (+0.3 million euro). Dividends
amounted to 4.7 million euro, a reduction of -2.6 million euro on the previous year, mainly due to lower
dividends received from the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo.
Net trading income, net hedging gains (losses) and gains/losses on disposal/repurchase totalled -4.4 million
euro, reporting a reduction of 41.8 million euro over the previous year, mostly in connection with the sale of a
part of the securities portfolio of the Credit Spread Portfolio business line to the newly established subsidiary
company, Dexia Crediop Ireland.
Net interest and other banking income amounted to 140.2 million euro, down 30% on 2006 (-61.2 million euro). 
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Net impairment adjustments amounted to a positive 1.0 million euro, reporting an increase on the year before
as a result of general adjustments to loans. 
Net profits on financial activities amounted to 141.2 million euro, down 28% on 2006.
Administrative expenses, including depreciation and amortisation, amounted to 41.9 million euro, down 8%
compared with 2006, mainly due to a refund of registration taxes paid in 1996 (when the deed of assignment
was registered) but subsequently recognised by the Tax Authorities as not being due.
Total operating costs (including administrative expenses, net provisions for risks and charges and other operating
income) were lower at 41.7 million euro (-8% on 2006), mainly due to administrative expenses.
Profit from continuing operations before tax was down by 34% on 2006 to 99.5 million euro.
Taxes amounting to 13.7 million euro take into account the effects on deferred taxation of the reduction in tax
rates for IRES and IRAP in accordance with the 2008 Italian Finance Bill.
Net profit was 85.8 million Euro, showing a reduction (-8%) over the previous year’s figure of 92.9 million. 

OUTLOOK FOR FUTURE TRENDS

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
In March 2008, Dexia Crediop organised a securitisation transaction through its special purpose vehicle
company DCC, relating to a portfolio of Italian public entity issues with a value of about 2.2 billion euro.

FUTURE OPERATIONAL  PROSPECTS  
As regards territorial authority customers (Regions, Municipalities and Provinces), prospects for 2008 are quite
similar to those in 2007, taking into account the overall trends in Italian public financing; in short one can
expect that in 2008, investments and recourse to borrowing by territorial authorities will in general continue
to be limited due to budgeting policies.
Territorial authorities will pay even more attention to the financial aspects of management; the authorities will
put more emphasis on requests made to their own internal structures and to the marketplace providing projects,
proposals and strategic vision. Local authority assets, in the form of movables or real estate, will represent an
important component for development and provide authorities with important opportunities for improvement.
Within the same prospects, it appears likely that there will be a further increase in the use of various kinds of
partnerships between public and private entities in order to finance infrastructures.
From this viewpoint, the Bank has re-organised its own sales structure so as to be able to offer its customers the
best possible solutions to their management and financial problems and to do so with even greater efficiency
and speed. 
Dexia Crediop aims to make further improvements, compared to the positive figures achieved in 2007, in its
activities on the utility markets, with investments aimed at the exploitation of alternative forms of energy and
the construction of infrastructures that are now vital to Italy. 
The Bank will continue its marketing approach based on a profound knowledge of its customers and which gives
priority to the fundamental value of sound management of public money and affairs. Market developments in
2007 should contribute to the future and favour operators, who, like Dexia Crediop, have developed their own
offer based on this value, whereas different kinds of behaviour will continue to find fewer opportunities in the
market.
Within this competitive environment, Italian banks have so far been unharmed by the liquidity crisis that has
hit the financial systems in other countries, but they have been subject to the general rise in funding costs. The
Italian banking system has seen the creation of a number of important groupings recently, which have also
involved Dexia Crediop's reference market. 



DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Dexia Crediop’s entire balance sheet is made up of funds invested in Italy, which provides further evidence of
the attention the Bank has (in line with Dexia Group’s directives) in contributing towards the development of
Italy. In the future, Dexia Crediop will continue in this direction placing the utmost trust in the potential of the
Italian market. 

PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF NET PROFIT

Dear Shareholders,
The proposed allocation of net profits set out below is presented for your approval pursuant to Art. 22 of the
Bank's Articles of Association.

Euro

Net profit ascertained for 2007 € 85,829,156
- 5% to be allocated to reserves pursuant to Art. 22.2 of the Articles of Association € 4,291,458 
Residual net profit for 2007 € 81,537,698 
Retained profit brought forward from 2006 € 390,697,076

Net profit available to shareholders € 472,234,774 
of which:
- dividend to shareholders pursuant to Art. 22.4 of the Articles of Association: € 54,095,000

- to be carried forward € 418,139,774

Following approval of the financial statements by the shareholders and the distribution of net profits (0.31 euro
per share), shareholders’ equity will amount to 1,065.3 million euro, comprising share capital of 450.2 million
euro, the legal reserve of 67.4 million euro, other reserves of 418.1 million euro (excluding the valuation reserves)
and the valuation reserve of 129.6 million euro.

Regulatory capital amounts to 1,311 million euro. At the end of December 2007, the capital adequacy ratio - the ratio
of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets - was 11.01%, well above the minimum required for Dexia Crediop
S.p.A. (7%).
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FINAL REMARKS 

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2008 appears to be one of change, challenges and enormous commitment for Dexia Crediop. 

The change is linked to this time of transition, which coincides with a reduction in investments and of recourse
to borrowing by local authorities.

Dexia Crediop’s operations in 2007, in an environment of enhanced competition, managed in general to
confirm the high achievements made in 2006. In particular, loans disbursed during the year amounted to
5.3 billion euro, down 21% on 2006 due to the trends in the market. The stock of outstanding loans at
31 December 2007 reached 47.6 billion euro, with an increase of 8.7% over 2006.

The challenge posed by this change is innovation - innovation in products and services offered but also in
strategy and in the approach to customers. This challenge has seen Dexia Crediop as a protagonist in financing
infrastructures, in investments on renewable energy sources and in the operators providing local public services.

Its commitment has been considerable: on the one hand, it has totally reorganised its own marketing activities
so as to face 2008 with a structure which is better equipped to cope with changes in the market, and on the
other, it has maintained a marketing approach (in a regulatory context with some important innovations) which
enhances the elements of compliance and reliability and which is perceived by the market as particularly
distinctive and significant in Dexia Crediop’s operations. 

The results achieved are a consequence of the unceasing efforts and professional skills of the Bank’s personnel,
to whom we owe our sincere gratitude and appreciation.

We would also like to express our sincere gratitude to Professor Antonio Pedone, the Bank’s Honorary Chairman,
for the precious contribution he has made to Dexia Crediop’s institutional activities, and to Philippe Ducos
who left the Bank last spring after a number of years as Director.     

We would also like to remind you that in April 2007 Professor Mario Sarcinelli decided to honour Dexia Crediop
by accepting the post of Chairman of the Bank. 

In conclusion, we wish to thank the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors, who contributed to the correct
running of the Bank’s activities with their technical expertise and deep commitment. 

Rome, 12 March 2008 
The Board of Directors
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2007 PURSUANT TO ART. 2429 OF THE
ITALIAN CIVIL CODE

To the Shareholders of  Dexia Crediop S.p.A,

Dear Shareholders,

We have examined the draft financial statements of DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. for the year ended 31 December

2007, which closed with net income of 85,829 million euro. They were prepared by the Directors in compliance

with the law and sent to us as required, together with the tables and attachments and the report on operations. 

Activities performed by the Board of Statutory Auditors

We would remind you that Mazars & Guérard S.p.A. were appointed to audit the financial statements in accordance

with art. 2409-quater of the Italian Civil Code. We had various meetings with the auditors, but no significant

details or information came to light that might be worthy of mention in this report.

In accordance with art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code, the Board of Statutory Auditors declares that it carried

out the following activities during the course of 2007:

• made proper and appropriate controls under art. 2403.1 of the Italian Civil Code, confirming the proper

observance of law, the articles of association and principles of good administration;

• verified the adequacy of the organisational, administrative and accounting systems adopted by the Bank, and

their correct functioning, as well as the latter's ability to represent operational events in a reliable fashion;

• participated in regular meetings and attended other meetings prescribed by article 2405 of the Italian Civil

Code, confirming that these were conducted in accordance with the articles of association, and the legal and

regulatory requirements governing the same and regarding which we can reasonably ensure that the

resolutions passed comply with the law and the articles of association and are not manifestly imprudent,

risky, in potential conflict of interest or such as to compromise the integrity of the Bank's assets;

• verified that the statutory books were kept properly and updated in accordance with art. 2421 of the Italian

Civil Code.

We also confirm that we received no complaints during the year from shareholders regarding censurable facts

as described in art. 2408 of the Italian Civil Code.

Observations and proposals regarding the financial statements

Since we are not responsible for auditing in detail the financial statements at 31/12/2007, we have monitored

the general approach to their preparation and compliance with the law regarding their format and structure.

With reference to this, we would like to highlight the fact that the 2007 financial statements present comparative
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figures from the previous year prepared in accordance with the same IAS schedules and principles adopted this

year.

In any case, as far as we are aware, in accordance with the provisions of art. 2429.2 of the Italian Civil Code, the

Directors did not make any exceptions to these standards, when preparing the financial statements, as would

be allowed in certain circumstances under art. 2423.

Shareholders, taking into consideration the report issued by the external auditors on 2/4/2008, which does not

highlight any matters of importance, we are in favour of approving these financial statements as they stand.

04.04.08

THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Ezio Maria SIMONELLI Chairman

Vincenzo CIRUZZI Auditor

Pierre Paul DESTEFANIS Auditor
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report of the external auditors on the financial statements pursuant
to art. 2409-ter of the Italian Civil Code

To the Shareholders of

Dexia Crediop S.p.A.

1. We have audited the financial statements consisting of the balance sheet, the income statement,

the cash flow statements, the statement of changes in equity and the explanatory notes of Dexia

Crediop S.p.A. for the year ended 31 December 2007.  These financial statements were prepared

under the responsibility of the Directors of  Dexia Crediop S.p.A. Our responsibility is to provide

a professional opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. Our examination has been conducted according to established auditing principles. In conformity

with the aforesaid auditing principles, the audit was planned and carried out in order to acquire

every element necessary to ascertain whether the financial statements contain significant errors

and if they are as a whole reliable. The auditing procedure includes examination, on the basis of

sample inspections, of the probative elements supporting the balances and the information

contained in the financial statements, as well as an assessment of the adequacy and correctness

of the accounting criteria used and the reasonableness of the estimates made by the directors. We

consider that the work carried out gives a reasonable basis for expressing our professional judgement.

The financial statements present comparative figures relating to the previous year, and in relation

to these one should refer to our audit report issued on 30 March 2007.

3. In our judgement, the financial statements of Dexia Crediop S.p.A. at 31.12.07 comply with the

IFRS adopted by the European Union; they have therefore been drawn up clearly and represent

truly and fairly the financial situation and capital, economic result, variations in net equity and

cash flows of the Company for the financial year which closed on that date.

Milan, 02.04.08

Olivier Rombaut Vincenzo Miceli
Partner Partner – Auditor

MAZARS & GUERARD
CORSO DI PORTA VIGENTINA, 35 – 20122 MILANO
TEL. +39 02 58 20 70 – FAX: +39 02 58 20 14 03 – www.mazars.it
SPA – SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL € 2,449,500.00 – PAID UP € 2,433,500.00 – REGISTERED OFFICE C.SO DI PORTA VIGENTINA
35 – 20122 MILANO – REA N. 1059307 – FISCAL ID CODE. N. 01507630489 – VAT No. 05902570158 – AUTHORISED PURSUANT
TO IT. LAW 1966/39 – REGISTER OF AUDITORS OFF.GAZ. 60/1997 – SPECIAL ROLL OF AUDITING COMPANIES WITH
CONSOB RESOLUTION NO. 10829 DATED 16/07/1997 - OFFICES IN ITALY: BOLOGNA – FLORENCE – MILAN – NAPLES –
PADUA – PALERMO – ROME – TURIN - UDINE
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BALANCE SHEET  
Euro

ASSETS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Cash and cash equivalents 2,685 2,773 

20. Financial assets held for trading 963,448,688 1,298,220,641 

40. Financial assets available for sale 14,543,443,269 15,396,863,358 

50. Financial assets held to maturity 477,812,831 525,580,362 

60. Due from banks 13,075,944,747 8,351,468,742 

70. Due from customers 19,524,068,314 19,546,713,031 

80. Hedging derivatives 1,512,260,934 1,154,982,459 

90. Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged potfolios (+/-) (85,937) 0 

100. Equity investments 750,015,000 50,015,000 

110. Property, plant and equipment 44,811,297 44,642,267 

120. Intangible assets 1,951,735 2,034,245 

of which:

- goodwill 0 0 

130. Tax assets 10,828,790 1,186,633 

a) current 10,828,790 1,186,633

150. Other assets 118,746,454 44,963,141 

Total assets 51,023,248,807 46,416,672,652 
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Euro

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Due to banks 24,458,717,063 19,565,161,023 

20. Due to customers 4,629,871,864 3,077,816,433 

30. Securities in issue 18,362,365,438 19,324,586,265 

40. Financial liabilities for trading 959,263,930 1,251,698,205 

60. Hedging derivatives 1,278,475,865 1,897,775,823 

80. Tax liabilities 162,296,963 173,491,704 

a) current 2,481,103 1,503,392 

b) deferred 159,815,860 171,988,312 

100. Other liabilities 46,989,654 41,145,964 

110. Provision for severance indemnities 4,413,616 5,762,333 

120. Provisions for risks and charges 1,421,600 2,881,777 

a) provision for retirement and similar benefits 258,439 1,266,328 

b) other provisions 1,163,161 1,615,449 

130. Valuation reserves   129,593,015 121,737,481 

160. Reserves 453,800,644 411,541,962 

180. Share capital 450,210,000 450,210,000 

200. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 85,829,155 92,863,682 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 51,023,248,807 46,416,672,652 
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INCOME STATEMENT
Euro

ITEMS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Interest and similar income 2,190,277,227 1,578,386,397 

20. Interest and similar charges (2,058,498,278) (1,429,419,697)

30. Net interest income 131,778,949 148,966,700 

40. Fee and commission income 11,446,520 10,795,864 

50. Fee and commission expense (3,348,085) (2,985,907)

60. Net fee and commission income 8,098,435 7,809,957 

70. Dividend and similar income 4,737,194 7,306,401 

80. Net trading gains (losses) 5,938,662 27,862,100 

90. Net hedging gains (losses) 682,087 (1,587,151)

100. Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: (11,050,995) 11,048,659 

a) loans 5,596,146 5,084,401 

b) financial assets available for sale (21,914,108) 3,323,301 

d) financial liabilities  5,266,967 2,640,957 

120. Net interest and other banking income 140,184,332 201,406,666 

130. Net adjustments for impairment of: 985,382 (5,139,149)

a) loans 985,382 (5,139,149)

140. Net income from financial activities 141,169,714 196,267,517 

150. Administrative expenses: (39,105,169) (42,509,026)

a) personnel expenses (29,643,133) (27,854,605)

b) other administrative expenses (9,462,036) (14,654,421)

160. Net provisions for risks and charges (166,727) (147,327)

170. Net adjustments on tangible assets (815,437) (825,293)

180. Net adjustments on intangible assets (2,013,552) (2,159,557)

190. Other operating expenses/income 433,799 407,225 

200. Operating costs (41,667,086) (45,233,978)

250. Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax 99,502,628 151,033,539 

260.  Income taxes from continuing operations (13,673,473) (58,169,857)

270. Profit (Loss) from continuing operations after tax 85,829,155 92,863,682 

290. Profit (Loss) for the period 85,829,155 92,863,682 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET EQUITY 
Euro

Share capital: 450,210,000 450,210,000 450,210,000 

a) ordinary 
shares 450,210,000 450,210,000 450,210,000 

b) other
shares 0 0 0 

Share
premiums 0 0 0 

Reserves: 411,541,962 411,541,962 42,258,682 453,800,644 

a) of profits 411,541,962 411,541,962 42,258,682 453,800,644 

b) others 0 0 0 

Valuation
reserves: 121,737,481 121,737,481 7,855,534 129,593,015 

a) available
for sale 116,863,124 116,863,124 1,326,484 118,189,608 

b) cash
flow
hedging 4,874,357 4,874,357 6,529,050 11,403,407 

c) others 0 0 0 0 

Equity instruments 0 0 0 

Treasury shares 0 0 0 

Profit (Loss)
for the period 92,863,682 92,863,682 (42,258,682) (50,605,000) 85,829,155 85,829,155

Shareholder's
equity 1,076,353,125 1,076,353,125 (50,605,000) 7,855,534 0 0 0 0 0 0 85,829,155 1,119,432,814
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
Indirect method thousands of euros
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES Amount Amount

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Operations 94,876 133,030

- result for the period (+/-) 85,829 92,864 
- gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and on   

financial assets/liabilities carried at fair value (-/+) (5,939) (27,862)
- capital gains/losses on hedging assets (+/-) (682) 1,587 
- net impairment losses (+/-) (985) 5,139 
- net adjustments of tangible and intangible fixed assets (+/-) 2,813 2,985 
- net provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues (+/-) 167 147 
- unpaid taxes and dues (+) 13,673 58,170 
- net adjustments of asset disposal groups net of tax effect (+/-)
- other adjustments (+/-)

2. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets (3,904,366) (4,079,006)
- financial assets held for trading 340,711 357,399 
- financial assets designated at fair value
- financial assets available for sale 853,420 (3,066,822)
- due from banks: on demand 14,404 (13,753)
- due from banks: other receivables (4,738,880) (1,418,239)
- due from customers 23,630 62,409 
- other assets (397,651)

3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabilities 4,558,257 3,988,647 
- due to banks: on demand (669,565) 732,012 
- due to banks: other deposits 5,563,121 908,785 
- due to customers 1,552,055 1,283,741 
- securities in issue (962,221) 2,215,206 
- financial liabilities for trading (292,434) (401,986)
- financial liabilities designated at fair value
- other liabilities (632,699) (749,111)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operations 748,767 42,671 
B. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
1. Liquidity generated by 4,737 7,306

- sales of equity investments
- dividend collected from equity investments 4,737 7,306 
- sales of financial assets held to maturity
- sales of tangible assets  
- sales of intangible assets   
- sales of company divisions

2. Liquidity absorbed by (702,899) (2,862)
- purchases of equity investments (700,000)
- purchases of financial assets held to maturity
- purchases of tangible assets  (968) (869)
- purchases of intangible assets   (1,931) (1,993)
- purchases of company divisions

Liquidity generated/absorbed by investment activities (698,162) 4,444 
C. FUNDING ACTIVITIES (50,605) (47,115)

- issues/purchases of treasury shares
- issues/purchases of equity instruments
- distribution of dividend and other uses (50,605) (47,115)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activities (50,605) (47,115)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed in the period 0 0 
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RECONCILIATION
thousands of euros

Balance sheet items Amount Amount
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 3 3 

Total net liquidity generated/absorbed in period 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents: effect of variations in exchange rates 0 0 

Cash and liquid assets at end of period 3 3 
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Part C - Comments on the income statement 
Part E - Comments on risks and associated hedging policies 
Part F - Comments on the capital 
Part H - Transactions with related parties
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Part A - Accounting policies 
A.1 General Part 

– Section 1 - Declaration of conformity to International Accounting Standards   
– Section 2 - General accounting principles 
– Section 3 - Events after the balance sheet date 
– Section 4 - Other aspects 

A.2 The main aggregates of the financial statements 
1 - Financial assets held for trading 
2 - Financial assets available for sale 
3 - Financial assets held until maturity 
4 - Loans 
6 - Hedging derivatives 
7 - Equity investments 
8 - Property plant and equipment 
9 - Intangible assets 
11 - Current and deferred taxes 
12 - Provisions for risks and charges 
13 - Debt instruments and securities in issue 
14 - Financial liabilities held for trading 
16 - Currency transactions 
17 - Other information 

Part B - Comments on the balance sheet 
ASSETS

– Section  1 - Cash and cash equivalents 
– Section 2 - Financial assets held for trading 
– Section  4 - Financial assets available for sale 
– Section  5 - Financial assets held to maturity 
– Section 6 - Due from banks 
– Section 7 - Due from customers 
– Section 8 - Hedging derivatives 
– Secton   9 - Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged potfolios  
– Section 10 - Equity investments 
– Section 11 - Property plant and equipment 
– Section 12 - Intangible assets 
– Section 13 - Tax credits and liabilities 
– Section 15 - Other assets 

LIABILITIES
– Section 1 - Due to banks 
– Section 2 - Due to customers 
– Section  3 - Securities in issue 
– Section 4 - Financial liabilities for trading 
– Section 6 - Hedging derivatives 
– Section 8 - Tax liabilities 
– Section 10 - Other liabilities: 
– Section 11 - Provision for severance indemnities 
– Section 12 - Provisions for risks and charges 
– Section 14 - Corporate capital 
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Part C -  Comments on the income statement 
– Section 1 - Interest 
– Section 2 - Commissions 
– Section 3 - Dividend and similar income: 
– Section 4 - Trading gains (losses) 
– Section 5 - Hedging gains (losses) 
– Section 6 - Disposal/repurchase gains (losses) 
– Section 8 - Net adjustments for impairment 
– Section 9 - Administrative expenses 
– Section 10 - Net provisions for risks and charges 
– Section 11 - Net adjustments on tangible assets 
– Section 12 - Net adjustments on intangible assets 
– Section 13 - Other operating expenses and income 
– Section 17 - Gains (losses) on the sale of investments: 
– Section 18 - Tax on profit from continuing operations 

Part E - Comments on risks and associated hedging policies 
Section 1 – Credit risk 

Qualitative information 
1.  General aspects 
2.  Credit risk management policies 

2.1 Organisational aspects 
2.2 Management, measuring and audit systems 
2.3 Credit risk mitigation techniques 
2.4 Impaired financial assets 

Quantitative information 
A.  Credit quality 

A.1 Impaired and non-peforming loans: amounts, writedowns, trends, economic
and geographical distribution 

A.2 Classification of exposures according to external and internal ratings 
A.3 Breakdown of secured loans according to type of guarantee 

B. Credit distribution and concentration 
B.1 Distribution of on and off-balance sheet customer loans according to sector
B.2 Distribution of loans to resident non-financial companies
B.3 Distribution of on and off balance sheet customer loans according to area
B.4 Distribution of on and off-balance sheet loans to banks according to area 
B.5 Major exposures 

C. Securitisation and asset disposal transactions 
C.1 Securitisation transactions 
C.2 Disposal transactions 
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Section 2 – Market risk
2.1 Interest rate risk - Regulatory trading book
2.2 Interest rate risk - Banking book
2.3 Price risk - Regulatory trading book
2.4 Price risk - Banking book
2.5 Exchange rate risk
2.6 Financial derivatives
A. Financial derivatives
B. Loan derivatives

Section 3 – Liquidity risk
Qualitative information
Quantitative information

Section 4 – Operating risks
Qualitative information
Quantitative information

Part F - Comments on the capital
Qualitative information

Section 2 – Capital and minimum capital ratios

Part H -Transactions with related parties
1.  Information on directors’ and managers’ remuneration
2.  Information on transactions with related parties
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PART A – ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

Section 1 – Declaration of conformity to international accounting standards
The Financial Statements of the Dexia Crediop Company for the year ending 31 December 2007 were prepared
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and the International Accounting Standards
(hereafter “IFRS”, “IAS”, or international accounting standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Commission according to procedures referred to in article 6 of
Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council dated 16 July 2002, which were
approved on that date. 
The Financial Statements were also prepared in accordance with the instructions contained in Memorandum no.
262, dated 22 December 2005, issued by the Bank of Italy.

The accounting principles and criteria for evaluation adopted in drawing up the financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2007 are given below. 

Section 2 – General accounting principles
The corporate financial statements were drawn up in true and fair fashion and consist of the balance sheet,
the income statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the statement of changes in the
financial position and the notes to the statements. The financial statements are also accompanied by the
Directors’ Report on Operations. The statements were drawn up in euro units.

The balance sheet and income statement schedules consist of items identified with numbers and sub-items
identified with letters together with additional information (the various “references” made to the items and
sub-items). The items, sub-items and associated additional information make up the financial statement
accounts. Each account in the balance sheet and income statement also shows the amount relating to the
previous period. The balance sheet and income statement do not include any accounts with zero amounts
in both the year of reference and the previous financial year.

The notes to the statements were stated in thousands of euro. Any items and tables which do not have any
amounts are not mentioned in the notes to the statements.

The financial statements were drawn up according to the going concern principle and the accruals concept.

Section 3 – Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events after the balance sheet date which entail a need to amend the results of the financial
statements as at 31 December 2007.

Section 4 – Other aspects
On the closing date of these financial statements there were no apparent reasons to doubt the estimates which
could lead to material amendments in the book values of the assets and liabilities. In addition, there were no
changes made to the accounting estimates which have had effects in the current financial period.
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A. 2 – MAIN AGGREGATES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 – Financial assets held for trading 
The item “Financial assets held for trading” includes:
• financial assets, which, irrespective of their technical form, are held with a view to generating profits in the

short term;
• derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments. 
As regards financial assets, both debt and equity instruments are first recognised on the settlement date,
while derivatives are entered on the trade date. 
Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at fair value, which generally corresponds to the
settlement price. When the settlement price is different from fair value, the financial asset is recognised
at fair value and the difference compared to the settlement price is booked to the income statement. 
Subsequent measurement is carried out on the basis of changes in the fair value and the result is booked
to the income statement. 
Differentials in derivative contracts classified in the trading portfolio and the results of the fair value
measurement are included in “Net trading gains (losses)”. 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is calculated on the basis of official prices existing on the
date of the financial statements, if the financial instruments are quoted in active markets. Otherwise, fair
value is calculated using prices supplied by external traders or commonly adopted measurement models
which take into account all the risk factors linked to the instruments and which are based on data available
on the market, such as: measurement of listed instruments with similar characteristics, calculation of
discounted cash flows, option price calculation models, and values recorded in recent comparable transactions.
Financial assets for trading are derecognised only on expiry of the contractual rights relating to the cash
flows or when the financial assets are sold with the transfer to third parties of all the risks and benefits
associated with them. However, if a significant proportion of the risks and benefits of the sold financial
assets are maintained, they continue to be recognised, even if ownership of such assets has effectively
been transferred. 
If substantial transfer of the risks and benefits cannot be ascertained, the financial assets are derecognised
when no type of control is maintained over the same. Otherwise, when such control is retained, even
partially, these assets are maintained on the balance sheet to the extent to which the said control is retained,
calculated according to exposure to changes in the value of the sold assets and variations in the cash flows
of the same. 
These financial assets are derecognised on the date they are disposed of (settlement date). 
Derivatives are considered financial assets if their fair value is positive and liabilities if their fair value is
negative. The Group does not compensate the current positive and negative values from transactions in
existence with the same counterparty.

2 – Financial assets available for sale 
The item “Financial assets available for sale” includes all financial assets other than derivatives, that are not
classified as loans and receivables, investments held to maturity or financial assets held for trading. The item
also includes debt securities and equity securities (including the equity investment in the Istituto per il
Credito Sportivo) which cannot be classified as subsidiaries, associated companies or joint subsidiaries and
which do not, therefore, fall within the scope of application of IAS 28.  

For financial assets, debt and equity securities are first recognised on the settlement date, while loans are
recognised on the date they are disbursed.
Financial assets available for sale are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value, which is normally the same

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007



as the purchase price, including any charges or revenue directly ensuing from the instrument. When the price
paid is different from fair value, the financial asset is designated at fair value and the difference compared to
the price is booked to the income statement.
Subsequent measurement is carried out on the basis of changes in the fair value and variations are booked
to a specific reserve in shareholders’ equity, net of any tax effects. Any accumulated or unrealised profits or
losses on securities available for sale are recognised in the income statement when the asset is disposed of.
Financial assets available for sale are examined in order to verify whether there is any objective evidence of
a fall in value. If such evidence exists, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the book
value of the asset, net of any redemptions and amortizations,  and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate, or using specific valuation methods where shares are
concerned. If the reasons for the writedowns no longer exist, reversals are performed which are booked to the
income statement if they refer to debt securities or loans, and to shareholders’ equity if they refer to equity
securities.  
As regards determination of the fair value of financial assets available for sale and the criteria used for derecognising
them, the reader is referred to the information provided above for financial assets held for trading.

3 – Financial assets held to maturity 
The item “Financial assets held to maturity” includes financial assets other than derivatives, which have fixed
or calculable contractual payments and fixed maturity dates and which can be and are intended to be held
to maturity except for those which:
a) the Bank designates, at the time of initial recognition, at the fair value booked to the income statement;
b) the Bank designates as available for sale;
c) meet the definition of loans and receivables.
If, following a change of plan or capacity, it is no longer appropriate to keep an investment classified as held
to maturity, it is reclassified among assets available for sale.
Financial assets held to maturity are first recognised on the settlement date. On initial recognition, financial
assets classified in this category are designated  at fair value, on the date of trading (IAS 39, paragraph 44 and
AG 56) including any charges and income directly attributable to the instrument. When the settlement price
is different from fair value, the financial asset is recognised at its fair value and the difference compared to
the settlement price is booked to the income statement. Financial assets included in this category as a result
of reclassification from ‘Assets available for sale’, are recognised at amortised cost, which is initially taken as
being equal to the fair value of the asset on the date of reclassification. 
After initial recognition, financial assets held to maturity are carried at amortised cost and are subjected to
tests aimed at identifying the existence of any objective evidence of reduced value. The amortised cost of an
asset is the same as the value the asset was measured at on the date of initial recognition net of any capital
reimbursements. This is increased or reduced by the overall amortisation, achieved by using the effective
interest method, of any difference between the initial value and the value on maturity and minus any
reduction (made directly or through the use of a provision) following impairment loss or irrecoverability. 
Gains and losses relating to assets held to maturity are booked to the income statement at the moment in
which the assets are derecognised or have suffered an impairment loss , as well as through the process of
financial amortisation of the difference between the book value and the redemption value on maturity.
Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the book value of the asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When the reasons for an
impairment loss no longer exist, a reversal is booked to the income statement which cannot, however, exceed
the amortized cost which the instrument would have had without the previous loss. 
As regards the criteria used for derecognising financial assets held to maturity, the reader is referred to the
information provided above for financial assets held for trading.
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4 – Loans
The item “Loans and receivables” includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments,
which are not quoted in an active market, and which are not designated as “Financial assets available for sale” on
the date of initial recognition. 
Normally they include loans to banks and customers, including debt securities with characteristics similar to
receivables, previously classified under the item “Bonds and other debt securities”. 
Receivables are first entered on the date they are issued or, in the case of debt securities, on the settlement date.
Receivables are initially recognised at their fair value, equal to the amount paid out, or to the subscription price,
including any costs/income directly attributable to the single receivable and that was determinable on the
original date of the transaction. Even if they have the above features, costs which are reimbursed by the borrower
or which can be considered normal internal administrative costs are excluded. 
Receivables are subsequently measured at their amortised cost, using the effective interest method which, by
using financial logic, enables the economic effect of costs/revenues to be distributed over the expected remaining
life of the loan.
The book value of the loan portfolio is periodically subject to checks for the existence of any losses in value which
could determine a reduction in their presumable collection value. For a classification of impaired debts in the
various risk categories (non-performing loans, problem loans, restructured and expired exposures), reference is
made to the regulations issued on the subject by the Bank of Italy together with the internal provisions which
establish rules for classification and transfers within the scope of the various expected risk categories. 
Writedowns to be made to loans and recognised in the income statement, net of any previous provisions, are
equal to the difference between the book value at the time of assessment (the amortised cost) and the present value
of expected future cash flows, calculated by applying the original effective interest rate. The estimate of future cash
flows takes account of expected recovery times, the presumable realization value of any existing guarantees and
costs considered necessary for recovery of the loan exposure. 
As regards loans classified within the categories of non-performing loans and problem loans, which show objective
evidence of long-term impairment, an analytical assessment is carried out. 
Loans which do not show any objective evidence of impairment or for which no impairment is forecast are
assessed collectively, by grouping them together in homogeneous categories with similar characteristics in terms
of credit risk, such as the technical form of the loan, the economic sector the counterparties belong to, their
geographical location and the type of existing guarantees. 
The original value of the loans is reinstated in subsequent financial periods to the extent to which the reasons for
the writedown are no longer evident; the writeback is booked to the income statement and may not in any case
exceed the amortised cost that the loan would have had in the absence of previous writedowns.
Financial guarantees given which are not represented by derivatives are assessed taking into account the
provisions of IAS 39 which stipulate, on the one hand, recognition of the fee received, pursuant to IAS 18, and
on the other, measurement of the risks and charges connected with the guarantees by applying the principles
provided for in IAS 37.  
Sale and repurchase transactions are also included in the item “loans and receivables”.
Securities received within the context of a Repo transaction which contractually provides for their subsequent sale,
and securities that are assigned within a transaction which contractually foresees their subsequent repurchase are
not recognised or derecognised respectively. Consequently, when a security is purchased with an agreement for
its resale, the amount paid is recognised as a loan to (or amount due from) customers or banks; if a security is
sold with an agreement for its repurchase the liability is recognised among loans from (amounts due to) banks
or customers. 
Revenues from loans, consisting of coupons maturing on the securities themselves and of the difference between
the spot price and the repurchase price, are recognised as interest in the Income Statement of the relative period.
During 2004 and 2005 two securitisation transactions were performed on securities for Italian local authorities
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through the 100% subsidiary company, “DCC-Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l.” (henceforth “DCC”).
To support these operations Dexia Crediop issued an unconditional guarantee to the bearer of the senior ABSs
(another company in the Dexia Group). Owing to this guarantee, and therefore to the obligation to re-purchase
the securities and reimburse all the ABSs against any form of credit or fiscal event, we are of the opinion that, even
if the legal ownership of the securities is transferred, control over the cash flows of the securities is in fact still
retained, as well as the substantiality of the risks and benefits (continuing involvement). 
Since the conditions provided for in IAS 39 for derecognition of the securities being sold do not exist, the
pre-existing situation was reinstated in the balance sheet, with reattribution within the Dexia Crediop accounts
of DCC’s separate equity. In particular, the individual securities were attributed to the accounting portfolios L&R
- Loans and Receivables and AFS - Financial assets available for sale. 

4.1 – Due from banks
The item “Due from banks” includes loans to banks which foresee fixed and determinable payments not
quoted in active markets and securities with characteristics similar to loans, previously classified under the
item “Bonds and other debt securities”.

4.2 – Due from customers
The item “Due from customers” includes loans to customers which foresee fixed and determinable payments
not quoted in active markets and securities with characteristics similar to loans, previously classified under
the item “Bonds and other debt securities”.

6 – Hedging derivatives
Hedging instruments are used to neutralize potential losses which may be recognised in a particular element
and attributable to one or more types of risk (interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, price risk, credit risk, etc.).
The types of hedging transactions used are the following:
• Fair value hedge, performed with the aim of hedging the exposure to variations in the fair value

of assets/liabilities recognised in the balance sheet;
• Cash flow hedge, performed with the aim of hedging the exposure to variations in cash flows of

assets/liabilities recognised in the balance sheet or relating to highly probable future transactions.

A financial instrument is designated as a hedge if there is formal documentation on the relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, which includes the risk management objectives, the strategy for
carrying out the hedge and the methods which will be used to test the effectiveness of the hedge itself.

Dexia Crediop S.p.A. conducts an assessment at the start and periodically, using forecasting and retrospective
tests, to see whether or not the hedge is highly effective in offsetting the changes in fair value or in cash flows of
the hedged instrument. The tests on effectiveness are considered as passed if the ratio between the changes in
the fair value hedging instruments and those of the hedged items fall within the range of 80-125%.
The hedging relationship ceases if: (i) the hedging operation through the derivative ceases or is no longer
highly effective; (ii) the derivative expires, is sold, annulled or exercised; (iii) the hedged item is sold, expires or
is redeemed; (iv) it is no longer highly probable that the future hedged operation will be performed.
The “Hedging derivatives” items among the assets (item 80) and liabilities (item 60) on the balance sheet include
the positive and negative value of derivatives which are part of effective hedging operations.
Like all derivatives, hedging derivatives are initially recognised in the balance sheet on the trade date and are
subsequently measured at fair value.
In the case of fair value hedging, any changes in the value of the hedging instruments and the hedged
instruments (as regards the part attributable to the hedged risk and when the hedge is effective) are booked to
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the income statement. The differences between the variations in value constitute the partial ineffectiveness of
the hedge and lead to a net impact in the income statement, recognised under item 90. If the hedge ceases to
exist for reasons other than realization of the hedged item, the variations in value of the latter, which were
recognised in the balance sheet for as long as the effective hedge was maintained, are booked to the income
statement. When the hedge refers to interest-bearing financial instruments, this is done using the amortized cost
principle, or in other cases with a single amount. 
As regards cash flow hedges, the gain or loss portion on a hedging instrument that is considered effective is
initially recognised in shareholders’ equity (cash flow hedging reserve). If during the period any portion of gain
or loss associated with the hedging instrument exceeds the fair value variation of expected flows in absolute
value terms, it is immediately recognised in the income statement (overhedging); if the excess value is on the
hedged instrument (underhedging), the entire change in fair value recognised for the derivative is booked to
shareholders’ equity. When the cash flows being hedged become manifest and are recognised in the income
statement, the relevant gain or loss on the hedging instrument is transferred from shareholders’ equity to the
corresponding item in the income statement. If the cash flow hedge for a future transaction is no longer
considered effective or the hedging relationship has ceased, the total gain or loss on the hedging instrument
which had been booked to shareholders’ equity stays booked to the specific equity reserve until the transaction
takes place (or until it appears unlikely that the transaction will actually take place). When the transaction is
actually completed, this amount is recognised in the income statement under item 80 “Net trading gains (losses)”.

7 – Equity investments
The item “Equity investments” includes equity investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and those
subject to joint control.
Subsidiaries are companies in which the parent has the power to determine administrative, financial and
management choices and in which it normally has more than half the voting rights. 
Associated companies are deemed to be those in which the Parent Company holds at least 20% of the voting
rights and companies whose administrative, financial and management choices are deemed to be subject to
significant influence owing to the effects of actually existing legal links. 
Companies subject to joint control are deemed to be those where contractual agreements exist, which require
the consent of the Company and of other investors with whom the control is shared, in order for admini-
strative, financial and management choices to be made.
Equity investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and companies under joint control, are booked to the
balance sheet on the settlement date and are carried at cost, adjusted when impairment losses are ascertained.
Impairment losses on equity investments are recognised in the Income Statement. If the reasons for the
writedown no longer exist, the reversals are booked to the income statement only up to reinstatement of the
original book value.
The associated dividend is recognised when the right to receive it arises.
Minority interests, or at least those not subject to significant influence, are included under the item “Financial
assets available for sale”.

7.1 – Dividend 
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive it  arises, which corresponds to the financial period in which
the sum is received (IAS 18 para. 29).

8 – Properties, plant and equipment 
The item “Properties, plant and equipment” includes assets held to be used for more than one financial
period in the production and provision of services or for administrative purposes (so-called “instrumental
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assets”), together with real estate properties held for collecting rent and/or for the appreciation of the capital
invested (so-called “non-instrumental assets”).
When the standards were first adopted, the part attributable to plots of land associated with “sky-to-ground”
properties, was separated out since they were not subject to depreciation, as land has an indefinite useful life.
Similarly the historical cost of works of art not subject to depreciation was reinstated, because their useful
life is deemed impossible to estimate and their value is not likely to fall with the passing of time. 
In line with paragraph 7 of IAS 16, properties, plant and equipment are recognised in the balance sheet
only when it is reasonably possible to determine the cost of the asset and it is probable that the associated
future economic benefits will accrue to the company. Therefore, it is important to establish the time when
the risks and benefits attached to an asset are effectively transferred to the company, irrespective of when
ownership is formally conveyed.
Properties, plant and equipment are initially entered at cost, which includes not only the purchase price
but also any associated charges directly ensuing from the purchase and costs involved in starting up the
asset. The expenses incurred, subsequent to purchase, increase the book value of an asset or are recognised
as separate assets only when they lead to an increase in future economic benefits due to the use of the
asset; other expenses incurred subsequent to purchase are booked to the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred. 
In periods subsequent to that of initial recognition, assets are recognised in the accounts on the basis of
the amortisable historical cost method. The relevant amortisation is carried out on the basis of the possible
residual useful life of the assets. The useful life of properties, plant and equipment subject to depreciation is
periodically re-assessed.

9 – Intangible assets
The item “Intangible assets” includes assets that can be identified and are without physical consistency, which
originate from legal or contractual rights and which are held to be used over a number of years. In the main,
they are represented by application software.
Intangible assets are recognised at cost, net of overall depreciation and permanent impairment losses, only
if the future economic benefits ascribable to the asset are likely and if the cost of the asset itself can be measured
reliably. Otherwise, the cost of the assets is booked to the Income Statement in the year in which it was incurred.
Intangible assets recognised in the balance sheet are amortised on the basis of their residual useful life according to
a straight-line method. The period and method of amortisation are re-assessed at the end of each financial period.

11 – Current and deferred taxes  
Current income taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax result for the year. These taxes are recognised as
tax liabilities if they exceed the amounts already paid in advance during the year, and as tax assets if the
amounts paid in advance exceed the taxes for the period.
Current taxes are booked as a revenue or as a charge and are included in profits or losses for the year except
for taxes that refer to items that are accredited or debited directly to shareholders’ equity, in  which case they
are booked directly to shareholders’ equity.

Deferred taxes are calculated by applying the so-called balance sheet liability method, bearing in mind the
fiscal effect connected with the temporary differences between the book value of assets and liabilities and their
fiscal value, which lead to taxable or deductible amounts in future periods.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated by applying current tax rates to taxable temporary differences
for which it is likely that taxes will effectively be sustained, and to deductible temporary differences for which
there is a reasonable certainty of recovery. Deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to the same kind of tax
which fall due in the same period are offset against each other.
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If deferred tax assets and liabilities refer to items booked to the income statement, the contra-item is the associated
income tax. When deferred tax assets and liabilities refer to transactions directly involving shareholders’
equity, with no direct influence on the income statement (such as adjustments relating to first adoption of
IAS/IFRS, and measurements of financial instruments available for sale or of cash flow hedging derivatives),
they are booked as contra-entries to shareholders’ equity, and entered in the specific reserves if appropriate. 
Assets and liabilities booked for deferred tax assets and liabilities are systematically assessed to take into account
both any amendments in legal provisions or changes in rates and any different subjective situations of the
Group companies.

12 – Provisions for risks and charges 
Provisions for risks and charges include allocations for liabilities with amounts or due dates that are uncertain
and that relate to present obligations resulting from a past event for which the expenditure of financial
resources is likely in order to fulfil the said obligation, as long as the relevant amount can  be reliably estimated. 
If the time factor is significant, the provisions, which are recognised in contra-items in the income statement, are
discounted at current market rates. 
The item includes provisions for early retirement incentives, applying the rules of the national contracts for bank
workers and of specific company agreements.

12.1 – Provisions for retirement funds and similar benefits
Staff pension funds include the various forms of complementary retirement schemes with defined benefits,
established to implement company agreements and recognised in the accounts in compliance with the provisions
of IAS 19 "Employee benefits". 
Liabilities relating to such plans and the associated social security costs of current employee service are
determined by independent actuaries on the basis of actuarial and financial hypotheses defined by the Dexia
Group.
The actuarial gains or losses, considered cumulatively, are booked to the income statement on the basis of the
so-called “corridor” method. The part of actuarial gains or losses not recognised at the end of the previous
period, which exceeds whichever is greater between 10% of the current value of the benefits generated by the plan,
and 10% of the fair value of the assets serving the plan, is booked to the income statement on the basis of the
average residual duration of the Fund’s benefits. 
The regular contributions charged to the Company are booked to the income statement and determined on the
basis of employee service.

12.2 – Other provisions 
This item includes provisions made against legal and implicit obligations existing at the close of the period,
including provisions for employee early retirement schemes and other social security and health charges,
and provisions for the creation of the reserve required for paying employees their long-service bonuses
according to the terms of company regulations.
These liabilities are determined, in the same way as pension funds, on the basis of an assessment conducted
by an independent actuary using the methods laid down in IAS 19. 
The actuarial gains and losses are therefore recognized in the balance sheet with a contra-item in the income
statement.
The provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

13 – Payables and securities in issue
The items “Due to banks”, “Due to customers”, and “Securities in issue” include various forms of provisioning
from banks and customers, reverse repurchase agreements and provisioning through bonds and other funding
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instruments in issue (net of any portions repurchased). 
Initial recognition of such financial liabilities is made when the sums collected are received or when the securities
are issued, on the basis of the fair value of the liabilities, which is normally equal to the amount received or
the issue price, with an increase for any additional costs/revenues directly connected to the single funding or
bond issue operation and not reimbursed by the lender. Internal administrative costs are excluded. 
After initial recognition, debts and the securities in issue, with the exception of on-demand and short-term
entries booked at the price received, are valued at their amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have expired or are extinguished. They are also derecognised in
the case of repurchase of  previously issued securities. The difference between the book value of a liability and
the amount paid for purchase is booked to the Income Statement. 
Replacement on the market of own securities after buyback is considered a new issue with recognition at the
new placement price, with no effect on the Income Statement.

14 – Financial liabilities for trading 
The item includes the negative value of trading derivatives.
All financial liabilities for trading are initially booked on the trade date and are designated at fair value and
the result of the valuation is entered on the income statement.

16 – Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are first entered in the accounting currency, applying the exchange rate in
force at the moment of the transaction.
At the end of every financial year or interim period, foreign currency items are measured as follows:
• cash items are converted at the exchange rate in force on the balance sheet date;
• non-cash items are carried at their historical cost converted at the exchange rate in force on the date of the

transaction;
• non-cash items designated at fair value are converted at the exchange rate in force on the balance sheet

date.
Exchange rate differences resulting from the settlement of cash elements or from the conversion of non-cash
elements at rates other than those of the initial conversion or the conversion rate of the previous financial
statements, are booked to the Income Statement of the financial period in which they arise.
When a gain or loss relating to a non-monetary item is recognised in shareholders’ equity, the exchange rate
difference associated with this item is also booked to shareholders’ equity. On the contrary, if a gain or loss
is booked to the income statement, the associated exchange rate difference is also booked to the income statement.

17 – Other information

17.1– Accruals and deferrals
Accrued income and deferred expenses include portions of revenues/expenses relating to several financial
periods in part already matured during the current financial period (and in the previous ones) but not
yet received/paid. Deferred income and expenses include portions of revenues/expenses already received/paid
in the reporting period (or in previous ones) but relating to the current financial period or subsequent
ones. 
These amounts are recognised in the balance sheet, adjusting the assets and liabilities they refer to.

17.2 – Recognition of revenues and costs
Revenues from the sale of goods or the provision of services are recognised in the balance sheet at the fair value
of the consideration received on the basis of the accruals concept. In the majority of cases the consideration
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consists of cash or similar means and the amount of the revenues is the sum of cash or similar means received
or due.
Costs are booked to the income statement in the periods when the associated revenues are recognised.

17.3 –Valuation reserves
This item includes valuation reserves relating to financial assets available for sale and cash flow hedges, net
of the associated current or deferred taxation.
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PART B - COMMENTS ON THE BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

SECTION 1 - Cash and cash equivalents – Item 10

1.1 Cash and cash equivalents: breakdown
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) Cash 3 3 
b) Unrestricted deposits at Central Banks
Total 3 3 

SECTION 2 - Financial assets held for trading - Item 20

2.1 Financial assets held for trading: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted

A Cash assets
1. Debt securities

1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities

2. Equity securities
3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loan facilities

4.1 Repurchase agreements
4.2 Others

5. Impaired assets
6. Assets sold but not derecognized
Total A
B Derivative instruments
1. Financial derivatives 952,139 1,290,042 

1.1 for trading 952,139 1,290,042 
1.2 associated with the fair value option
1.3 others

2. Credit derivatives 11,310 8,179
2.1 for trading 11,310 8,179 
2.2 associated with the fair value option
2.3 others

Total B 963,449 1,298,221 

Total (A+B) 963,449 1,298,221 
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2.2 Financial assets held for trading: breakdown by debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Total  Total 
31/12/2007 31/12/2006 

A. Cash assets
1. Debt securities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other issuers

2. Equity securities
a) Banks
b) Other issuers:

- insurance companies
- financial companies
- non-financial companies
- others

3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loan facilities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

5. Impaired assets
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

6. Assets sold but not derecognized
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other issuers

Total A
B. Derivative instruments 963,449 1,298,221 

a) Banks 469,451 432,656 
b) Customers 493,998 865,565 

Total B 963,449 1,298,221 
Total (A+B) 963,449 1,298,221
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2.3 Financial assets held for trading: derivative instruments
thousands of euros

Types of derivatives/underlying Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
assets rates and gold securities
A) Listed derivatives
1. Financial derivatives:

• With equity swap
- Options bought
- Other derivatives

• Without equity swap
- Options bought
- Other derivatives

2. Credit derivatives:
• With equity swap
• Without equity swap

Total A
B) Unlisted derivatives
1. Financial derivatives: 899,170 11,651 31,662 0 9,656 952,139 1,290,042 

• With equity swap 11,651 11,651 5,957 
- Options bought
- Other derivatives 11,651 11,651 5,957 

• Without equity swap 899,170 31,662 9,656 940,488 1,284,085 
- Options bought 1,431 21,617 23,048 66,816 
- Other derivatives 897,739 10,045 9,656 917,440 1,217,269 

2. Credit derivatives: 0 0 0 11,310 11,310 8,179 
• With equity swap
• Without equity swap 11,310 11,310 8,179 

Total B 899,170 11,651 31,662 11,310 9,656 963,449 1,298,221 
Total (A+B) 899,170 11,651 31,662 11,310 9,656 963,449 1,298,221

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



SECTION 4 - Financial assets available for sale - Item 40

4.1 Financial assets available for sale: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted 

1. Debt securities 787,953 2,715,204 9,189,691 5,432,935 
1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities 787,953 2,715,204 9,189,691 5,432,935      

2. Equity securities 142,013 141,883 
2.1 Carried at fair value 142,013 141,883 
2.2 Carried at cost

3. Mutual fund shares 1,362 674 
4. Loan facilities
5. Impaired assets
6. Assets sold but not derecognized 5,129,223 5,767,688 166,552 465,128 
Total 5,917,176 8,626,267 9,356,243 6,040,620 

The "assets sold but not derecognized" include securities sold to the vehicle company DCC for securitization
for which all the associated risks and benefits have been retained and financial assets used in repurchase
agreements. In 2006 the latter assets were included in "Debt securities".

Details relating to equity securities and mutual fund shares are shown below:

thousands of euros
Equity securities and mutual fund shares Financial Statements at 31/12/2007 AFS reserve at 31/12/2007

net of taxes
Istituto per il Credito Sportivo 140,276 113,882
European Investment Fund 1,736 726 
Idroenergia S.c.r.l. 1 0
Europolis Invest S.A. 0 (17) 
Equity securities 142,013 114,591 
Dimensione Network Fund       (Mutual fund shares) 606 (127) 
Mid Capital Mezzanine Fund   (Mutual fund shares) 756 (50)
Mutual fund shares 1,362 (177) 
Total 143,375 114,414

As regards the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo (ICS), Dexia Crediop S.p.A. holds 2,065,864 shares, with a par
value of 1 euro each, out of a total of 9,554,452 shares, representing a stake of 21.622%. Since the interest held
by Dexia Crediop S.p.A. does not express a corresponding level of voting rights nor can be classified as
of significant influence, the interest has been classified among financial assets available for sale (AFS).

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



4.2 Financial assets available for sale: breakdown by debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Total Total 
31/12/2007 31/12/2006 

1. Debt securities 3,503,157 14,622,626 
a) Governments and Central banks 90,149 1,078,111 
b) Other public bodies 1,133,844 5,429,006 
c) Banks 716,884 2,307,392 
d) Other issuers 1,562,280 5,808,117 

2. Equity securities 142,013 141,883 
a) Banks 142,012 141,882 
b) Other issuers 1 1 

- insurance companies
- financial companies
- non-financial companies 1 1 
- others

3. Mutual fund shares 1,362 674 
4. Loan facilities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

5. Impaired assets
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

6. Assets sold but not derecognized 10,896,911 631,680 
a) Governments and Central banks 3,354,808 0 
b) Other public bodies 4,961,595 631,680 
c) Banks 762,237 0 
d) Other subjects 1,818,271 0 

Total 14,543,443 15,396,863 

4.3 Financial assets available for sale: hedged assets  
thousands of euros

Assets hedged 
Assets / Type of hedging 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 

Fair value Cash flows Fair value Cash flows 
1. Debt securities 7,438,610 426,342 7,364,398 0 
2. Equity securities
3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loan facilities
5. Portfolio
Total 7,438,610 426,342 7,364,398 0 
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4.4 Financial assets available for sale: assets with specific hedges
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Total Total 
31/12/2007 31/12/2006 

1. Financial assets with specific fair value hedges: 7,438,610 7,364,398 
a) interest-rate risk 6,657,224 6,525,019 
b) price risk
c) exchange rate risk
d) credit risk
e) multiple risks 781,386 839,379 

2. Financial assets with specific cash flow hedges 426,342 0 
a) interest-rate risk 426,342 0 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

Total 7,864,952 7,364,398

4.5 Financial assets available for sale other than those sold but not derecognized and impaired assets:
annual change 

thousands of euros
Debt securities Equity securities Mutual fund shares Loans Total  

A. Opening balances 14,622,626 141,883 674 0 14,765,183 
B. Increases 4,305,935 130 982 0 4,307,047 

B1. Purchases 4,262,755 982 4,263,737 
B2. Increases in FV 27,144 130 27,274 
B3. Writebacks
- booked to the income statement X 
- booked to shareholders' equity
B4. Tranfers from other portfolios
B5. Other changes 16,036 16,036 

C. Decreases 15,425,404 0 294 0 15,425,698 
C1. Sales 5,741,334 205 5,741,539 
C2. Redemptions 479,757 479,757 
C3. Decreases in FV 207,393 89 207,482 
C4. Writedowns for impairment
- booked to the income statement
- booked to shareholders' equity
C5. Transfers to other portfolios
C6. Other changes 8,996,920 8,996,920 

D. Closing balances 3,503,157 142,013 1,362 0 3,646,532 
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SECTION 5 - Financial assets held to maturity - Item 50

5.1 Financial assets held to maturity: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

1. Debt securities 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691 
1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691 

2. Loan facilities
3. Impaired assets
4. Assets sold but not derecognized
Total 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691 

5.2 Financial assets held to maturity: debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Debt securities 477,813 525,580 

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies 477,813 525,580 
c) Banks
d) Other issuers

2. Loan facilities
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

3. Impaired assets
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

4. Assets sold but not derecognized
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

Total 477,813 525,580 
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5.4 Financial assets held to maturity other than those sold but not derecognized and impaired assets:
annual change  

thousands of euros
Debt securities Loans Total  

A. Opening balances 525,580 0 525,580 
B. Increases 6 0 6

B1. Purchases
B2. Writebacks
B3. Tranfers from other portfolios
B4. Other changes 6 

C. Decreases 47,773 0 47,773 
C1. Sales
C2. Redemptions 41,950 41,950 
C3. Writedowns
C4. Transfers to other portfolios
C5. Other changes 5,823 5,823 

D. Closing balances 477,813 0 477,813 

SECTION 6 - Due from banks - Item 60

6.1 Due from banks: breakdown by type

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
A. Due from Central Banks 104,920 0

1. Restricted deposits
2. Compulsory reserve 89,751 
3. Reverse repurchase agreements
4. Others 15,169 

B. Due from banks  12,971,025 8,351,469 
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 48,003 167,327 
2. Restricted deposits 2,765,355 2,431,082 
3. Other loans: 6,675,195 5,477,744 

3.1 Reverse repurchase agreements 1,613,132 805,362 
3.2 Leasing
3.3 Others 5,062,063 4,672,382 

4. Debt securities 2,387,442 275,316 
4.1 Structured securities
4.2 Other debt securities 2,387,442 275,316 

5. Impaired assets
6. Assets sold but not derecognized 1,095,030 0

Total (book value) 13,075,945 8,351,469 
Total (fair value) 13,018,835 8,171,622 

"Assets sold but not derecognized" include financial assets used in repurchase agreements.
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6.2 Due from banks: microhedged assets

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Loans with specific fair value hedges: 3,183,646 2,983,983 

a) interest-rate risk 3,129,927 2,983,983 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) credit risk
d) multiple risks 53,719 

2. Loans with specific cash flow hedges: 2,589,104 1,047,252 
a) interest rate 2,589,104 1,047,252 
b) exchange rate
c) other risks

Total 5,772,750 4,031,235 

SECTION 7 - Due from customers - Item 70

7.1 Due from customers: breakdown by type

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Current accounts
2. Reverse repurchase agreements
3. Loans 15,472,292 15,387,357 
4. Credit cards, personal loans, salary-backed loans
5. Leasing
6. Factoring
7. Other transactions 198,084 100,370 
8. Debt securities 1,896,523 2,760,371 

8.1 Structured securities
8.2 Other debt securities 1,896,523 2,760,371 

9. Impaired assets 147 170 
10. Assets sold but not derecognized 1,957,022 1,298,445 
Total (book value) 19,524,068 19,546,713 
Total (fair value) 19,618,096 20,218,583 

"Assets sold but not derecognized" include securities sold to the vehicle company DCC for securitization for
which all the associated risks and benefits have been retained and financial assets used in repurchase agreements.
In 2006 the latter assets were included in "Debt securities".
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7.2 Due from customers: breakdown by debtors/issuers

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Debt securities: 1,896,523 2,760,371 

a) Governments
b) Other public bodies 1,842,095 2,634,347 
c) Other issuers 54,428 126,024 

- non-financial companies 3,494 45,908 
- financial companies 50,934 80,116 
- insurance companies
- others

2. Loans to: 15,670,376 15,487,727 
a) Governments 7,439,422 2,456,442 
b) Other public bodies 6,217,570 9,412,835 
c) Other subjects 2,013,384 3,618,450 

- non-financial companies 1,225,666 2,211,759 
- financial companies 773,612 1,379,984 
- insurance companies 0 0   
- others 14,106 26,707 

3. Impaired assets: 147 170 
a) Governments
b) Other public bodies 147 170 
c) Other subjects

- non-financial companies
- financial companies
- insurance companies
- others

4. Assets sold but not derecognized: 1,957,022 1,298,445 
a) Governments
b) Other public bodies 1,207,267 1,298,445 
c) Other subjects 749,755 0 

- non-financial companies
- financial companies
- insurance companies
- others 749,755 0 

Total 19,524,068 19,546,713 

7.3 Due from customers: microhedged assets

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Loans with specific fair value hedges: 11,044,405 12,091,262 

a) interest-rate risk 11,041,037 12,087,137 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) credit risk
d) multiple risks 3,368 4,125 

2. Loans with specific cash flow hedges: 2,944,734 2,948,836 
a) interest-rate risk 2,944,734 2,948,836 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

Total 13,989,139 15,040,098 
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SECTION 8 - Hedging derivatives - Item 80

8.1 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by type of contract and underlying assets
thousands of euros

Types of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other Total
rates and gold securities

A) Listed derivatives
1. Financial derivatives:

• With capital swap
- Options bought
- Other derivatives

• Without capital swap
- Options bought
- Other derivatives

2. Credit derivatives:
• With equity swap
• Without equity swap

Total A
B) Unlisted derivatives
1. Financial derivatives: 779,783 118,856 561,802 0 48,748 1,509,189 

• With equity swap 118,382 118,382 
- Options bought
- Other derivatives 118,382 118,382 

• Without equity swap 779,783 474 561,802 48,748 1,390,807 
- Options bought 120,041 120,041 
- Other derivatives 779,783 474 441,761 48,748 1,270,766 

2. Credit derivatives: 3,072 3,072 
• With equity swap
• Without equity swap 3,072 3,072 

Total B 779,783 118,856 561,802 3,072 48,748 1,512,261 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 779,783 118,856 561,802 3,072 48,748 1,512,261 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 1,085,377 66,020 0 3,585 0 1,154,982 

8.2 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by portfolios hedged and type of hedging (book value)
thousands of euros

Transaction/Type of hedging Fair value hedges Cash flows hedges
interest exchange credit price multiple generic specific generic

rate risk rate risk risk risk risk 
1. Financial assets available 

for sale 203,816 115,074 X 24,406 X 
2. Loans 502,579 X 849 X X 
3. Financial assets held to 

maturity X X X X 
4. Portfolio X X X X X 461 X 
Total assets 706,395 0 0 0 115,923 461 24,406 0 
1. Financial liabilities 163,032 0 X 496,514 X 5,530 X 
2. Portfolio X X X X X X 
Total liabilities 163,032 0 0 496,514 0 5,530 0
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SECTION 9 - Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged potfolios - Item 90

9.1 Fair value adjustments of hedged assets: breakdown by portfolios hedged

thousands of euros
Fair value adjustments of hedged assets/Securities 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Increases 407 0

1.1 of specific portfolios: 407 
a) loans 247 
b) assets available for sale 160

1.2 total
2. Decreases 493 0

2.1 of specific portfolios: 493 
a) loans 493 
b) assets available for sale

2.2 total
Total (86) 0

9.2 Assets of the banking group with macro hedging of interest rate risk: breakdown

thousands of euros
Hedged assets 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1.  Loans (246) 0
2.  Assets held for sale  160 0
3.  Portfolio 0 0
Total (86) 0
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SECTION 10 - Equity investments – Item 100

10.1 Equity investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies or companies subject to significant
influence: information on the interests held 

Name Head office % of equity held % of votes held
A. Full subsidiaries

1 Crediop Overseas Bank Limited Cayman Isl. 100
2 DCC – Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l. Rome 100
3 Dexia Crediop Ireland (1) Dublin 100

B. Jointly controlled companies
C. Companies subject to significant influence

(1) This period saw the incorporation of the subsidiary Dexia Crediop Ireland (DCI), an unlimited liability company constituted under Irish law. Its registered
offices are at 6 George’s Dock, Dublin 1 and the share capital amounts to Euro 700 million represented by 700 million shares, each with a nominal value of
1 euro.
- 699,999,999 shares are held by Dexia Crediop S.p.A.;
- 1 share is held by Dexia Investments Ireland, in its capacity as Trustee for Dexia Crediop S.p.A.   

10.2 Equity investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies or companies subject to significant
influence: accounting information

thousands of euros
Name Total Total Profit Net Book Fair 

assets revenue (Loss) equity value value
A. Full subsidiaries

1 Crediop Overseas Bank Limited 1,310,275 127,301 2,153 52,397 50,000
2 DCC – Dexia Crediop

per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l. 60 68 0 15 15
3 Dexia Crediop Ireland 2,446,364 13,259 4,062 690,140 700,000

B. Jointly controlled companies
C. Companies subject to significant influence
Total 3,756,699 140,628 6,215 742,552 750,015

10.3 Equity investments: annual change
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
A. Opening balances 50,015 50,015 
B. Increases 700,000 0 
B.1 Purchases 700,000 0 
B.2 Writebacks
B.3 Revaluations
B.4 Other changes
C. Decreases 0 0 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Writedowns
C.3 Other changes
D. Closing balances 750,015 50,015 
E. Total revaluations 0 0
F. Total adjustments 0 0
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SECTION 11 - Property, plant and equipment – Item 110

11.1 Property, plant and equipment: breakdown of assets carried at cost

thousands of euros
Assets/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
A. Assets for business purposes
1.1 company owned 44,762 44,592 

a) land 28,844 28,844 
b) buildings 13,477 13,220 
c) furniture 2,161 2,229 
d) electronic systems 0 0 
e) others 280 299 

1.2 acquired on lease
a) land
b) buildings
c) furniture
d) electronic systems
e) others

Total A 44,762 44,592 
B. Assets held as investments
2.1 company owned 49 50 

a) land
b) buildings 49 50 
c) furniture

2.2 acquired on lease
a) land
b) buildings
c) furniture

Total B 49 50 
Total (A+B) 44,811 44,642 

Additional information
The amortization method used for tangible assets, which is deemed to reflect the ways in which the associated
future economic benefits will be used, is the straight-line method. This method involves the depreciation of
a constant charge throughout the useful life of the asset if its residual value does not change. During the period
there have been no changes to the expected uses of the future economic benefits, such as would require changes
to the amortization method.
The useful life of assets is calculated on the basis of their expected usefulness. Since land and works of art have
an unlimited useful life, they are not subject to depreciation.
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11.3 Property, plant and equipment for business purposes: annual change
thousands of euros

Land Buildings Furniture Electronic Others Total
systems

A. Gross opening balances 28,844 19,970 3,226 0 1,068 53,108 
A.1 Net total reductions in value 0 6,750 997 0 769 8,516 
A.2 Net opening balances 28,844 13,220 2,229 0 299 44,592 
B. Increases: 0 868 39 0 77 984 
B.1 Purchases 0 852 39 0 77 968 
B.2 Expenses for capitalised improvements
B.3 Writebacks
B.4 Increases in fair value booked to

a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Reclassification from buildings held as investments
B.7 Other changes 16 16 
C. Decreases: 0 612 107 0 95 814 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Depreciation 0 612 107 0 95 814 
C.3 Impairment losses booked to:

a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

C.4 Decreases in fair value booked to
a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Reclassification to:

a) tangible assets held as investments
b) assets held for sale

C.7 Other changes
D. Net closing balances 28,844 13,476 2,161 0 281 44,762 
D.1 Net total adjustments 0 7,362 1,104 0 865 9,331 
D.2 Gross closing balances 28,844 20,838 3,265 0 1,146 54,093 
E. Measurement at cost
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11.4 Property, plant and equipment held as investments: annual change
Property, plant and equipment held as investments are carried at cost as allowed by IAS 40. 

thousands of euros
Land Buildings 

A. Opening balances 0 50 
B. Increases 0 0 
B.1 Purchases
B.2 Expenses for capitalised improvements
B.3 Net increases in fair value
B.4 Writebacks
B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Reclassification of fixed assets for business purposes
B.7 Other changes
C. Decreases 0 1 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Depreciation 0 1 
C.3 Net decreases in fair value
C.4 Writedowns for impairment
C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Transfers to other asset portfolios

a) Properties for business purposes
b) Non-current assets held for sale

C.7 Other changes
D. Closing balances 0 49 
E. Designated at fair value 0 155 
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SECTION 12 – Intangible assets – Item 120

12.1 Intangible assets: breakdown by type of asset 
thousands of euros

Assets/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Limited Unlimited Limited Unlimited

duration duration duration duration
A.1 Goodwill X X 
A.2 Other intangible assets 1,952 2,034 
A.2.1 Assets carried at cost: 1,952 2,034 

a) Intangible assets generated internally
b) Other assets 1,952 2,034 

A.2.2 Assets carried at fair value:
a) Intangible assets generated internally
b) Other assets 

Total 1,952 2,034 

Intangible assets consist of software purchased from third parties in the process of amortization. 

12.2 Intangible assets: annual change 
thousands of euros

Goodwill Other intangible assets: Other intangible Total
generated internally assets: others
Limit. Unlim. Limit. Unlim.

A. Opening balances 20,356 20,356 
A.1 Reductions in total net values 18,322 18,322 
A.2 Net opening balances 2,034 2,034 
B. Increases 1,932 1,932 
B.1 Purchases 1,932 1,932 
B.2 Increases in internal intangible assets X 
B.3 Writebacks X 
B.4 Increases in fair value: 

- to shareholders' equity X 
- on income statement X 

B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Other changes
C. Decreases 2,014 2,014 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Writedowns 2,014 2,014 

- Depreciation X 2,014 2,014 
- Devaluations:

+ shareholders' equity X 
+ income statement

C.3 Decreases in fair value: 
- to shareholders' equity X 
- on income statement X 

C.4 Reclassification to non-current  
assets held for sale

C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Other changes
D. Net closing balances 1,952 1,952 
D.1 Total net adjustments 20,336 20,336 
E. Gross closing balances 22,288 22,288 
F. Measurement at cost
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SECTION 13 – Tax credits and liabilities - Item 130 of the assets and Item 80 of the
liabilities

13.1 Deferrred tax assets: breakdown
Deferred tax assets mainly refer to negative fair values of the AFS and CFH reserves, as well as to provisions
for risks and charges.
The deferred tax asset amount has been adjusted to the new nominal tax rates for IRES (Corporate Income
Tax) and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), which should come into effect from 2008 onwards,
in accordance with Italian Law no. 244/2007. This has led to a reduction in the pre-paid tax assets, as shown
in the tables below, with an impact on the Income Statement of Euro 2,164 thousand and on Shareholders'
Equity of Euro 1,729 thousand.

13.2 Deferred tax liabilities: breakdown
The deferred tax liabilities mainly refer to positive fair values of the AFS and CFH reserves and equity investments,
to provisions for risks on loans recorded as a non-accounting entry, and to the deferment of taxability
of capital gains (properties).
The deferred tax liability has been adjusted to the new nominal tax rates for IRES (Corporate Income Tax)
and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), which should come into effect in 2008, in accordance with
Law 244/2007. This has led to a reduction in deferred tax liabilities, as shown in the tables below, with an
impact on the Income Statement of Euro 27,243 thousand and on Shareholders' Equity of Euro 4,488 thousand.

13.3 Change in deferred tax assets (with matching entry in income statement) 
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1.  Initial balance 17,433 20,289 
2.  Increases 1,024 1,394 
2.1 Deferred tax assets arising in the year  1,024 1,394 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) writebacks
d) others 1,024 1,394 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates 
2.3 Other increases
3.  Decreases 5,689 4,250 
3.1 Deferred tax assets cancelled in the year 3,525 4,250 

a) reversals 3,525 4,250 
b) written down as now considered unrecoverable 
c) change in accounting policies 

3.2 Reductions in tax rates 2,164 0 
3.3 Other decreases 
4.  Final balance 12,768 17,433 
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13.4 Changes in deferred tax liabilities (with matching entry in income statement) 
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Initial balance 169,709 152,316 
2. Increases 17,317 17,863 
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities arising in the year  17,317 17,863 

a) relating to previous years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies  
c) others 17,317 17,863 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates
2.3 Other increases 
3. Decreases 27,688 470 
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities cancelled in the year 445 470 

a) reversals 445 470 
b) change in accounting policies  
c) others 

3.2 Reductions in tax rates 27,243 0 
3.3 Other decreases 
4. Final balance 159,338 169,709 

13.5 Changes in deferred tax assets  (with matching entry to equity) 
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Initial balance 11,146 22,419 
2. Increases 4,976 11,145 
2.1 Deferred tax assets arising in the year  4,976 11,145 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) others 4,976 11,145 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates  
2.3 Other increases
3. Decreases 1,729 22,418 
3.1 Deferred tax assets cancelled in the year  0 22,418 

a) reversals 0 22,418 
b) written down as now considered unrecoverable  
c) change in accounting policies 

3.2 Reduction in tax rates    1,729 0
3.3 Other decreases
4. Final balance 14,393 11,146 
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13.6 Change in deferred tax liabilities (with matching entry to equity) 
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Initial balance 30,858 40,185 
2. Increases 4,636 24,353 
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities arising in the year 4,636 24,353 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) others 4,636 24,353 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates      
2.3 Other increases
3. Decreases 7,855 33,680 
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities cancelled in the year 3,367 33,680 

a) reversals 3,367 33,680 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) others

3.2 Reduction in tax rates   4,488 0 
3.3 Other decreases
4. Final balance 27,639 30,858 

13.7 Assets in the form of current taxes: breakdown
The assets in the form of current taxes mainly refer to the difference between the tax advances paid and the
sum allocated for taxes for the period.

SECTION 15 - Other assets - Item 150

15.1 Other assets: breakdown

thousands of euros
Description 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Sundry accrued expenses and deferred income - -
2. Adjustments to exchange rate derivatives 65,494 13,625 
3. Other assets 53,998 31,338 
Total 118,746 44,963 
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LIABILITIES

SECTION 1 - Amounts due to banks - Item 10

1.1 Amounts due to banks: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Amounts due to central banks 14,824,882 9,833,998 
2. Amounts due to banks  9,633,835 9,731,163 
2.1 Current accounts and demand deposits 98,127 757,233 
2.2 Restricted deposits 2,256,308 1,266,332 
2.3 Loan facilities 5,955,952 6,587,892 

2.3.1 Leasing
2.3.2 Others 5,955,952 6,587,892 

2.4 Amounts due for commitments to repurchase own equity instruments
2.5 Amounts due for assets sold but not derecognized 1,323,448 1,119,706 

2.5.1 Repurchase agreements 1,323,448 1,119,706 
2.5.2 Others

2.6 Other payables
Total 24,458,717 19,565,161 
Fair value 24,433,281 19,590,247 

1.2 Amounts due to banks: subordinated debts
On 31 December 2007 subordinated debts stood at Euro 400,222 thousand.

1.4 Details of item 10 "Due to banks": payables with specific hedges
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Debts with specific fair value hedges: 1,494,173 2,071,228 

a) interest-rate risk 443,929 1,895,413 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) more than one risk 1,050,244 175,815 

2. Debts with specific cash flow hedges: 11,343,938 594,786 
a) interest-rate risk 11,343,938 594,786 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks
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SECTION 2 – Amounts due to customers – Item 20

2.1 Amounts due to customers: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 754,095 847,623 
2. Restricted deposits 0 437,710 
3. Public funds administered 0 0
4. Loan facilities 1,248,233 969,616 

4.1 Leasing 
4.2 Others 1,248,233 969,616 

5. Amounts due for commitments to repurchase own equity instruments 0 0 
6. Amounts due for assets sold but not derecognized 2,627,544 822,867 

6.1 Repurchase agreements 789,217 822,867 
6.2 Others 1,838,327 0

7. Other payables
Total  4,629,872 3,077,816 
Fair value 4,561,833 3,069,915 

The item "Liabilities against assets sold but not derecognized" includes amounts due connected with transac-
tions for the sale of financial assets which do not fulfil the requisites of IAS 39 for total derecognition.

SECTION 3 - Securities in issue - Item 30

3.1 Securities in issue: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of security/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

A. Listed securities
1. Bonds 6,625,091 6,390,463 6,080,730 6,043,759 

1.1 structured
1.2 others 6,625,091 6,390,463 6,080,730 6,043,759 

2. Other securities
2.1 structured
2.2 others

B. Unlisted securities
1. Bonds 11,736,688 11,579,654 13,243,270 13,110,338 

1.1 structured
1.2 others 11,736,688 11,579,654 13,243,270 13,110,338 

2. Other securities 586 586 586 586 
2.1 structured
2.2 others 586 586 586 586 

Total 18,362,365 17,970,703 19,324,586 19,154,683 
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3.3 Details of item 30 "Securities in issue": securities with specific hedges
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Securities with specific fair value hedges: 17.901.811 17.077.977 

a) interest-rate risk 7.694.143 16.983.768 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) more than one risk 10.207.668 94.209 

2. Securities with specific cash flow hedges: 50.433 63.061 
a) interest-rate risk 50.433 63.061 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

SECTION 4 - Financial liabilities for trading - Item 40

4.1 Financial liabilities for trading: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
FV FV

NV Listed Unlisted FV* NV Listed Unlisted FV*
A. Cash liabilities
1. Amounts due to banks
2. Amounts due to customers
3. Debt securities 

3.1 Bonds X 
3.1.1 Structured X X 
3.1.2 Other bonds X X 

3.2 Other securities X 
3.2.1 Structured X X 
3.2.2 Others X X 

Total A X 
B. Derivative instruments X X X 
1. Financial derivatives 952,337 X 1,251,698 

1.1 Trading X 952,337 X X 1,251,698 X 
1.2 Associated with

fair value option X X X X 
1.3 Others X X X X 

2. Credit derivatives 6,927 X 
2.1 Trading X 6,927 X X X 
2.2 Associated with 

fair value option X X X X 
2.3 Others X X X X 

Total B X 959,264 X X 1,251,698 X 
Total (A+B) X 959,264 X X 1,251,698 X 

Key

FV = fair value

FV* = fair value calculated excluding the value changes due to variation in issuer's creditworthiness since the date of issue

NV = nominal or notional value
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4.4 Financial liabilities for trading: derivative instruments 
thousands of euros

Types of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
rates and gold securities

A) Listed derivatives 
1. Financial derivatives: 

• With equity swap 
- options issued 
- other derivatives

• Without equity swap 
- options issued 
- other derivatives 

2. Credit derivatives: 
• With equity swap 
• Without equity swap 

Total A 
B) Unlisted derivatives 
1. Financial derivatives: 899,379 11,648 31,654 0 9,656 952,337 1,251,698 

• With equity swap 470 11,648 12,118 6,155 
- options issued 470 470 193 
- other derivatives 11,648 11,648 5,962 

• Without equity swap 898,909 31,654 9,656 940,219 1,245,543 
- options issued 2,102 21,736 23,838 66,921 
- other derivatives 896,807 9,918 9,656 916,381 1,178,622 

2. Credit derivatives: 6,927 6,927 0
• With equity swap 
• Without equity swap 6,927 6,927 0

Total B 899,379 11,648 31,654 6,927 9,656 959,264 1,251,698 
Total (A+B) 899,379 11,648 31,654 6,927 9,656 959,264 1,251,698 
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SECTION 6 - Hedging derivatives - Item 60

6.1 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by type of contract and underlying assets
thousands of euros

Types of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other Total
rates and gold securities

A) Listed derivatives 
1. Financial derivatives:

• With capital swap 
- options issued 
- other derivatives 

• Without capital swap 
- options issued 
- other derivatives 

2. Credit derivatives:
• With capital swap 
• Without capital swap 

Total A 
B) Unlisted derivatives 
1. Financial derivatives: 808,402 69,028 398,731 0 0 1,276,161 

• With equity swap 69,028 69,028 
- options issued
- other derivatives 69,028 69,028 

• Without equity swap 808,402 398,731 1,207,133 
- options issued 
- other derivatives 808,402 398,731 1,207,133 

2. Credit derivatives: 2,315 2,315 
• With equity swap 2,022 2,022 
• Without equity swap 293 293 

Total B 808,402 69,028 398,731 2,315 0 1,278,476 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 808,402 69,028 398,731 2,315 0 1,278,476 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 1,834,006 62,628 0 1,142 0 1,897,776 

6.2 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by portfolios hedged and type of hedging
thousands of euros

Transaction/Type of hedging Fair value Cash flows
Specifica generic specific generic

interest exchange credit price multiple
rate risk rate risk risk risk risk 

1. Financial assets available  
for sale 98,403 6,004 X 2,547 X 

2. Loans 369,106 X 2,786 X 218 X 
3. Financial assets held to  

maturity X X X X 
4. Portfolio X X X X X 402 X 
Total assets 467,509 0 0 0 8,790 402 2,765 0 
1. Financial liabilities 332,673 444,997 X 21,340 X 
2. Portfolio X X X X X X 
Total liabilities 332,673 0 0 0 444,997 0 21,340 0 
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SECTION 8 – Tax liabilities - Item 80

See section 13 of assets.

SECTION 10 - Other liabilities - Item 100

10.1 Other liabilities: breakdown
thousands of euros

Description 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Relations with suppliers and professionals 8,905 7,107 
2. Sundry accrued expenses and deferred income 2,366 2,836 
3. Other payables 35,719 31,203 
Total 46,990 41,146 

SECTION 11 - Provision for severance indemnities - Item 110

11.1 Provision for severance indemnities: annual change
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
A. Opening balances 5,762 5,353 
B. Increases 202 649 
B.1 Provision for the year 202 649 
B.2 Other increases
C. Decreases 1,550 240 
C.1 Indemnities paid 518 240 
C.2 Other decreases 1,032 0 
D. Closing balances 4,414 5,762 
Total 4,414 5,762 

Italian Legislative Decree no. 252/2005 introduced reforms to Severance Indemnities (TFR) and was followed by
various implemental decrees and memoranda issued by INPS (Italian Social Security) and the Tax Authorities. 
Due to the effect of the reforms to complementary pension schemes
employees had to make a choice (according to the procedure of explicit or tacit opting) with regard to the Sev.
Indem. quotas that would accrue from 1 January 2007 onwards, whether to:
a) allocate them to complementary pension schemes;
b) retain them within their employer's company, which would transfer the Sev. Indem. quotas to the Treasury

Fund created by INPS (hereafter referred to as the Fund).
On the basis of current legislation, the level of quotas referred to in the previous points may vary according  to
the type of employee.
Following these legislative changes, the calculation of the Sev. Indem. "accrued" on 1 January 2007 was modified,
which created an excess in the Fund as at 31 December 2006 amounting to Euro 1,032 thousand attributed
to the Income Statement for 2007.
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SECTION 12 - Provisions for risks and charges - Item 120

12.1 Provisions for risks and charges: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1 Provisions for retirement benefits 259 1,266 
2. Other provisions for risks and charges 1,163 1,616 

2.1 legal disputes
2.2 personnel expenses 1,124 1,577 
2.3 others 39 39 

Total 1,422 2,882 

12.2 Provisions for risks and charges: annual change
thousands of euros

Pension Other Total
funds provisions

A. Opening balances 1,266 1,616 2,882 
B. Increases 1,000 167 1,167 
B.1 Provision for the year 1,000 167 1,167 
B.2 Changes due to the passing of time
B.3 Changes due to variations in the discount rate
B.4 Other increases 
C. Decreases 2,007 620 2,627 
C.1 Use during the period 2,001 620 2,621 
C.2 Changes due to variations in the discount rate
C.3 Other decreases 6 6 
D. Closing balances 259 1,163 1,422 

12.3 Company defined-benefit pension funds
The sub-item "Pension funds and similar benefits" includes provisions recognized on the basis of IAS 19
"Employee benefits" against various forms of complementary retirement schemes with defined benefits.
These commitments are based on calculations carried out by independent Actuaries using the projected units
credit method. In particular, the provisions are the same as the current value of the defined-benefit obligations
net of the fair value of the fund's assets and having taken into consideration the actuarial profits and losses
not recognised in the balance sheet by applying the so-called "corridor option". This "corridor option" stipulates
that the actuarial profits/losses, taken in accumulation, which might come about due to the effect of adjustments
caused by the re-formulation of the previous actuarial assumptions, are only recognized for the part that
exceeds 10% of the higher amount between the fair value of the assets and the fair value of the obligation and
on the basis of the average residual duration of the benefits of the Fund and starting from the following period. 
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You can see below the information relating to the variations in the funds during the financial period, the
reconcilement between the current value of the funds, the current value of the assets serving the schemes
and the assets and liabilities entered in the balance sheet, together with the main actuarial assumptions.

thousands of euros
2007 2006

A Variations in the defined-benefit obligations
1. Fair value of obligations at the start of the year 41,432 42,300 
2. Retirement benefit costs relating to current employment 1,130 972 
3. Interest expenses 1,753 1,581 
4. Contributions from those taking part in the scheme 216 216 
5. Benefits paid out (1,949) (1,254)
6. Actuarial losses (profits) (3,040) (2,383)
7. Fair value of the obligations at the end of the year 39,542 41,432 
B. Variations in assets of the schemes
1. Fair value of assets at the start of the year 36,261 31,275 
2. Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022 
3. Employer contributions 1,857 5,002 
4. Contributions from those taking part in the scheme 216 216 
5. Benefits paid out (1,949) (1,254)
6. Actuarial losses (profits) on the assets 27 0 
7. Fair value of the assets at the end of the year 37,954 36,261 
C. Reconcilement of the obligations and assets of the schemes
Fair value of the obligations 39,542 41,432 
Fair value of the assets 37,954 36,261 
Actuarial deficit (surplus) on the financed schemes 648 4,282 
Actuarial deficit (surplus) on the non-financed schemes 940 889 
Actuarial losses (profits) not recognized 1,329 3,905 
Liabilities (assets) recognized 259 1,266 
D. Cost components
Retirement benefit costs relating to current employment 1,130 972
Interest expenses 1,753 1,581
Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022
Actuarial losses (profits) recorded in the balance sheet 98 438
Total costs recorded in the balance sheet 1,439 1,969
F. Summary of amounts recognized in the balance sheet
1. Balance sheet assets 745 0
2. Balance sheet liabilities 1,004 1,266
3. Balance of liabilities (assets) recognized in the balance sheet 259 1,266
G. Main actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 5.5% 4.5%
Expected rate of yield of the assets 5.5% 4.5%
Expected rate of salary increases 2.5% 2.5%
Inflation rate 2.5% 2.5%
H. Further comments
Average residual duration of the benefits of the funds (years) 10 10 

12.4 Provisions for risks and charges – other provisions
The "other provisions" amounting to Euro 1,163 thousand consist of:
- personnel expenses: The fund holds Euro 1,124 thousand for charges relating to early retirement incentive

schemes, employee bonuses for long service and life insurance benefits; 
- other risks and charges: the fund stands at Euro 39 thousand.
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SECTION 14 – Corporate capital - Items 130, 150, 160, 170, 180, 190 and 200

14.1 Corporate capital: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Share capital 450,210 450,210
2. Share premiums 
3. Reserves 453,801 411,542
4. (Treasury shares) 
5. Valuation reserves 129,593 121,737
6. Equity instruments 
7. Profit (Loss) for the period   85,829 92,864
Total  1,119,433 1,076,353

14.2 "Share capital" and "Treasury shares": breakdown
The share capital is fully subscribed and paid up and amounts to Euro 450,210,000 consisting of 174,500,000
ordinary shares with a nominal unit value of Euro 2.58. 

14.3  Equity - Number of shares: annual change
thousands of euros

Items/Types Ordinary Others
A. Shares existing at start of period 174,500,000 

- fully paid up 174,500,000 
- not fully paid up

A.1  Treasury shares ( - )
A.2 Shares in circulation: opening balance 174,500,000 
B. Increases
B.1 New issues

- against payment:
- company merger operations
- bond conversion
- exercise of warrants
- others

- free of charge:
- for employees
- for directors
- others

B.2 Sale of treasury shares
B.3 Other changes
C. Decreases
C.1 Cancelled
C.2 Purchase of treasury shares
C.3 Corporate sale transactions
C.4 Other changes
D. Shares in circulation: closing balance 174,500,000 
D.1 Treasury shares ( + )
D.2 Shares existing at end of period

- fully paid up 174,500,000 
- not fully paid up
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14.5 Profit reserves: other information
thousands of euros

Legal reserve Other reserves
A. Opening balances 58,460 353,082 
B. Increases 4,643 37,616 
Allocation of 2006 net income 4,643 37,616 
C. Decreases 0 0 
D. Closing balances 63,103 390,698 
Total 63,103 390,698 

The profit reserves consist of the legal reserve and the profits carried forward from previous periods in
accordance with the resolutions of the Shareholders' Assembly.
Pursuant to article 2430 of the Italian Civil Code, the legal reserve is constituted by the allocation of a portion
amounting to at least one twentieth of the net annual profits until the reserve reaches one fifth of the share
capital.

14.6 Valuation reserves: breakdown 
thousands of euros

Items/Components 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Financial assets available for sale 118,190 116,863 
2. Property, plant and equipment
3. Intangible assets 
4. Foreign investment hedging 
5. Cash flow hedging 11,403 4,874 
6. Exchange rate differences 
7. Non-current assets held for sale
8. Special revaluation laws 
Total  129,593 121,737 

14.7 Valuation reserves: annual change 
thousands of euros

Financial Tangible Intangible Foreign Cash Exchange Non- Special
assets assets assets investment flow rate current revaluation

available hedging hedging differences assets laws
for sale held 

for sale 
A. Opening balances 116,863 4,874 
B. Increases 54,054 21,667 
B1. Increases in fair value 48,070 21,667 X 
B2. Other changes 5,984 
C. Decreases 52,727 15,138 
C1. Decreases in fair value 45,915 15,138 X 
C2. Other changes 6,812 
D. Closing balances 118,190 11,403 

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



14.8 Reserves from valuation of financial assets available for sale: breakdown

thousands of euros
Assets/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Positive reserve Negative reserve Positive reserve Negative reserve
1. Debt securities 49,374 45,598 30,518 23,620 
2. Equity securities 114,608 17 110,088 16 
3. Mutual fund shares 0 177 0 107 
4. Loan facilities
Total  163,982 45,792 140,606 23,743 

14.9 Reserves from valuation of financial assets available for sale: annual change

thousands of euros
Debt Equity Mutual fund Loans

securities securities shares
1. Opening balances 6,898 110,072 (107) 0
2. Increases 49,535 4,519 0 0
2.1 Increases in fair value 47,918 152 
2.2 Switched to income statement, negative reserves 1,617 

- for impairment
- for disposal 1,617 

2.3 Other changes 4,367 
3. Decreases 52,657 0 70 0
3.1 Decreases in fair value 45,845 70 
3.2 Switched to income statement, positive reserves: 6,812 0

- for disposal 6,812 
3.3 Other changes
4. Closing balances 3,776 114,591 (177) 0

The changes to the AFS reserve on equity securities shown in the item "Other changes" is to be attributed to the
adjustment in deferred taxes calculated following the change to IRES nominal tax rates as well as to the
regulations relating to fiscal relevance of qualified capital gains. 
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OTHER INFORMATION

1. Guarantees given and commitments   
thousands of euros

Transactions 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1)  Financial guarantees 5,158,887 7,098,595

a) Banks 4,889,609 6,806,086 
b) Customers 269,278 292,509 

2)  Commercial guarantees 0 0
a) Banks
b) Customers

3)  Irrevocable commitments to grant finance 4,556,760 4,930,657
a) Banks 43,035 94,705 

i) certain to be called on 43,035 94,705 
ii) not certain to be called on 

b) Customers 4,513,725 4,835,952 
i) certain to be called on 4,513,725 4,835,952 
ii) not certain to be called on 

4)  Commitments underlying credit derivatives: sales of protection 852,626 857,886
5) Assets pledged in guarantee of third-party obligations 
6) Other commitments 396,629 347,995
Total 10,964,902 13,235,133 

The sum of commercial guarantees given as at 31 December 2006 was re-classified among financial guarantees
given in order to allow the data to be compared. 

2. Assets lodged as surety for own liabilities and commitments 
thousands of euros

Portfolio 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Financial assets held for trading
2. Financial assets at fair value
3. Financial assets available for sale 10,953,937 9,057,392 
4. Financial assets held to maturity 358,145 387,502 
5. Loans and advances to banks 1,095,030 0
6. Loans and advances to customers 8,328,445 4,216,481 
7. Property plant and equipment
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4. Management and broking for customer accounts: 
thousands of euros

Type of services Amount
1. Trading of financial instruments for third parties

a) purchases
1. settled
2. not settled

b) sales
1. settled
2. not settled

2. Portfolio management
a) individual
b) collective

3. Custody and administration of securities 36,251,159 
a)  third-party securities on deposit as custodian bank  

(excluding portfolio management schemes)
1. securities issued by consolidated companies
2. other securities

b) other third party securities on deposit (excluding portfolio management schemes): other 14,924,123 
1. securities issued by consolidated companies 8,004 
2. other securities 14,916,119 

c) third-party securities deposited with third parties 6,557,224 
d) portfolio securities deposited with third parties 21,327,036 

4. Other transactions

5. Provisions for losses on realization
Information is given below on the reconcilement of the variations which occurred during the period on
the portfolio adjustments recorded for every class of financial asset.  

thousands of euros
Portfolio value adjustments Total

Financial Financial Due Due
assets assets from from

available held to banks customers
for sale maturity

A. Opening balances 0 0 0 22,866 22,866 
B. Increases 0 0 0 0 0
B.1 Writedowns 0 0 0 0 0
C. Decreases 0 0 0 985 985
C.1 Writebacks 0 0 0 985 985
D. Closing balances 0 0 0 21,881 21,881
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6. Fair value
The fair values of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet and shown below are determined
by referring to listings on active markets or using valuation techniques based on observable market data.
More precisely, the first method is used for the majority of AFS securities in the portfolio while the second
relates to all the derivatives and the other assets and liabilities other than those which are held for sale. 

thousands of euros
Balance sheet item FAIR VALUE

Market Valuation Book Total
prices techniques value

based on (1)
observable

market data
ASSETS
item 20 - FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 963,449 963,449
item 40 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE 5,917,176 8,626,267 14,543,443
item 50 - FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD TO MATURITY 487,445 487,445
item 60 - DUE FROM BANKS 8,533,925 4,484,910 13,018,835
item 70 - DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 19,569,881 48,215 19,618,096
item 80 - HEDGING DERIVATIVES 1,512,261 1,512,261
TOTAL 31.12.2007 6,404,621 39,205,783 4,533,125 50,143,529
TOTAL 31.12.2006 9,913,934 33,379,625 3,504,403 46,797,962
LIABILITIES
item 10 - DUE TO BANKS 5,938,528 18,494,753 24,433,281 
item 20 - DUE TO CUSTOMERS 2,753,077 1,808,756 4,561,833 
item 30 - SECURITIES IN ISSUE 6,390,463 11,580,240 17,970,703 
item 40 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR TRADING 959,264 959,264 
item 60 - HEDGING DERIVATIVES 1,278,476 1,278,476 
TOTAL 31.12.2007 6,390,463 22,509,585 20,303,509 49,203,557
TOTAL 31.12.2006 6,043,759 23,318,083 15,601,892 44,963,734

(1) The book value shown in the table refers to short-term assets/liabilities whose book value represents a reasonable approximation of fair value. In particular
it refers to repurchase agreements and deposits with banks and customers.

7. Day one profit
During the period the Company proceeded with recording the so-called “Day One Profit” (DOP) in the
Income Statement, i.e. the difference, if any exists at the time of initial recognition, between the fair value on
that date of financial instruments in the trading portfolio and the amount determined, using valuation
models whose variables include only market observable data. For the purposes of calculating this gain/loss,
the transaction price was used as the fair value of the financial instrument at the time of initial recognition
(i.e. the fair value of the amount paid or collected).
The gains and losses calculated in this way were recorded in item 80 "Net trading gains (losses)".   
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PART C - COMMENTS ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

SECTION 1 - Interest - Items 10 and 20

1.1 Interest and similar income: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Technical types Performing financial assets
Debt Loans Impaired Other 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

securities financial assets
assets

1 Financial assets held for trading
2 Financial assets designated at fair value
3 Financial assets available for sale 681,850 681,850 504,745 
4 Financial assets held to maturity 25,796 25,796 27,433 
5 Due from banks 138,891 379,487 518,378 257,796 
6 Due from customers 117,103 756,434 873,537 706,683 
7 Hedging derivatives   
8 Financial assets sold but  
not derecognized 82,912 82,912 72,030 
9 Other assets  7,804 7,804 9,699 
Total 1,046,552 1,135,921 0 7,804 2,190,277 1,578,386 

1.3 Interest and similar income: other information
thousands of euros

Items 31/12/2007
1.3.1 Interest income on financial assets in foreign currencies 51,263 

1.4 Interest payable and similar charges: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Technical types Payables Securities Others Total Total
liabilities 31/12/2007 3  1/12/2006

1. Due to banks (1,040,033) (1,040,033) (568,013) 
2. Due to customers (123,471) (123,471) (88,555) 
3. Securities in issue (596,303) (596,303) (509,138) 
4. Financial liabilities for trading
5. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
6. Liabilities for assets sold but not derecognized (80,594) (80,594) (61,850) 
7. Other liabilities (6,427) (6,427) (6,462) 
8. Hedging derivatives (211,670) (211,670) (195,402) 
Total (1,244,098) (596,303) (218,097) (2,058,498) (1,429,420) 
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1.5 Interest and similar expenses: differentials on hedging transactions             
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Positive differentials on transactions involving:
A.1 Specific hedges of the fair value of assets 89,763 31,613 
A.2 Specific hedges of the fair value of liabilities 158,244 143,133 
A.3 Macro hedges of interest rate risk 7 0 
A.4 Specific hedges of cash flows from assets 2,975 10,371 
A.5 Specific hedges of cash flows from liabilities 9,926 8,191 
A.6 Macro cash flow hedges
Total positive differentials (A) 260,915 193,308 
B. Negative differentials on transactions involving:
B.1 Specific hedges of the fair value of assets 155,262 272,518 
B.2 Specific hedges of the fair value of liabilities 282,959 85,754 
B.3 Macro hedges of interest rate risk
B.4 Specific hedges of cash flows from assets 8,777 14,939 
B.5 Specific hedges of cash flows from liabilities 25,587 15,499 
B.6 Macro cash flow hedges
Total negative differentials (B) 472,585 388,710 
C. Balance (A-B) (211,670) (195,402)

1.6 Interest and similar expenses: other information
thousands of euros

Items 31/12/2007
1.6.1 Interest paid on liabilities in foreign currency (51,328) 
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SECTION 2 - Fees and commissions - Items 40 and 50

2.1 Fee and commission income: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of service/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) guarantees given 1,041 730 
b) credit derivatives   
c) management, broking and consulting services: 7,841 8,653 

1. financial instrument trading
2. foreign exchange trading
3. asset management

3.1. individual
3.2. collective

4. custody and administration of securities 3,514 2,550 
5. depositary bank
6. placing of securities 1,057 4,356 
7. collection of orders
8. advisory services 3,270 1,747 
9. distribution of third-party services

9.1. asset management
9.1.1. individual
9.1.2. collective
9.2. insurance products
9.3. other products

d) collection and payment services
e) servicing of securitisation transactions
f) services for factoring transactions
g) management of rate- and tax-collection agencies
h) other services  2,565 1,413 
Total 11,447 10,796 

2.2 Fee and commission income: product and service distribution channels 
thousands of euros

Channels/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) through own branches:

1. asset management
2. placing of securities
3. third-party services and products

b) door-to-door: 1,057 4,356 
1. asset management
2. placing of securities 1,057 4,356 
3. third-party services and products

c) other distribution channels:
1. asset management
2. placing of securities
3. third-party services and products

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2.3 Fee and commission expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of service/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) guarantees received (2,087) (1,927)
b) credit derivatives  
c) management and brokerage services: (992) (671)

1. financial instrument trading
2. foreign exchange trading
3. asset management:

3.1 own portfolio
3.2 third-party portfolio

4. custody and administration of securities (992) (671)
5. placing of financial instruments
6. external marketing of financial instruments, products and services

d) collection and payment services (77) (67)
e) other services (192) (321)
Total (3,348) (2,986)

SECTION 3 - Dividend and similar income - Item 70

3.1 Dividend and similar income: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Income Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Dividend from Mutual Dividend from Mutual
fund shares fund shares

A. Financial assets held for trading 
B. Financial assets available for sale 3,037 5,306 
C. Financial assets designated at fair value
D. Equity investments  1,700 2,000 
Total 4,737 7,306 
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SECTION 4 - Net trading gains (losses) - Item 80

4.1 Net trading gains (losses): breakdown
thousands of euros

Transactions/Income components Capital gains Trading Capital Trading Net result
(A) profits losses losses [(A+B) -

(B) (C) (D) (C+D)]
1. Financial assets held for trading

1.1 Debt securities
1.2 Equity securities
1.3 Mutual fund shares
1.4 Loan facilities
1.5 Others

2. Financial liabilities held for trading
2.1 Debt securities
2.2 Payables
2.3 Others

3. Other financial assets and liabilities: foreign
exchange differences X X X X (91)

4. Derivative instruments 982,440 327,655 1,019,332 284,745 6,030
4.1 Financial derivatives   978,916 324,605 1,012,012 284,718 6,803 

- on debt securities and interest rates 953,175 320,589 986,271 280,765 6,728 
- on equity securities and stock indices 21,206 3,295 21,206 3,232 63 
- on currency and gold X X X X 12 
- Others 4,535 721 4,535 721 0 

4.2 Credit derivatives 3,524 3,050 7,320 27 (773)
Total 982,440 327,655 1,019,332 284,745 5,939 

SECTION 5 - Net hedging gains (losses) - Item 90

5.1 Net result from hedging: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income Components/Amounts Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Income relating to:
A.1 Fair value hedging derivatives 800,527 715,565
A.2 Hedged financial assets (fair value) 
A.3 Hedged financial liabilities (fair value) 113,033 119,860
A.4 Cash flow hedging derivatives
A.5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
Total hedging income (A) 913,560 835,425
B. Expenses relating to:
B.1 Fair value hedging derivatives
B.2 Hedged financial assets (fair value) 912,878 837,012 
B.3 Hedged financial liabilities (fair value) 
B.4 Cash flow hedging derivatives 
B.5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
Total hedging expenses (B) 912,878 837,012 
C. Gains less losses on hedging (A – B) 682 (1,587)
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SECTION 6 - Gains (losses) from sale/repurchase - Item 100

6.1 Gains (Losses) from sale/repurchase: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income Items/Components Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Profits Losses Net result Profits Losses Net result
Financial assets
1. Due from banks 143 0 143 156 111 45
2. Due from customers 5,453 0 5,453 5,058 19 5,039
3. Financial assets available for sale 7,768 29,682 (21,914) 18,153 14,830 3,323

3.1 Debt securities 7,759 29,677 (21,918) 17,578 14,830 2,748
3.2 Equity securities 9 0 9 575 0 575
3.3 Mutual fund shares 0 5 (5)
3.4 Loan facilities

4. Financial assets held to maturity
Total assets 13,364 29,682 (16,318) 23,367 14,960 8,407 
Financial liabilities
1. Due to banks
2. Due to customers
3. Securities in issue 5,267 0 5,267 2,641 0 2,641
Total liabilities 5,267 0 5,267 2,641 0 2,641 

SECTION 8 - Net adjustments for impairment - Item 130

8.1 Net adjustments for impairment: breakdown
thousands of euros

Transactions/Income components Writedowns Writebacks
Specific Specific Of portfolio Total Total

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Write-offs Others Of portfolio A B A B

A. Loans to banks
B. Customer loans 985 985 (5,139)
C. Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 985 985 (5,139)

Key
A: from interest
B: other writebacks
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SECTION 9 - Administrative expenses - Item 150

9.1 Personnel expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of expense/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1) Employees (28,610) (26,027)

a) wages and salaries (18,930) (17,403)
b) social security contributions (5,046) (4,514)
c) retirement indemnities (1,013) (301)
d) other pension costs
e) provisions for severance indemnities (202) (649)
f) provision for retirement benefits and similar:   (1,000) (677)

- defined contribution
- defined benefit (1,000) (677)

g) payments to complementary external pension funds: (1,231) (1,153)
- defined contribution
- defined benefit (1,231) (1,153)

h) costs pursuant to payment agreements based on own equity instruments
i) other employee benefits (1,188) (1,330)

2) Other personnel  0 0 
3) Directors (1,033) (1,828)
Total (29,643) (27,855)

9.2 Average number of employees by category

Employees:
a) managers 34
b) total middle managers  107

- of which: 3rd and 4th level 57
c) remaining employees 96

Other personnel

9.3 Company defined-benefit pension funds: total costs
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) Retirement benefit costs (1,130) (972)
b) Interest expenses (1,753) (1,581)
c) Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022 
d) Actuarial losses (gains) recognized in the balance sheet (98) (438)
Total (1,439) (1,969)

9.4 Other employee benefits
The costs for provisions in the year amounted to Euro 167 thousand.
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9.5 Other administrative expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of expense/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Maintenance costs on furniture and equipment (12) (8)
Property rent payments (507) (506)
Telephone expenses (293) (199)
Postage and telegraph expenses (58) (67)
Costs for maintenance and updating of software (1,057) (1,015)
Security (176) (172)
Car leasing instalments (353) (412)
Energy, heating and water expenses (254) (269)
Maintenance costs on company-owned buildings (703) (451)
IT Services (3,977) (3,967)
Stationery and printing (80) (158)
Costs for cleaning premises (220) (249)
Professional fees (2,938) (2,100)
Advertising and public relations (1,237) (1,260)
Books, periodicals and information services (94) (96)
Expenses for issuing securities (13) (15)
Insurance premiums (55) (72)
Membership fees (525) (487)
Study grants (107) (171)
Emoluments of directors and statutory auditors (137) (209)
Charges for personnel on secondment from third parties 0 (1,642)
Cultural and social contributions (116) (118)
Other expenses (528) (601)
Total (13,440) (14,244)
Indirect taxes
–  Local property taxes 0 (294)
–  Flat-rate tax, Decree 601/73 4.442 0 
–  Other  (464) (116)

Total 3,978 (410)
Total of other administrative expenses (9,462) (14,654)

The charges for personnel on secondment from third parties were classified as at 31 December 2007 in the
sub-item "Personnel expenses" instead of the sub-item "Other administrative expenses".
The sum of Euro 4,442 thousand refers to a refund of the registration tax paid in 1996 when a branch of the
Company was sold to San Paolo IMI Bank.

SECTION 10 - Net provisions for risks and charges - Item 160

10.1 Net provisions for risks and charges: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income Items/Components Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Provisions Utilisation Net result Provisions Utilisation Net result
A.  Risks
Total Risks
B.  Charges

1.  Employees (167) (167) (442) (442)
2.  Others 295 295 

Total Charges (167) 0 (167) (442) 295 (147)
Total Risks and Charges (167) 0 (167) (442) 295 (147)
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SECTION 11 - Net adjustments on tangible assets - Item 170

11.1 Net adjustments on tangible assets: breakdown
thousands of euros

Assets/Income components Amortization Impairment Writebacks Net
(a) losses (c) result

(b) (a + b - c)
A. Tangible assets
A.1 Company owned: (816) (816)

- for business purposes (815) (815)
- for investment (1) (1)

A.2 Acquired on lease
- for business purposes 
- for investment 

Total (816) 0 0 (816)

SECTION 12 - Net adjustments on intangible assets - Item 180

12.1 Net adjustments on intangible assets: breakdown
thousands of euros

Assets/Income components Amortization Impairment Writebacks Net
(a) losses (c) result

(b) (a + b - c)
A. Intangible assets
A.1 Company owned: (2,014) (2,014)

- Generated within the company
- Other (2,014) (2,014)

A.2 Acquired on lease
Total (2,014) 0 0 (2,014)

SECTION 13 - Other operating expenses and revenues - Item 190

13.1 Other operating expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007
Interbank charges (74)
Other expenses (25)
Total (99)
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13.2 Other operating revenues: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts 31/12/2007
Rents collected 220
Interbank revenues 104
Refund of expenses 54
Other income 155
Total 533

SECTION 18 - Income tax for the period on continuing operations - Item 260 

18.1 Income tax for the period on continuing operations: breakdown
thousands of euros

Components/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Current taxes (-) (19,362) (37,518)
2. Changes in current taxes compared to previous periods ( +/- ) (17) (403)
3. Decreases in current taxes for the period ( + )
4. Changes in deferred tax assets ( +/- ) (4,665) (2,856)
5. Changes in deferred tax liabilities ( +/- ) 10,371 (17,393)
6. Taxes for the period (-) (-1+/-2+3+/-4+/-5) (13,673) (58,170)

Due to the effects of the application of IAS it should be noted that the tax charges to be paid by the bank are
represented by taxes booked to the income statement as well as by those directly recognized in shareholders'
equity in compliance with the provisions of paragraph 61 of IAS 12.
The variation in pre-paid taxes is attributable to movements in the period amounting to Euro -2,501 thousand
and to the adjustment in pre-paid tax assets (amounting to Euro - 2,164 thousand) due to the new nominal
tax rates for IRES (Corporate Income Tax) and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), as laid down
by Italian Law no. 244/2007 for the years from 2008 onwards.
The variation in deferred taxes is attributable to movements in the period amounting to Euro 16,872 thousand
and to the adjustment in deferred tax liabilities (amounting to Euro - 27,243 thousand) due to the new nominal
tax rates for IRES and IRAP, as laid down by Italian Law no. 244/2007 for the years from 2008 onwards.

18.2 Reconciliation between theoretical tax burden and tax burden according to financial statements
thousands of euros

Taxable income/variations/taxes (+/-) 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Taxable amount Tax Tax

Pre-tax profit - Rate (38.25%) 99,503 38,060 57,771 
1  Increases in taxes (Rate 38.25%) 7,240 2,769 25,347 
2  Decreases in taxes (Rate 38.25%) 12,749 4,876 30,315 
3  Greater taxable amount for IRAP (Regional Business Tax) (Rate 5.25%) 53,312 2,799 5,367 
4  Adjustment to deferred tax rates on Corporation tax (33.00%-27.50%) (106,345) (5,849)
5  Adjustment to deferred tax rates on Corporation tax and IRAP (38.25%-32.32%) (324,136) (19,230)
6  Difference on taxable amount for Corporation tax and IRAP 13,673 58,170 
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PART E – COMMENTS ON RISKS AND ON THE ASSOCIATED HEDGING

POLICIES

SECTION 1 - Credit risk

Qualitative information

1. General points 
The area of operations concentrates on financing investments in the public sector and large infrastructure
schemes. The remaining part of the loan portfolio refers to assets purchased following an investment logic
which is based on high market liquidity and fundability with the European Central Bank. In line with this
fundamental strategy, the development of the loan portfolio follows trends in the reference market which in
recent years has tended to gradually substitute mortgage loans with bonds.

2. Policies for managing credit risks 

2.1 Organisational aspects
TThe credit risk is the risk of losses associated with an inability of counterparties to meet their financial
obligations. 
The factors which influence the level of this risk are:
- the creditworthiness of the counterparty, measured using an internal rating (determined on the basis
of specific models) or a scoring; 
- the relevant customer segment (public sector, corporate, project finance, banking and financial sector etc.);
- the economic, regulatory and financial context in which the counterparty operates;
- the type of transaction arranged; 
- the duration of the transactions; 
- any (real/personal/financial) guarantees backing the transaction. 

It should be pointed out that the vast majority of existing loans are to customers in the public sector, with
a low level of risks, and subject, in addition, to the particular constraints associated with their public nature.
Credit risks (in the same way as operational, market and liquidity risks) are monitored by the Risk
Management Structure divided into two units - Credit and Operational Risks and Market and ALM Risks
- which ensure control of their respective risk categories.

Risk Management has no hierarchical relationship with the Bank’s operating units. The department therefore
operates absolutely independently from the Front Office structures.

Specific Committees form an integral part of the internal auditing systems, helping to ensure that the system
works correctly.

The Credit Committee’s task is to examine loan proposals of any technical type. The Committee takes decisions
relating to risks and financial conditions on the basis of proposals made by the competent operational
Department and an opinion regarding the level of risk provided by the Risk Management Department.

The Default/Watchlist Committee examines situations falling within the criteria of defaults as established
by the Supervisory Authorities.
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2.2 Management, measuring and auditing systems
As regards the methods of management, measuring and auditing, certain guidelines have been fixed at Group
level.

The Group has developed a number of internal rating systems (IRSs) for counterparties in the Corporate and
Project Finance sectors, in the Western European Local Public Sector (LPS), and for banks and sovereign
states. For counterparties not yet covered by a specific IRS, ratings are calculated on the basis of so-called
“expert methods” or using scoring.

The internal rating system (IRS) defined on the basis of the most advanced methods (Advanced IRBA)
involves:
• the adoption of internal procedures which allow for the calculations by and historical documentation of

the IRSs;
• the progressive development of an information system (FERMAT) aimed at consolidating - in a common

standardised form - the information relating to all counterparties (Client Database) and all exposures
(Exposure Database) of the Group;

• the adoption of a system for measuring the Bank’s entire risks on the basis of an approach based on its own
economic resources.  

2.3 Credit risk mitigation techniques
As regards derivative transactions, the ISDA Master Agreement includes the “Credit Support Annex” (CSA)
for the majority of banking counterparties. This collateralization agreement minimises credit risk through
the periodic (weekly or monthly) exchange of margins guaranteeing the net value of the bilateral exposure.

The forms of real guarantees used are essentially pledges (mainly on securities) and much less frequently
mortgages on properties. The management of these guarantees is the task of the administrative and legal offices.
The counterparties offering personal guarantees are banks, in the vast majority of cases, and sometimes
public local or territorial authorities. The credit risk of these counterparties is assessed on the basis of the
external and internal ratings attributed to them.

The purchase of credit derivatives is not normally used as a mitigation technique, although it is permissible.

Since financing activities are mainly aimed at the domestic public sector, the majority of guarantees backing
loans consist of the issue of payment notes or guarantees provided by the Italian State (of a contractual
nature or arising from legislation).

2.4 Impaired financial assets
The Group has issued specific rules governing the treatment of non-performing loans and actions to be
taken in order to manage such loans so as to ensure that the procedures aimed at a positive outcome are
implemented correctly.

These rules define the general guidelines within which the individual organisational units treat this sub-
ject within the scope of their own responsibilities.

The various conditions of each non-performing loan have been classified within the scope of a watchlist
consisting of four categories with an ascending scale of seriousness:
- monitored loans;

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



- pre-problem loans;
- problem loans;
- non-performing loans.

The default/watchlist Committee is responsible for examining the non-performing positions and proposes:
• their classification in one of the four categories;
• the adoption of specific writedowns on the loans;
• the adoption of statistical or flat-rate adjustments which reflect the Expected Loss.

Transactions which previously included in the default/watchlist categories are re-classified as “performing”
when the counterparty emerges from a situation of economic/financial difficulty and returns to making
all payments regularly as before.

A. Credit quality

A.1 Impaired and performing loans: amounts, writedowns, trends, economic and
geographical distribution

A.1.1 Distribution of financial assets by portfolio and credit quality (book values)
thousands of euros

Portfolio/quality Bad loans Problem Restructured Past due Country Other Total
loans loans loans risk assets

1. Financial assets held for trading 963,449 963,449
2. Financial assets available for sale 14,543,443 14,543,443
3. Financial assets held to maturity 477,813 477,813
4. Due from banks 13,075,945 13,075,945
5. Due from customers 147 19,523,921 19,524,068
6. Financial assets designated at fair value
7. Financial assets held for sale
8. Hedging derivatives 1,512,261 1,512,261
Total 31/12/2007 147 0 0 0 0 50,096,832 50,096,979
Total 31/12/2006 170 0 0 0 0 46,273,659 46,273,829
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A.1.2 Distribution of financial assets according to portfolio and creditworthiness (gross and net
values)

thousands of euros
Portfolio/quality Impaired assets Other assets

Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Portfolio Net Total
exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns exposure (net 

exposure)
1. Financial assets held  

for trading X X 963,449 963,449 
2. Financial assets available  

for sale 14,543,443 14,543,443 14,543,443 
3. Financial assets held  

to maturity 477,813 477,813 477,813 
4. Due from banks 13,075,945 13,075,945 13,075,945 
5. Due from customers 220 73 147 19,545,802 21,881 19,523,921 19,524,068 
6. Financial assets designated 

at fair value X X 
7. Non-current assets held  

for sale
8. Hedging derivatives X X 1,512,261 1,512,261 
Total 31/12/2007 220 73 0 147 47,643,003 21,881 50,096,832 50,096,979
Total 31/12/2006 243 73 0 170 43,843,322 22,867 46,273,659 46,273,829

A.1.3 Cash and off balance-sheet exposure towards banks: gross and net amounts
thousands of euros

Type of exposure/amounts Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure adjustments adjustments exposure

A. CASH EXPOSURES 
a) Non-performing loans 
b) Problem loans 
c) Restructured loans 
d) Past due loans 
e) Country Risk X 
f) Other assets   14,697,078 X 14,697,078 
TOTAL  A 14,697,078 14,697,078 
B. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES 
a) Impaired 
b) Other 6,816,666 X 6,816,666 
TOTAL B 6,816,666 6,816,666 
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A.1.6 Cash and off-balance-sheet exposures to customers: gross and net amounts
thousands of euros

Type of exposure/amounts Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure adjustments adjustments exposure

A. CASH EXPOSURES 
a) Non-performing loans 220 73 147 
b) Problem loans 
c) Restructured loans 
d) Past due loans 
e) Country Risk X 
f) Other assets   32,945,925 X 21,881 32,924,044 
TOTAL  A 32,946,145 73 21,881 32,924,191 
B. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES 
a) Impaired 
b) Other 5,436,198 X 5,436,198 
TOTAL B 5,436,198 5,436,198 

A.1.7 Cash exposures to customers: trend of gross impaired loans and loans subject to "country risk"
thousands of euros

Reasons/Categories Non-performing Problem Restructured Past due Country
loans loans loans loans risk

A. Gross initial exposure 243 
- of which: loans sold off but not derecognized
B. Increases 0
B.1 transfers from performing loans
B.2 transfers of impaired loans from other categories
B.3 other increases
C. Decreases 23
C.1 transfers to performing loans
C.2 write-offs
C.3 collections 23 
C.4 disposals
C.5 transfers of impaired loans to other categories
C.6 other decreases
D. Gross closing exposure 220 
- of which: loans sold but not derecognized



A.1.8 Cash exposures to customers: trend of total adjustments
thousands of euros

Reasons/Categories Non-performing Doubtful Restructured Past due Country
loans loans loans loans risk

A. Total initial adjustments 73 
- of which: loans sold but not derecognized
B. Increases 0
B.1 writedowns
B.2 transfers of impaired loans from other categories
B.3 other increases
C. Decreases 0
C.1 writebacks from valuations
C. 2 writebacks from collections
C.3 write-offs
C.4 transfers of impaired loans to other categories
C.5 other decreases
D. Total final adjustments 73 
- of which: loans sold but not derecognized

A.2 Classification of exposures according to external and internal ratings

A.2.1 Distribution of cash and off-balance-sheet loans according to external rating classes
thousands of euros

Exposure External rating classes
rating A. rating I.& BB B. Lower Without Total

Aaa/AAA Baa2/BBB SPA - ROME than B- rating
A. Loan exposure 31,980,299 10,869,625 1,739,000 750,619 182,014 55,425 2,044,287 47,621,269 
B. Derivatives 2,121,728 279,772 28,066 20,134 24,191 0 1,818 2,475,709 
B.1 Financial derivatives 2,111,385 275,732 28,066 20,134 24,191 1,818 2,461,326 
B.2 Credit derivatives 10,343 4,040 14,383 
C. Guarantees given 4,889,609 163,492 24,410 79,438 1,938 5,158,887 
D. Commitments to 

disburse  funds 3,674,548 588,447 198,650 14,513 80,602 4,556,760 
Total 42,666,184 11,901,336 1,990,126 864,704 206,205 55,425 2,128,645 59,812,625 
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A.3 Distribution of secured loans according to type of guarantee

A.3.1 Secured loans to banks and customers
thousands of euros

Collateral surety (1) Personal surety (2)
Loan derivatives Unsecured loans

Amount Real Securities Other Govern. Other Banks Other Govern. Other Banks Other Total
of exposure estate assets public subjects public subjects (1)+

bodies bodies (2)
1. Secured loans 

to banks:
1.1 fully secured 36,678 22,227 14,451 36,678
1.2 partially 

secured
2. Secured loans 

to customers:
2.1 fully secured 1,604,517 21,858 126,475 110,272 782,084 158,424 5,225 400,1791,604,517
2.2 partially

secured

A.3.2 Secured "off-balance-sheet" loans to banks and customers
thousands of euros

Collateral surety (1) Personal surety (2)
Loan derivatives Unsecured loans

Amount Real Securities Other Govern. Other Banks Other Govern. Other Banks Other Total
of exposure estate assets public subjects public subjects (1)+

bodies bodies (2)
1. Secured loans 

to banks:
1.1 fully secured
1.2 partially secured

2. Secured loans 
to customers:
2.1 fully secured 191,106 9,658 78,108 103,340 191,106
2.2 partially secured
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B.2 Distribution of loans to resident non-financial companies
thousands of euros

Aggregate sector of economic activity
Energy products 761,982
Construction and public works 125,861
Commercial services 0
Internal transport services 73,026
Transport-linked services 35,660
Other types of business 33,598
Communication services 0
Other marketable services 195,539

Governments and Central Banks Other public bodies Finance 

B. Credit distribution and concentration

B.1 Distribution of on- and off-balance-sheet customer loans according to sector

Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio
exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns

A. Loan exposure
A.1 Non-performing

loans 220 73 147 
A.2 Problem loans
A.3 Restructured 

loans
A.4 Past due loans loans
A.5 Other exposures 11,376,709 X 11,376,709 16,596,120 X 18,253 16,577,867 2,435,732 X 
Total  A 11,376,709 11,376,709 16,596,340 73 18,253 16,578,014 2,435,732 
B. "Off-balance sheet" 

loans
B.1 Non-performing loans
B.2 Problem loans
B.3 Other impaired 

assets
B.4 Other exposures 2,708,004 X 2,708,004 1,774,175 X 1,774,175 161,801 X 
Total   B 2,708,004 2,708,004 1,774,175 1,774,175 161,801 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 14,084,713 14,084,713 18,370,515 73 18,253 18,352,189 2,597,533 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 5,712,329 5,712,329 22,860,247 73 22,867 22,837,307 6,154,272 

Exposure/
Counterparts
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B.3 Distribution of cash and "off-balance sheet" customer loans according to geographic
area  

thousands of euros
Exposure/Geographical area Italy Other  European countries America Asia Rest of the world

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure

A. Loan exposure
A.1 Non-performing loans 220 147 
A.2 Problem loans
A.3 Restructured loans
A.4 Past due loans
A.5 Other exposures 32,811,040 32,789,299 134,885 134,745 
Total  A 32,811,260 32,789,446 134,885 134,745 
B. "Off-balance sheet" loans
B.1 Non-performing loans
B.2 Problem loans
B.3 Other impaired assets
B.4 Other exposures 5,277,492 5,277,492 128,601 128,601 30,105 30,105 
Total   B 5,277,492 5,277,492 128,601 128,601 30,105 30,105 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 38,088,752 38,066,938 263,486 263,346 30,105 30,105 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 39,618,046 39,595,106 626,306 626,306 49,208 49,208 

Insurance companies Non finance companies Other subjectscompanies

Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure

2,435,732 27,415 X 27,415 2,258,818 X 3,587 2,255,231 251,131 X 41 251,090 
2,435,732 27,415 27,415 2,258,818 3,587 2,255,231 251,131 41 251,090 

161,801 X 474,535 X 474,535 317,683 X 317,683 
161,801 0 0 474,535 0 474,535 317,683 317,683 

2,597,533 27,415 27,415 2,733,353 3,587 2,729,766 568,814 41 568,773 
6,154,272 2,307,231 2,307,231 3,232,618 0 3,232,618 26,863 26,863

thousands of euros



B.4 Distribution of cash and "off-balance-sheet" loans to banks  
thousands of euros

Exposure/Geographical area Italy Other  European countries America Asia Rest of the world
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure
A. Loan exposure
A.1 Non-performing loans
A.2 Problem loans
A.3 Restructured loans
A.4 Past due loans
A.5 Other exposures 3,549,121 3,549,121 11,147,944 11,147,944 8 8 5 5 
Total  A 3,549,121 3,549,121 11,147,944 11,147,944 8 8 5 5 0 0
B. "Off-balance sheet" loans
B.1 Non-performing loans
B.2 Problem loans
B.3 Other impaired assets
B.4 Other exposures 4,669,264 4,669,264 1,236,769 1,236,769 910,633 910,633 
Total   B 4,669,264 4,669,264 1,236,769 1,236,769 910,633 910,633 0 0 0 0
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 8,218,385 8,218,385 12,384,713 12,384,713 910,641 910,641 5 5 0 0
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 9,226,382 9,226,382 8,453,996 8,453,996 1,557,935 1,557,935 24 24 4 4 

B.5 Significant risks 
thousands of euros

a) Amount 4,118,680 
b) Number 19 
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C. Securitisation and asset disposal transactions

C.1 Securitisation transactions

Qualitative information
The Bank organised two securitisation operations pursuant to Italian Law no. 130/1999, which were concluded
in 2004 and 2005. In organising these securitisation operations, the bank sought assistance from the leading
specialised rating Agencies: Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and FitchRatings.

The transactions were carried out via the special purpose vehicle DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione
S.r.l. (“DCC”), whose share capital is held entirely by Dexia Crediop S.p.A., which issued ABSs representing
a portfolio of securities issued by Local and District Authorities in Italy. The securitisation transactions are aimed
at the medium-to-long term refinancing of public-sector bonds held in the Parent Bank’s portfolio.

The two securitisation operations, of a traditional type, have the same financial structure and involve hedging
against the interest rate risks inherent in the separate assets and in the ABSs issued, by agreeing interest rate swaps
with Dexia Crediop.

The class A (Senior) ABSs benefit from an unconditional on-demand guarantee issued by Dexia Crediop S.p.A.;
owing to the effects of this guarantee and therefore of the obligation to repurchase the securities and reimburse
the entire ABS on occurrence of any credit or fiscal event, the assets sold were not derecognised by the bank, in
accordance with the instructions contained in IAS 39.

In order to minimise management and operational risks, the services of the corporate servicer, paying agent and
account bank were provided by entities outside the Group.

As regards the role of investor, the portfolio as at 31 December 2007 consists wholly of senior securities deriving
mainly from the securitisation of loans to entities belonging to the Public Administration or from funds deriving
from their real estate assets.
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Quantitative information
C.1.1 Exposure to securitisation transactions according to quality of underlying assets

Quality of underlying assets/Exposures Exposure in loans
Senior Mezzanine Junior Senior

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure

A. With own underlying assets:
a) Impaired 
b) Other 
B. With underlying assets of third parties: 2,379,781 2.379,781 
a) Impaired 
b) Other 2,379,781 2,379,781 

C.1.3 Exposures to main "third party" securitisation transactions 
according to type of securitised asset and type of exposure

Type of underlying assets/Exposures Exposure in loans
Senior Mezzanine Junior Senior

Book Writedowns/ Book Writedowns/ Book Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/
value writebacks value writebacks value writebacks exposure writebacks

A.1  
-  Residential mortgage loans 47,744 
A.2  
-  Non-residential mortgage loans 201,217 
A.3  
-  Leasing 10,473 
A.4 
- Other assets 2,114,546 
A.5 
- Other non-performing loans 5,801 

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

thousands of euros
Sureties given Credit lines

Mezzanine Junior Senior Mezzanine Junior
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure

thousands of euros
Sureties given Credit lines

Mezzanine Junior Senior Mezzanine Junior
Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/

exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks



C.1.6 Interests in special purpose vehicles

thousands of euros
Name Registered office % Shareholding
DCC-Dexia Crediop per la cartolarizzazione S.r.l. Rome 100

C.1.7 Servicer activities – collection of securitised loans and redemption of securities issued by the vehicle
company

thousands of euros

Vehicle company Securitised assets Receivables collected % of securities redeemed (at the end of the period)
(end of period) during the period senior mezzanine junior

impaired performing impaired performing impaired performing impaired performing impaired performing
assets assets assets assets assets assets

DCC-Dexia Crediop
per la cartolarizzazione S.r.l. 1,774,646 118,624
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C.2 Disposal transactions
C.2.1 Financial assets sold but not derecognized

Technical types/Portfolio
Financial assets held Financial assets designated at Financial assets available 

for trading fair value for sale
A B C A B C A B C 

A. Cash assets 
1. Debt securities 10,896,911 
2. Equity securities 
3. Mutual fund shares 
4. Loan facilities 
5. Impaired assets 
B. Derivative X X X X X X 
Total 31/12/2007 10,896,911 
Total 31/12/2006 631,680 

Key:
A = financial assets sold and fully recognized (book value)
B = financial assets sold and partially recognized (book value)
C = financial assets sold and partially recognized (full value)
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thousands of euros

Financial assets held to Due from Due from Total
maturity banks customers

A B C A B C A B C 31-12-2007 31-12-2006

1,095,030 1,957,022 13,948,963 1,930,124 
X X X X X X X X X 
X X X X X X X X X 

X X X X X X X X X 
1,095,030 1,957,022 13,948,963 

0 1,298,444 1,930,124 



C.2.2 Financial liabilities for assets sold but not derecognized

thousands of euros
Liabilities/Assets portfolio Financial Financial Financial Financial Due Due Total

assets assets assets assets from from
held for designated available held to banks customers
trading at fair value for sale maturity

1. Due to customers 754,903 622,906 1,249,735 2,627,544 
a) for fully recognized assets 754,903 622,906 1,249,735 2,627,544 
b) for partially recognized assets 

2. Due to banks 856,523 466,925 0 1,323,448
a) for fully recognized assets 856,523 466,925 1,323,448 
b) for partially recognized assets 

Total 31/12/2007 1,611,426 1,089,831 1,249,735 3,950,992
Total 31/12/2006 650,022 0 1,371,653 2,021,675

2 Market risks
2.1 – Interest rate risk - Regulatory trading book

Qualitative information
A. General aspects 
The book mainly consists of medium- and long-term derivatives in balanced brokerage and short-term
derivatives associated with treasury management.

The following aspects have an effect on these aggregates:

• the development of medium/long term operations relating to the management of public customer debt via
the creation of derivative transactions on the notional value of the customers’ exposure, in the form of
loans or securities, and the closing of interest rate risk using swaps in the market (balanced brokerage);

• the sale of derivative products to financial and Corporate customers and the consequent closing of the
interest rate risk using swaps in the market (balanced brokerage);

• management of the fixing of the variable interest rate by using short-term derivatives (forward rate agreements
and overnight indexed swaps). These financial instruments are used to transform the interest rate risk
associated with the Euribor overnight rate parameter.

The derivatives used are mainly interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and overnight indexed swaps,
referring to parameters that can be found on the information networks normally used at an international level
or which can in any case be determined objectively.
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B. Interest rate risk management and measurement methods
Monitoring market risks is the responsibility of the Market and ALM Risks Unit within the  Risk Management
Department. The risk profiles are grouped together according to Business Line (BL) in the Finance Department.
The BL activities are subject to a series of fixed operational limits on the following risk indicators, measured on
a daily basis:
• Fair Value Shift Sensitivity;
• Value at Risk (VaR).
More specifically, the shift-sensitivity of fair value quantifies the change in the value of financial portfolios
following parallel and instant increases in the market interest-rate curve. 
VaR, which is the main risk indicator measured, is defined as the maximum probable loss caused by possible
adverse changes in market yields with reference to a confidence level of 99% and a holding period of 10
working days. 
Scenario analyses are created to measure the impact on value of the portfolio monitored of a series of
instantaneous, non-parallel shocks to market interest rates. 

The internal model is not used to calculate the capital requirements on market risks.

Quantitative information
1. Regulatory trading book: distribution according to residual duration (re-pricing date) of financial assets
and liabilities and financial derivatives

thousands of euros
Type/ Residual term on demand Up to 3 Between Between Between Between beyond unspecified

months 3 and 6 6 month 1 year and 5 and 10 years term
months and 1 year 5 years 10 years

1. Cash assets 
1.1 Debt securities 

- with early redemption option 
- others 

1.2 Other assets 
2. Cash liabilities 
2.1 Repurchase agreements 12,854,043 1,004 140,000 
2.2 Other liabilities
3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 241,200 
+ short positions 5,000 236,200 

- Other derivatives 
+ long positions 
+ short positions 

3.2 Without underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 91,786 32,732 507 46,527 12,954 15,817 
+ short positions 94,420 32,732 507 45,996 12,156 14,510 

- Other derivatives 
+ long positions 36,078,194 18,499,182 10,581,619 13,782,601 8,645,391 13,019,186 
+ short positions 42,798,243 17,330,246 5,653,872 13,899,925 8,491,377 12,438,509 
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2. Regulatory trading book - internal models and other sensitivity analysis methods  
Transactions that are part of the trading book (within short-term ALM) are analysed on a daily basis using
the risk indicators described in the previous paragraph. During 2007 the following risk measurements were
noted:

(Eur) Shift
VAR 10 days Sensitivity 100bps

(absolute values)
31 Dec 07 400,800 40,147
minimum 77,622 40,147
average 1,931,167 15,904,115
maximum 4,293,964 32,487,367

The following charts show the performance of the indicators during the year:

As regards the stress-scenario analyses, which measure the variation of results for non parallel instantaneous variations
in interest rates, the following end-of-year results were obtained:

Scenarios 31 Dec 07 (€) 
flattening by increase -166,779
flattening by decrease -210,025
steepening by increase 208,344
steepening by decrease 142,870
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2.2 - Interest rate risk – Banking book

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement methods of interest rate risk 
The activity which is most exposed to interest rate risks in the banking book is managed by the BL ALM
(Asset Liabilities Management) Unit, which hedges the Group’s on- and off-balance-sheet financial and
liquidity risks.  
The ALM Unit’s operational proposals on risk situations, within the operating limits assigned to it in terms
of portfolio fair-value shift-sensitivity, are discussed and approved by the Finance Committee.
Fair value interest rate hedging derivatives are used to protect fixed-rate medium- to long-term assets and
liabilities from adverse fluctuations in market interest rates.
Cash flow hedging instruments are mainly used in order to stabilize short-term cash flows indexed to variable
parameters (usually Euribor).    
As with the regulatory trading book, the market risk monitoring activities are the responsibility of the Market
and ALM Risks Unit.  
As regards the Business Lines exposed to interest rate risk and the measurements and checks on their
compliance with the operating limits, all the points mentioned in the  paragraph relating to the interest rate
risk for the regulatory trading book are applied here, too.

B. Fair value hedging activities
In order to manage the interest rate risk, fair value hedges are used so as to immunize the market value of the
underlying financial instruments. Microhedges on financial assets and liabilities or homogeneous aggregates of
the same relate to interest rate risks and are realised at market conditions. The type of derivatives used are
Interest Rate Swaps.

Initial tests are performed on each hedge regarding the applicability of hedge accounting as well as regular
tests on their effectiveness in accordance with the IAS/IFRS principles. 

C. Cash flow hedging
Cash flow hedging instruments are mainly used on the short-term portfolio in order to stabilize cash flows
indexed to variable parameters, protecting them against adverse variations in market rates during the
hedging periods.

The hedges are used on homogeneous aggregates of financial assets and liabilities and are realised at market
conditions. The types of derivatives used are typically Overnight Indexed Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements
and Interest Rate Swaps.

Initial tests are performed on each hedge regarding the applicability of hedge accounting as well as regular
tests on their effectiveness in accordance with the IAS/IFRS principles. 
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Quantitative information
1. Banking book: distribution according to residual duration (re-pricing date) of financial assets and
financial liabilities     

thousands of euros
Type/ Residual term on demand Up to Between Between Between Between  beyond Unspecified

3 months 3 and 6 months 1 year 5 and 10 years term
6 months and 1 year and 5 years 10 years

-1. Cash assets 
1.1 Debt securities 

- with early redemption 
option 986,519 286,728 75,582 672,951 370,397 856,956 

- others 5,058,754 2,215,804 1,159,007 1,103,148 2,269,441 5,372,648 
1.2  Loans to banks 152,923 3,756,858 1,013,274 15,116 3,318,360 91,086 1,245,856 
1.3  Customer loans 

- current accounts
- other loans 

- with early redemption 
option 

- others 9,162 1,190,989 3,835,587 628,600 617,124 3,785,615 5,603,299 147 
2. Cash liabilities 
2.1 Amounts due to customers 

- current accounts 754,095 
- other payables 

- with early redemption 
option 

- others 173,296 92,234 31,085 951,618 
2.2 Amounts due to banks 

- current accounts 100 
- other payables 250,593 8,828,851 719,666 182,193 379,846 856,137 1,054,219 

2.3 Debt securities 
- with early redemption 

option 638 362,475 401,933 625,301 165,503 227,593 43,936 
- others 585 5,509,062 1,926,822 5,150,119 3,718,853 215,662 13,883 

2.4 Other liabilities   
- with early redemption 
option 

- others 
3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions
+ short positions 

- Other derivatives 
+ long positions 
+ short positions 

3.2 Without underlying security
- Options 

+ long positions 44,883 
+ short positions 77 77 2,468 12,031 30,231 

- Other derivatives 
+ long positions 24,083,406 34,072,839 5,084,411 4,298,573 1,960,118 1,836,620 
+ short positions 27,534,810 28,154,750 4,038,937 8,381,964 5,476,173 8,598,051  
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2. Banking book - internal models and other methods for analysing sensitivity 
The following indicators were noted during 2007 in relation to short-term ALM activities:  

(Eur) Shift
VAR 10 days Sensitivity 100bps

(absolute values)
31 Dec 07 780,813 7,803,531 
minimum 258,330 29,972
average 1,510,092 11,833,107
maximum 3,673,095 31,627,025

The following charts show the performance of the indicators during the year:

Similarly, for the securities business exposed to interest rate risk:
(Eur) Shift

VAR 10 days Sensitivity 1bps
(absolute values)

31 Dec 07 120,149 9,334
minimum 20,641 2,718
average 68,791 7,578
maximum 163,842 17,342

As regards the stress-scenario analyses, which measure the variation of results for non-parallel instantaneous
changes in interest rates, the following end-of-year results are shown for the securities business exposed to
interest rate risk and the short-term ALM:

Scenarios (in euro) SECURITIES SHORT-TERM ALM
steepening by increase -333,629 -2,482,026
steepening by decrease 1,476,919 9,824,102
flattening by increase -1,455,700 -9,701,166
flattening by decrease 335,921 2,490,279

As regards medium-to-long term ALM, the interest rate risk is monitored using sensitivity measurements
of the portfolio value assuming there were an instant increase in interest rates of 100 bps. The following
exposure values (in millions of euro) were noted in 2007: 
a) end of year: -20.6; 
b) average: -9.5;
c) minimum: -22.2;
d) maximum: +1.0.

The average effect of a variation +/- 100 bps on interest and net banking income for the year was calculated to be
7.3 million.

VaR 10 days - year 2007 Sensitivity (100 b.p. up) - year 2007



2.3 - Price risk – regulatory trading portfolio
The regulatory trading book does not contain assets or liabilities exposed to price risks.

2.4 Price risk – banking portfolio

This portfolio includes equity securities classified among assets available for sale.  

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement of price risk 
Among the said unlisted equity investments, the one relating to the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo is particularly
noteworthy. The fair value was measured on the basis of various assessment techniques which substantially led
to values in line with the company's own quota of shareholders' equity.

B. Price risk hedging activities
Considering the nature of the equity investments and the book value calculated on the basis of the fair value,
no price-risk hedges have been implemented.

Quantitative information
1. Banking book: exposure in equity securities and mutual fund shares

thousands of euros
Type of exposure/Amount Listed Unlisted
A.  Equity securities 142,013 
A.1 Shares 
A.2 Innovative equity instruments 
A.3 Other equity securities 142,013 
B.  Mutual fund shares 1,362 
B.1 Italian registered 1,362 

-  open harmonised 
-  open non-harmonised 
-  closed 606 
-  reserved 
-  speculative 756 

B.2 Of other EU States 
-  harmonised  
-  open non-harmonised 
-  closed non-harmonised 

B.2 Of non EU States 
-  open 
-  closed 

Total 143,375 
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2.5 Exchange rate risk

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement of exchange rate risk 
The Group holds financial assets and issues bonds in non-euro currencies with the aim of exploiting favourable
market opportunities, taking into account the cost of exchange rate risks.

B. Exchange rate risk hedging activities
Financial assets and liabilities in currencies other than the euro are systematically hedged at the origin against
exchange rate risks using derivative products (currency and interest rate swaps). The activities of measurement and
control of the risks and of hedge efficiency are the same as those described for interest rate risk.

Quantitative information
1. Distribution according to currency of the assets, liabilities and derivatives

thousands of euros
Items Currencies

US Sterling Yen Swiss Other
Dollars francs currencies

A. Financial assets
A.1 Debt securities 731,869 177,269 
A.2 Equity securities
A.3 Due from banks 8 701 514 24,192 
A.4 Due from customers
A.5 Other financial assets
B. Other assets
C. Financial liabilities 
C.1 Due to banks 229,415 94,488 24,174 15,022 
C.2 Due to customers
C.3 Debt securities 88,570 
C.4 Other liabilities
D. Other liabilities 
E. Financial derivatives
- Options

+ long positions
+ short positions

- Other derivatives
+ long positions 352,078 93,979 181,664 15,022 
+ short positions 765,333 177,269 181,664 

Total assets 1,083,955 177,970 94,493 205,856 15,022 
Total liabilities 1,083,318 177,269 94,488 205,838 15,022 
Differences (+/-) 637 701 5 18 0 
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2.6 - Financial derivative instruments

A. Financial derivatives
A.1 Regulatory trading book: notional values at end of period and averages

thousands of euros
Type of transaction / 
Underlying Debt securities Equity securities Exchange rate Other valuables Total Total
instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
1. Forward rate agreement
2. Interest rate swap 82,114,936 82,114,936 62,059,203 
3. Domestic currency swap
4. Currency  i.r.s. 567,670 567,670 546,951 
5. Basis swap 17,779,329 17,779,329 12,477,741 
6. Stock index swaps
7. Real index swaps
8. Futures
9. Cap options 143,413 143,413 167,625 

- purchased 55,275 55,275 63,544 
- issued 88,138 88,138 104,081 

10. Floor options 261,893 261,893 261,331 
- purchased 114,460 114,460 113,835 
- issued 147,433 147,433 147,496 

11. Other options 396,494 116,448 512,942 645,715 
- purchased 58,224 58,224 190,110 

- plain vanilla 58,224 58,224 190,110 
- exotic

- issued 396,494 58,224 454,718 455,605 
- plain vanilla 396,494 58,224 454,718 455,605 
- exotic

12. Forward contracts 270 270 0 
- purchases 135 135 
- sales 135 135 
- currency against currency

13. Other derivative contracts 292,800 46,144 338,944 0 
Total 100,696,335 409,248 567,670 46,144 101,719,397 76,158,566 
Averages 58,995,592 397,503 554,236 46,144 59,947,331 45,989,879 
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A.2 Banking book: notional values at end of period and averages
A.2.1 For hedging

thousands of euros
Type of derivative / 
Underlying Debt securities Equity securities Exchange rate Other valuables Total Total
instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
1. Forward rate agreement 3,213,500 3,213,500 0    
2. Interest rate swap 58,740,243 58,740,243 79,720,352 
3. Domestic currency swap
4. Currency  i.r.s. 1,264,193 1,264,193 1,269,496 
5. Basis swap 7,922,152 7,922,152 16,789,958 
6. Stock index swaps
7. Real index swaps
8. Futures
9. Cap options 22,442 22,442 22,519 

- purchased 22,442 22,442 22,519 
- issued

10. Floor options 22,442 22,442 22,519 
- purchased
- issued 22,442 22,442 22,519 

11. Other options 298,773 298,773 298,773 
- purchased 298,773 298,773 298,773 

- plain vanilla 298,773 298,773 298,773 
- exotic

- issued
- plain vanilla
- exotic

12. Forward contracts 179,196 179,196 214,175 
- purchases 179,196 179,196 214,175 
- sales
- currency against currency

13. Other derivative contracts 11,044,741 5,400 117,853 11,167,994 0 
Total 69,920,779 11,343,514 1,448,789 117,853 82,830,935 98,337,792
Averages 42,941,972 10,597,076 1,138,893 117,853 54,795,794 44,354,885 
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A.3 Financial derivatives: purchase and sale of underlying assets
thousands of euros

Type of transaction / 
Underlying Debt securities Equity securities Exchange rate Other valuables Total Total
instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
A. Regulatory trading 
book: 82,917,006 409,248 567,670 46,144 83,940,068 63,680,822
1. Transactions with 

equity swaps 281,764 567,670 849,434 866,444 
- purchases 281,629 283,835 565,464 591,469 
- sales 135 283,835 283,970 274,975 
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without 
equity swaps 82,635,242 409,248 83,044,490 62,814,378 
- purchases 45,235,951 204,624 23,072 45,463,647 32,477,339 
- sales 37,399,291 204,624 23,072 37,626,987 30,337,039 
- currency against currency

B. Bank book: 61,998,626 11,343,514 1,448,790 117,853 74,908,783 81,547,833 
B.1 For hedging 61,998,626 11,343,514 1,448,790 117,853 74,908,783 81,547,833 
1. Transactions with 

equity swaps 1,443,390 1,443,390 1,269,496 
- purchases 448,143 448,143 308,656 
- sales 995,247 995,247 960,840 
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without  
equity swaps 61,998,626 11,343,514 117,853 73,459,993 80,278,337 
- purchases 10,966,000 373,420 5,400 117,853 11,462,673 23,442,448 
- sales 51,032,626 10,970,094 62,002,720 56,835,889 
- currency against currency

B.2 Other derivatives
1. Transactions with 

equity swaps
- purchases 
- sales 
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without 
equity swaps
- purchases 
- sales 
- currency against currency
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A.4 "Over the counter" financial derivatives: positive fair value - counterparty risk
thousands of euros

Counterpart/ Debt securities Equity securitie Exchange rates Otheri Other
Underlying instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables underlying assets

Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Compens. Future
gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure exposure

A. Regulatory trading 
portfolio: 
A.1 Governments and 

Central banks 317,683 155,577 
A.2 Public bodies 151,483 33,410 
A.3 Banks 416,482 196,202 31,662 17,610 11,651 8,712 9,656 115 
A.4 Financial

companies 12,905 4,655 
A.5 Insurance companies 
A.6 Non-financial 

companies 617 811 
A.7 Other subjects 
Total A 31/12/2007 899,170 390,655 31,662 17,610 11,651 8,712 9,656 115 
Total 31/12/2006 1,217,270 168,849 66,815 12,209 5,957 15,758
B. Bank book:
B.1 Governments and

Central banks 
B.2 Public bodies  
B.3 Banks 765,032 171,141 499,783 271,260 115,600 50,047 13,829 306 
B.4 Financial

companies 14,751 4,521 62,019 37,441 3,256 1,350 34,919 283 
B.5 Insurance companies 
B.6 Non-financial 

companies 
B.7 Other subjects
Total B 31/12/2007 779,783 175,662 561,802 308,701 118,856 51,397 48,748 589 
Total 31/12/2006 1,088,962 98,553 0 0 66,020 8,125 0 0 
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A.5 "Over the counter" financial derivatives: negative fair value – financial risk
thousands of euros

Counterpart/ Debt securities Equity securitie Exchange rates Otheri Other
Underlying instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables underlying assets

Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Compens. Future
gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure exposure

A. Regulatory trading 
portfolio:
A.1 Governments and 

Central banks 
A.2 Public bodies 952 13,522 118 
A.3 Banks 853,007 392,914 21,387 14,076 11,648 8,712 9,656 115 4,182 94,841 
A.4 Financial

companies 40,515 15,457 7,955 2,088 
A.5 Insurance 

companies 2,194 1,682 
A.6 Non-financial 

companies 4,688 1,623 
A.7 Other subjects 217 324 
Total A 31/12/2007 899,379 423,840 31,654 17,846 11,648 8,712 9,656 115 4,182 94,841 
Total 31/12/2006 1,179,124 557,186 66,921 12,929 5,962 15,758 0 0 0 0
B. Bank book:
B.1 Governments and

Central banks 
B.2 Public bodies 
B.3 Banks 737,310 162,001 384,902 550,578 69,028 23,852 
B.4 Financial

companies 71,092 12,730 13,829 59,565 
B.5 Insurance

companies 
B.6 Non-financial

companies 
B.7 Other subjects
Total B 31/12/2007 808,402 174,731 398,731 610,143 69,028 23,852 
Total 31/12/2006 1,834,837 350,234 62,628 64,787 
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A.6 Residual term of "over the counter" financial derivatives: notional values
thousands of euros

Underlying instrument/ Residual term Up to 1 year Between 1 year More than Total
and 5 years 5 years

A. Regulatory trading book 24,654,695 33,228,962 43,835,740 101,719,397
A.1 Fin. derivatives on debt securities and interest rates 24,240,465 32,960,021 43,495,849 100,696,335
A.2 Fin. derivatives on equity securities and stock indices 34,000 205,348 169,900 409,248
A.3 Fin. derivatives on exchange rates and gold 380,230 17,449 169,991 567,670
A.4 Fin. derivatives on other valuables 46,144 46,144
B. Banking book 37,864,818 24,288,163 20,677,954 82,830,935
B.1 Fin. derivatives on debt securities and interest rates 36,280,015 15,421,686 18,219,078 69,920,779
B.2 Fin. derivatives on equity securities and stock indices 1,302,292 8,156,493 1,884,729 11,343,514
B.3 Fin. derivatives on exchange rates and gold 282,511 592,131 574,147 1,448,789
B.4 Fin. derivatives on other valuables 117,853 117,853
Total 31/12/2007 62,519,513 57,517,125 64,513,694 184,550,332 
Total 31/12/2006 81,265,671 36,496,774 56,733,913 174,496,358

B. Credit derivatives
B.1 Credit derivatives: notional values at end of period and averages

thousands of euros
Type of transaction Regulatory trading book Other transactions

on a single on several on a single on several
subject subjects (basket) subject subjects (basket)

1. Protection purchases 802,877 49,749 
1.1 With equity swap 4,755 
Credit linked notes 4,755 
1.2 Without equity swap 802,877 44,994 
Credit linked notes 44,994 
Credit default swap 802,877 
Total 31/12/2007 802,877 49,749 
Total 31/12/2006 787,877 70,009 
Averages 795,562 49,749 
2. Protection sales 802,877 49,749 
2.1 With equity swap 4,755 
Credit default swap 4,755 
2.2 Without equity swap 802,877 44,994 
Credit default swap 802,877 44,994 
Total 31/12/2007 802,877 49,749 
Total 31/12/2006 787,877 70,009 
Averages 795,562 49,749 
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B.2 Credit derivatives: positive fair value - counterparty risk
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amount Notional Positive Future
value Fair value exposure

A. REGULATORY TRADING BOOK 802,877 11,310 587 
A.1 Protection purchases with counterparties: 
1 Governments and Central banks 
2 Other public bodies 
3 Banks 
4 Financial companies 
5 Insurance companies 
6 Non-financial companies 
7 Other subjects 
A.2 Protection sales with counterparties: 802,877 11,310 587 
1 Governments and Central banks 
2 Other public bodies 802,877 11,310 587 
3 Banks 
4 Financial companies 
5 Insurance companies 
6 Non-financial companies 
7 Other subjects
B. BANK BOOK 32,993 3,072 2,539 
B.1 Protection purchases with counterparties: 
1 Governments and Central banks 
2 Other public bodies 
3 Banks 
4 Financial companies 
5 Insurance companies 
6 Non-financial companies 
7 Other subjects 
B.2 Protection sales with counterparties: 32,993 3,072 2,539
1 Governments and Central banks 
2 Other public bodies 
3 Banks 15,493 2,501 1,239 
4 Financial companies 17,500 571 1,300 
5 Insurance companies 
6 Non-financial companies 
7 Other subjects
Total 31/12/2007 868,863 17,454 5,665 
Total 31/12/2006 787,877 393 78,788 
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B.4 Residual term of derivative contracts on loans: notional values
thousands of euros

Underlying instrument/ Residual term Up to 1 year Between 1 year More than Total
and 5 years 5 years

A. Regulatory trading book 1,605,754 1,605,754
A.1 Credit derivatives with "subordinated" reference obligation
A.2 Credit derivatives with "non-subordinated" reference obligation 1,605,754
B. Banking book 10,000 89,498 99,498
B.1 Credit derivatives with "subordinated" reference obligation
B.2 Credit derivatives with "non-subordinated" reference obligation 10,000 89,498 0 99,498
Total 31/12/2007 10,000 89,498 1,605,754 1,705,252
Total 31/12/2006 39,400 100,618 1,575,754 1,715,772

SECTION 3 - Liquidity risk

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement of liquidity risk
The Group's lending operations are financed through bond issues on the home and international markets,
collecting funds on the interbank market and with refinancing transactions with the European Central Bank.

The Market and ALM Risks Department controls the liquidity risk using the following indicators:
a) liquidity gap (difference between assets and liabilities);
b) liquidity reserves (value of cashable instruments).
Compliance with the limits (liquidity ratios calculated as a ratio between liquidity reserves and the gap) is
monitored as regards short-term maturity dates (up to one week) and also mid- to long-term maturity dates
(more than one week).
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Quantitative information
1. Distribution by maturity according to residual contractual term of financial assets and liabilities - Currency:
Euro

thousands of euros
Item/Time on demand From From From From Between Between Between More Unspecified
bracket more than more than more than more than 3 and 6 month 1 year and than 

1 day to 7 days to 15 days to 1 month to 6 months and 1 year 5 years 5 years
7 days 15 days 1 month 3 months

Cash assets 
A.1 Government securities 52,703 3,392,253 X 
A.2 Listed debt securities 102,525 34,295 544,646 2,651,271 X 
A.3 Other debt securities 885 32 8,706 121,534 75,160 222,615 411,436 2,476,136 10,333,738 X 
A.4 Mutual fund shares 1,361 X 
Non-performing securities X X X X X X X X X 
Outstanding securities X X X X X X X X X 
A.5 Loans 

- banks 163,985 258,197 244,943 118,361 2,661,133 9,207 32,202 4,844,227 1,261,218 X 
- customers 1,189,404 146,047 7,826 12,709 18,361 539,236 627,708 4,006,374 9,122,710 X 

Non-performing loans X X X X X X X X X 147 
Outstanding loans X X X X X X X X X 
Cash liabilities   
B.1 Deposits X 

- banks 110,079 3,981,302 181,564 1,013,502 907,174 76,627 445,628 X 
- customers 754,095 X 

B.2 Debt securities   1,224 73,272 126,831 1,582,002 13,789,821 2,789,216 X 
B.3 Other liabilities   231,330 10,432,166 530,967 733,628 1,420,262 247,663 378,650 2,254,471 3,551,153 
Off balance sheet transactions
C.1 Financial derivatives 

with equity swap
- long positions 10,000 135 27,244 212,866 14,690 242,574 606,442 625,709 X 
- short positions 10,000 135 194,192 200,250 490,735 118,429 X 

C.2 Deposits and loans 
to be received 

- long positions 23,038 9,035 X 
- short positions 9,035 3,526 1,511 18,001 X 

C.3 Irrevocable commitments
to disburse funds

- long positions 2,915 5,000 3,757,195 1,631,241 X 
- short positions 4,543,725 5,000 44,749 802,877 X 
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SECTION 4 - Operational risks

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measuring methods of operational risk 
Operational risk is “the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or
from external events.” This definition includes legal risk, but not strategic risk (i.e. the risk of not achieving
the desired performance owing to assessment errors by the management) or reputational risk (i.e. the risk
of losing revenues owing to a loss of public confidence in the broker).

The method used by the Group for measuring operational risk is the Standardized Approach (SA).

As regards the qualitative method of assessing operational risks, an Operational Risks Unit has been created
within the Risk Management Office, and has responsibility for:
• laying down rules for the management and monitoring of operational risks;
• defining and adopting methods for measuring risks;
• defining, adopting and producing the reporting system on risk trends;

As regards management performance assessments, a number of Operational Risk Managers (ORM) have
been chosen within each of the Parent Bank’s structures, with the task of noting every operational risk event
and subsequently filing the information in the Group’s loss-database.

The Group has no significant lawsuits pending.

Quantitative information

The main causes of operational risk events are shown below in percentage terms:

CATEGORY OF EVENT %
internal fraud 0%
external fraud 0%
relationships with staff and safety in the workplace 0%
customers, products and business practice 5%
damage to or loss of tangible assets 0%
system failure or breakdown 0%
process execution, delivery and management 95%
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2. Distribution by sector of financial liabilities
thousands of euros

Exposure/Counterparts Governments and Other public Finance Insurance Non finance Other
Central Banks bodies companies companies companies subjects

1. Amounts due to customers 1,540,525 2,249,743 838,596 1,008 

2. Securities in issue 4,147 1,377,458 121,884 16,858,876 

3. Financial liabilities for trading 1,070 52,520 2,194 4,689 898,791 

4. Financial liabilities at fair value

Total 31/12/2007 0 1,545,742 3,679,721 124,078 843,285 17,758,675 

Total 31/12/2006 77 989,879 2,426,029 871,066 854,189 18,512,860 

3. Territorial distribution of financial liabilities
thousands of euros

Exposure/Counterparts Italy Other  European America Asia Rest of
countries the world

1. Due to customers 4,364,341 265,531 

2. Due to banks 16,254,985 6,926,522 1,277,210 

3. Securities in issue 15,604,326 2,743,360 14,679 

4. Financial liabilities for trading 273,317 682,272 3,095 580 

5. Financial liabilities at fair value

Total 31/12/2007 36,496,969 10,617,685 1,294,984 580 0

Total 31/12/2006 28,792,831 12,495,490 1,922,367 0 8,573 

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PART F - COMMENTS ON THE CAPITAL

A. Qualitative information
The corporate capital consists of the share capital, reserves from profits in previous periods, valuation reserves
on financial assets available for sale and cash flow hedges and reserves as a result of first adoption of the
IAS/IFRS principles. Except for the part of the capital used in equity investments and property and the part
from first adoption of IAS/IFRS and from reserves consisting of the fair value of assets available for sale and
cash flow hedging, the remainder of the capital is mainly invested in fixed-rate mid- to long-term financial
assets.

SECTION 2 – Capital and minimum capital ratios 

2.1 Regulatory Capital  
thousands of euros

B. Quantitative information Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Tier 1 capital before application of prudential filters 933,793 901,976 
B. Tier 1 capital prudential filters:

B.1  - positive IAS/IFRS prudential filters (+)
B.2  - negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-)

C. Tier 1 capital inclusive of elements to be deducted (A+B): 933,793 901,976 
D. Elements to be deducted from tier 1 capital   12,329 
E. Total  Tier 1 capital (C-D) 921,464 901,976 
F. Tier 2 capital before application of prudential filters 400,000 
G. Tier 2 capital prudential filters 2,154 3,675 

G.1   - positive IAS/IFRS prudential filters (+) 2,154 3,675 
G.2   - negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-)

H. Tier 2 capital inclusive of elements to be deducted (F+G) 402,154 3,675 
J. Elements to be deducted from tier 2 capital  12,329 
L. Total Tier 2 capital (H-J) 389,825 3,675 
M. Elements to be deducted from total tier 1 and tier 2 capital   24,658 
N. Regulatory capital (E+L-M)   1,311,289 880,993 
O. Tier 3 capital   
P. Regulatory capital including Tier 3 (N+O) 1,311,289 880,993 
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2.2 Capital adequacy
thousands of euros

B. Quantitative information Unweighted amounts Weighted amounts/requirements
Categories/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
A. RISK ASSETS
A.1 CREDIT RISK
STANDARD METHODOLOGY
CASH ASSETS
1.Exposure (other than equity securities and other 
subordinated assets) to (or guaranteed by): 44,939,570 35,012,242 9,013,226 5,061,692 

1.1 Governments and Central banks 11,665,973 12,545,928 0 0 
1.2 Public bodies 17,546,911 17,303,545 3,509,382 3,460,709 
1.3 Banks 12,778,548 4,452,233 2,555,710 890,447 
1.4 Other subjects (other than residential and 

non-residential mortgage loans) 2,948,138 710,536 2,948,134 710,536 
2. Residential mortgage loans 47,744 424,995 23,872 212,498 
3. Non-residential mortgage loans  
4. Shares, equity investments and subordinated assets 750,015 50,015 750,015 50,015 
5. Other cash assets 1,055,680 1,059,200 54,055 75,980 
OFF BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
1. Guarantees and commitments to (or guaranteed by): 6,072,562 7,702,649 992,930 967,098 

1.1 Governments and Central banks 2,700,487 3,838,883 0 0 
1.2 Public bodies 1,180,628 873,881 236,126 174,776 
1.3 Banks 1,716,421 2,644,838 343,284 528,968 
1.4 Other subjects 475,026 345,047 413,520 263,354 

2. Derivative contracts with (or guaranteed by): 2,805,463 1,572,956 634,363 355,115 
2.1 Governments and Central banks
2.2 Public bodies
2.3 Banks 2,561,228 1,437,877 512,246 287,575 
2.4 Other subjects 244,235 135,079 122,117 67,540 

B. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
B.1 CREDIT RISK 802,793 470,568 
B.2 MARKET RISKS 30,554 32,170 
1. STANDARD METHODOLOGY X X 

of which:
+ risk on debt security positions X X 15,491 14,842 
+ risk on equity security positions X X 
+ exchange rate risk X X 
+ other risks X X 15,063 17,328 

2. INTERNAL MODELS X X 
of which:
+ risk on debt security positions X X 
+ risk on equity security positions X X 
+ exchange rate risk X X 

B.3 OTHER PRUDENTIAL REQUIREMENTS X X 
B.4 TOTAL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS (B1+B2+B3) X X 833,347 502,738 
C. RISK ASSETS AND REGULATORY RATIOS X X 
C.1 Risk-weighted assets X X 11,904,963 7,181,973 
C.2 Tier 1 capital/ Risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 capital ratio) X X 7.74% 12.56%
C.3 Regulatory capital/ Risk-weighted assets (Total capital ratio) X X 11.01% 12.27%
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PART H – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

1. Information on directors’ and managers’ remuneration
The information referred to in paragraph 16 of IAS 24 regarding key management personnel is shown below:

thousands of euros

Short term benefits 4,828 

Post-employment benefits 1,076 

Other long term benefits 0   

Severance indemnity 365 

Payment in shares 0   

Total 6,269 

2. Information on transactions with related parties
The Company is the Parent bank of the Gruppo Bancario Dexia Crediop S.p.A. which, in addition to Dexia
Crediop S.p.A., includes the following subsidiaries:

1. Crediop Overseas Bank ltd, with a 100% shareholding;
2. DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l., with a 100% shareholding;
3. D.C.I. - Dexia Crediop Ireland with a 100% shareholding.

The company is controlled (70% of the share capital) by Dexia Crédit Local SA with registered offices in -
Tour Dexia La Défense 2         1, Passerelle des Reflets - TSA 12203 F-92919 La Défense Cedex - Paris.

The transactions made with these companies during the period were:

2.1 Transactions with the parent company
thousands of euros

Assets and Liabilities
Assets 
- Receivables for loans granted 4,841,440 
- Treasury securities 3,164,018 
- Hedging derivatives 197,465 
- Financial assets held for trading 22,144 
- Other assets 178

Total 8,225,244
Liabilities 
- Deposits  600,000 
- Hedging derivatives 229,061 
- Financial liabilities held for trading 72,849 
- Loans received 1,020,041 
- Subordinated debts 400,222 
- Other liabilities 1,431 

Total 2,323,603 

thousands of euros
Other transactions  
Guarantees given 57,571 
Guarantees received 5,483,933 
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thousands of euros
Income and charges
Income 
- Interest and similar income 628,726 
- Trading differential derivatives 131,106 
- Commission income 241 
Total 760,073 
Charges 
- Interest paid and similar charges 404,939 
- Trading differential derivatives 134,896 
- Commission expense 189 
- Administrative expenses 1,349
Total 541,373 

2.2 Transactions with subsidiary companies
COBL

thousands of euros
Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities 
- Loans received 1,288,983 
- Deposits paid 1,380 
Total 1,290,363

thousands of euros
Income and charges
Charges 
- Interest paid and similar charges 126,902 
Total 126,902 

thousands of euros
Other transactions  
Guarantees given 910,310 

D.C.I.
thousands of euros

Assets and Liabilities
Assets 
- Financial assets held for trading 1,340

Total 1,340
Liabilities
- Financial liabilities held for trading 36 
Total 36

thousands of euros
Income and charges
Income 
- Trading differential derivatives 510 
Total 510 
Charges 
- Trading differential derivatives 478
- Profits (Losses) on sales (29,535)
- Administrative expenses
Total (29,057) 

DEXIA CREDIOP S.P.A. | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
at 31 December 2007

DEXIA CREDIOP
BANKING GROUP





CONTENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements and  Related Reports 149

Report on Operations 151

Consolidated balance sheet 156

Consolidated income statement 157

Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors 159

External Auditors’ Report 163

Consolidated Financial Statements 167

Consolidated balance sheet 168

Consolidated income statement 170

Statement of changes in consolidated net equity 171

Statement of changes in consolidated financial position 172

Notes to the Financial Statements 174

Part A – Accounting policies 179

Part B - Comments on the consolidated balance sheet 190

Part C - Comments on the consolidated income statement 225

Part D – Information on the sector 235

Part E – Comments on risks and the relative cover policies 238

Part F – Comments on the capital 274

Part H – Operations with associated parties 276

DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007





CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
AND RELATED
REPORTS





REPORT
ON
OPERATIONS



DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

REPORT ON OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the Dexia Crediop S.p.A. Banking Group for the year ending
31 December 2007 were prepared in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards and
the International Accounting Standards (hereafter “IFRS”, “IAS”, or international accounting standards)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Commission
according to procedures referred to in article 6 of (CE) Regulation no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament
and Council dated 19 July 2002.
The following documents were used to help with their interpretation and application:

• Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements issued by the  IASB;
• Implementation Guidance, Basis for Conclusions, and other interpretational documents prepared by the

IASB or by the IFRIC (International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee) as a supplement to the
issued accounting standards;

• Interpretational documents on the application of the IAS/IFRS, prepared by the Organismo Italiano di
Contabilità (OIC) and the Associazione Bancaria Italiana (ABI).

As regards the schedules and the Notes to the Accounts, the Consolidated  Financial Statements  were prepared
by applying the provisions included in the Memorandum of the Banca d’Italia no. 262 dated 22 December 2005,
integrating this information according to the requirements of IAS, or where deemed appropriate from a point
of view of importance. 
For comparative purposes, the 2007 Financial Statements show the data of the preceding financial period, laid
out according to the same IAS/IFRS principles and schedules.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared by the Board of Directors of the Parent Bank and were
subject to Accounting Control, pursuant to article 2409-ter of the Italian Civil Code,  by Mazars & Guérard
S.p.A. as well as auditing by the same  Mazars & Guérard S.p.A..

CHANGES SINCE THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL PERIOD 
It should be noted that since the previous financial period, the Banking Group and the area of consolidation
have expanded due to the setting up of a financial company - Dexia Crediop Ireland - whose registered offices
are in Ireland. 

THE BANKING GROUP
The Dexia Crediop Banking Group includes:

• Dexia Crediop S.p.A.
• Crediop Overseas Bank Limited
• DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l.
• Dexia Crediop Ireland
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
The companies included in consolidation are:   

• Dexia Crediop S.p.A. (Parent Bank), which holds 100% of the companies that are part of the Group and
operates in the field of financing for public works and infrastructures;

• Crediop Overseas Bank Limited, which plays an instrumental role in the field of collecting funds on the
international markets for the Parent Bank Dexia Crediop S.p.A. ;

• DCC – Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l., a company which has been operational since 2004, and
whose exclusive purpose is the setting up of asset securitisation transactions pursuant to Italian law no. 130
dated 30 April 1999;

• Dexia Crediop Ireland, whose registered offices are in Dublin (Ireland) and which was established on
12 October 2007. 

COMMENTS ON OPERATIONS
The income statement of the Dexia Crediop Group reported net interest income of 138.3 million euro in 2007.
This is 8% lower than the year before mostly as a result of trends in market rates despite the higher volume of
activity.

Net fee and commission income was 4% higher than in 2006 at 8.1 million euro (+0.3 million euro). Dividends
amounted to 3.0 million euro, a reduction of 2.3 million euro on the previous year, owing mainly to lower
dividends received from the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo.

Net trading income, net hedging gains (losses) and gains/losses on disposal/repurchase totalled 25.1 million
euro, 11.8 million euro less than in the previous year, mostly in connection with trends in the reference market.

Net interest and other banking income amounted to 174.5 million euro, down 13% on 2006 (-26.4 million
euro).  

Net impairment adjustments amounted to a positive 1.0 million euro, an increase over the year before as a
result of general adjustments to loans. 

Net profits on financial activities amounted to 175.5 million euro, down 10% on 2006.

Administrative expenses, including depreciation and amortisation, amounted to 42.3 million euro, down 8%
compared with 2006, mainly due to a refund of registration taxes paid in 1996 (when the deed of assignment
was registered) but subsequently recognised by the Tax Authorities as not being due.

Total operating costs (including administrative expenses, net charges to provisions for risks and charges and
other operating income) were lower at 41.8 million euro (-8% on 2006), mainly due to administrative expenses.

Profit from current operations before tax was down by 11% on 2006 to 133.7 million euro.
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Taxes amounting to 17.9 million euro take into account the effects on deferred taxation of the reduction in tax
rates for IRES and IRAP in compliance with the 2008 Italian Finance Bill.

Net profit was 115.8 million Euro, an increase (+25%) over the previous year’s figure of 92.7 million.

* * *

As regards balance sheet figures, as of 31 December 2007 amounts due from customers came to 19.5 billion euro
and were substantially stable compared to the previous year. Overall financial assets (those held for trading,
available for sale and held to maturity) amounted to 18.4 billion euro, an increase of 7% over 2006. Total assets
stood at 54.5 billion euro, up 17% on the previous year.

On the liabilities side, amounts due to banks were 26.7 billion euro (17.7 billion in 2006) and securities in issue
accounted for 21,4 billion euro (21.1 billion in 2006).
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INFORMATION ON TRENDS IN THE GROUP’S MAIN COMPANIES
Dexia Crediop S.p.A. 
The Company operates in the field of public and project financing and in 2007 it achieved generally good
results in its characteristic activities though market conditions were not particularly favourable. 
Net profits for the year reached 85.8 million Euro, a reduction (-8%) from the previous year.

DCC – DEXIA CREDIOP PER LA CARTOLARIZZAZIONE S.R.L.
This company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia Crediop, has been operational since 2004. Its exclusive
purpose is the setting up of securitisation transactions pursuant to Italian Law no. 130/1999;
After carrying out two bond issues in the period 2004-2005 with the securitisation of portfolios made up
exclusively of securities issued by Italian public sector entities, this company did not make any new issues
during 2007.
In March 2008 it carried out the third securitisation operation of a portfolio of securities issued by Italian
public sector entities, for an amount of about 2.2 billion euro.

COBL - CREDIOP OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED 
In the past, this company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia Crediop, carried out funding operations on
international financial markets with Dexia Crediop's guarantee, with the proceeds being used by the parent
company.
No further funding operations have been completed through this subsidiary since mid-2004. Its activities are
therefore limited to managing the stock of existing operations.

DCI – DEXIA CREDIOP IRELAND
In accordance with the programme, the subsidiary began operating in the fourth quarter of 2007, acquiring part
of the banks’ portfolio and Dexia Crediop’s ABS (2.4 billion euro). In 2008 the company began to operate on
its own, acquiring bonds on the market.
It is expected that during the year the company will complete its acquisition of the whole Dexia Crediop
portfolio of its competence.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
In March 2008 the Parent Bank Dexia Crediop originated a securitisation operation (though DCC) of a
portfolio of securities issued by Italian public sector entities, for an amount of about 2.2 billion euro.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
thousands of euros

ASSETS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Cash and cash equivalents 3 3 0.0

20. Financial assets held for trading 962,074 1,298,221 -25.9

40. Financial assets available for sale 16,926,464 15,396,863 9.9

50. Financial assets held to maturity 477,813 525,580 -9.1

60. Due from banks 14,857,092 8,351,769 77.9

70. Due from customers 19,523,952 19,546,712 -0.1

80. Hedging derivatives 1,512,296 1,154,982 30.9

90. Fair value adjustment of financial assets  
in hedged portfolios (+/-) (86) 0

120. Property plant and equipment 44,811 44,642 0.4

130. Intangible assets 1,952 2,034 -4.0

of which: 0

- goodwill 0 0

140. Tax assets 10,831 1,188 811.7

a) current 10,831 1,188 811.7

b) deferred 0 0

160. Other assets 119,930 44,877 167.2

Total assets 54,437,132 46,366,871 17.4

thousands of euros

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Due to banks 26,705,974 17,743,749 50.5

20. Due to customers 2,807,812 3,110,163 -9.7

30. Securities in issue 21,359,106 21,061,801 1.4

40. Financial liabilities held for trading 957,889 1,251,698 -23.5

60. Hedging derivatives 1,279,821 1,897,776 -32.6

80. Tax liabilities 160,380 173,523 -7.6

a) current 2,500 1,504 66.2

b) deferred 157,880 172,020 -8.2

100. Other liabilities 48,404 41,253 17.3

110. Provision for severance indemnities 4,414 5,762 -23.4

120. Provisions for risks and charges 1,422 2,882 -50.7

a) provision for retirement and similar benefits 259 1,266 -79.5

b) other provisions 1,163 1,616 -28.0

140. Valuation reserves  90,193 121,737 -25.9

170. Reserves 455,712 413,640 10.2

190. Share capital 450,210 450,210 0.0

220. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 115,795 92,677 24.9

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 54,437,132 46,366,871 17.4
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
thousands of euros

ITEMS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 Var %

10. Interest and similar income 2,203,086 1,578,517 39.6

20. Interest and similar expenses (2,064,790) (1,427,601) 44.6

30. Net interest income 138,296 150,916 -8.4

40. Fee and commission income 11,447 10,796 6.0

50. Fee and commission expense (3,348) (2,986) 12.1

60. Net fee and commission income 8,099 7,810 3.7

70. Dividend and similar income 3,037 5,306 -42.8

80. Net trading gains (losses) 5,943 27,856 -78.7

90. Net hedging gains (losses) 682 (1,587) -143.0

100. Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: 18,483 10,689 72.9

a)   loans 5,596 5,084 10.1

b)   financial assets available for sale 7,620 3,323 129.3

d)   financial liabilities  5,267 2,282 130.8

110. Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 0 0 

120. Net interest and other banking income 174,540 200,990 -13.2

130. Net adjustments for impairment of: 985 (5,139) -119.2

a)   loans 985 (5,139) -119.2

140. Net income from financial activities  175,525 195,851 -10.4

170. Net income from financial and insurance activities 175,525 195,851 -10.4

180. Administrative expenses: (39,456) (42,825) -7.9

a)   personnel expenses (29,657) (27,855) 6.5

b)   other administrative expenses (9,799) (14,970) -34.5

190. Net provisions for risks and charges (167) (147) 13.4

200. Net adjustments on tangible assets (815) (825) -1.2

210. Net adjustments on intangible assets (2,014) (2,160) -6.8

220. Other operating expenses/income 613 453 35.3

230. Operating costs (41,839) (45,504) -8.1

280. Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax 133,686 150,347 -11.1

290. Income taxes from continuing operations (17,891) (57,670) -69.0

300. Profit (Loss) from continuing operations after tax 115,795 92,677 24.9

320. Profit (Loss) for the period 115,795 92,677 24.9

340. Profit (Loss) pertaining to the Parent Company 115,795 92,677 24.9
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2007

PURSUANT TO ART. 2429 OF THE ITALIAN CIVIL CODE

To the Shareholders of  Dexia Crediop S.p.A,

Dear Shareholders,

Within the scope of our tasks, pursuant to art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code, we have examined the

consolidated financial statements for the DEXIA CREDIOP Group as of 31 December 2007 (which closed

with a net income of 115.80 million Euro) together with the Report on the Group’s Operations.

Checks on the consolidated financial statements

The checks were performed in accordance with the Procedural Standards set for Boards of Statutory

Auditors, as established by the National Councils of Accountants. In line with these standards we referred to

the legislation governing consolidated financial statements and in particular to the international IAS/IFRS,

in compliance with which the financial statements were drawn up.

The financial statements of every subsidiary are subject to checks performed by their respective supervisory

bodies and submitted for auditing by specifically appointed external auditors and so this Board of Statutory

Auditors had no part in carrying out such checks. The external auditors’ report was issued on 2/4/2008 and

did not highlight any matters.

The aforementioned consolidated financial statements generally provide a correct picture of the financial

position and economic results of the DEXIA CREDIOP Group for the financial year that ended on 31

December 2007, in compliance with the rules governing consolidated financial statements as referred to in

paragraph 1.
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Checks on the Report on Operations

The Directors’ Report on operations, that is attached to the consolidated financial statements was checked

by us in order to ascertain its compliance with the provisions of art. 3 of the Italian Leg. Decree no. 87/1992

and to check that it is congruent with the consolidated financial statements.

On the basis of the checks carried out, the Board considers that the Report on the Group’s Operations is

correct and consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

04.04.08

THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Ezio Maria SIMONELLI Chairman

Vincenzo CIRUZZI Auditor

Pierre Paul DESTEFANIS Auditor
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report of the external auditors on the consolidated financial statements pursuant
to art. 2409-ter of the Italian Civil Code

To the Shareholders of

Dexia Crediop S.p.A.

1. We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dexia Crediop S.p.A. for the year to 31.12.07,

consisting of the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of changes in net equity, the financial

report and the notes to the accounts. The Dexia Crediop S.p.A. directors have responsibility for the preparation

of the financial statements. We are responsible for the professional opinion that we express on the financial

statements, based on the accounting review.

2. Our examination has been conducted according to the established auditing principles. In conformity with the

aforesaid auditing principles, the audit was planned and carried out in order to acquire every element necessary

to ascertain whether the consolidated financial statements contain any significant errors and if they are on the

whole, reliable. The auditing procedure includes examination, on the basis of sample inspections, of the

probative elements supporting the balances and the information contained in the financial statements, as

well as an assessment of the adequacy and correctness of the accounting criteria used and the reasonableness

of the estimates made by the directors. We consider that the work carried out gives a reasonable basis for

expressing our professional judgement.

The consolidated financial statements present comparative figures relating to the previous year, and in

relation to these one should refer to our audit report issued on 30 March 2007.

3. In our judgement, the consolidated financial statements of Dexia Crediop S.p.A. at 31.12.07 comply with the

International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union; they have therefore been drawn

up clearly and represent truly and fairly the financial situation and capital, economic result, variations in net

equity and cash flows of Dexia Crediop Group for the financial year closed on that date.

Milan, 02.04.08

Olivier Rombaut Vincenzo Miceli

Partner Partner – Auditor
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
thousands of euros

ASSETS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Cash and cash equivalents 3 3

20. Financial assets held for trading 962,074 1,298,221

40. Financial assets available for sale 16,926,464 15,396,863

50. Financial assets held to maturity 477,813 525,580

60. Due from banks 14,857,092 8,351,769

70. Due from customers 19,523,952 19,546,712

80. Hedging derivatives 1,512,296 1,154,982

90. Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged portfolios (+/-) (86) 0

120. Property plant and equipment 44,811 44,642

130. Intangible assets 1,952 2,034

of which:

- goodwill 0 0

140. Tax assets 10,831 1,188

a) current 10,831 1,188

b) deferred 0 0

160. Other assets 119,930 44,877

Total assets 54,437,132 46,366,871
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thousands of euros

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Due to banks 26,705,974 17,743,749

20. Due to customers 2,807,812 3,110,163

30. Securities in issue 21,359,106 21,061,801

40. Financial liabilities held for trading 957,889 1,251,698

60. Hedging derivatives 1,279,821 1,897,776

80. Tax liabilities 160,380 173,523

a) current 2,500 1,504

b) deferred 157,880 172,020

100. Other liabilities 48,404 41,253

110. Provision for severance indemnities 4,414 5,762

120. Provisions for risks and charges 1,422 2,882

a) provision for retirement and similar benefits 259 1,266

b) other provisions 1,163 1,616

140. Valuation reserves  90,193 121,737

170. Reserves 455,712 413,640

190. Share capital 450,210 450,210

220. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 115,795 92,677

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 54,437,132 46,366,871
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
thousands of euros

ITEMS 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

10. Interest and similar income 2,203,086 1,578,517 

20. Interest and similar expenses (2,064,790) (1,427,601)

30. Net interest income 138,296 150,916 

40. Fee and commission income 11,447 10,796 

50. Fee and commission expense (3,348) (2,986)

60. Net fee and commission income 8,099 7,810 

70. Dividends and similar income 3,037 5,306 

80. Net trading gains (losses) 5,943 27,856 

90. Net hedging gains (losses) 682 (1,587)

100. Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: 18,483 10,689 

a)   loans 5,596 5,084 

b)   financial assets available for sale 7,620 3,323 

d)   financial liabilities  5,267 2,282 

120. Net interest and other banking income 174,540 200,990 

130. Net adjustments for impairment of: 985 (5,139)

a)   loans 985 (5,139)

140. Net income from financial activities 175,525 195,851 

170. Net income from financial and insurance activities 175,525 195,851

180. Administrative expenses: (39,456) (42,825)

a)   personnel expenses (29,657) (27,855)

b)   other administrative expenses (9,799) (14,970)

190. Net provisions for risks and charges (167) (147)

200. Net adjustments on tangible assets (815) (825)

210. Net adjustments on intangible assets (2,014) (2,160)

220. Other operating expenses/income 613 453 

230. Operating costs (41,839) (45,504)

280. Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax 133,686 150,347 

290. Income taxes from continuing operations (17,891) (57,670)

300. Profit (Loss) from continuing operations after tax 115,795 92,677 

320. Profit (Loss) for the period 115,795 92,677 

340. Profit (Loss) pertaining to the Parent Company 115,795 92,677
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

thousands of euros
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Purchase of
treasury shares

Allocation of profit 
of the previous period

Reserves

Changes during the period

Operations on shareholders' equity

Changes in 
reserves

Share capital: 450,210 450,210 450,210 

a) ordinary shares 450,210 450,210 450,210 

b) other shares 0 

Share premiums 0 

Reserves: 413,640 413,640 42,072 455,712 

a) of profits 238,502 238,502 42,072 280,574 

b) others 175,138 175,138 175,138 

Valuation reserves: 121,737 121,737 (31,544) 90,193 

a) available for sale 116,863 116,863 (38,148) 78,715 

b) cash flow 
hedging 4,874 4,874 6,604 11,478 

c) others (to be detailed)

Equity instruments 0 

Treasury shares 0 

Profit (Loss)
for the period 92,677 92,677 (42,072) (50,605) 115,795 115,795 

Shareholders' equity  1,078,264 0 1,078,264 0 (50,605) (31,544) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 115,795 1,111,910

New share
issues

Profit
(Loss) for
the period

2007



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION
Indirect method euros
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES Amount Amount

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Operations 129,055 132,349 

- result for the period (+/-) 115,795 92,677 
- gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and on   (5,943) (27,856)

assets/liabilities carried at fair value (-/+)
- capital gains/losses on hedging assets (+/-) (682) 1,587 
- net adjustments for impairment (+/-) (985) 5,139 
- net adjustments on tangible and intangible fixed assets (+/-) 2,812 2,985 
- net provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues (+/-) 167 147 
- net premiums not collected (-)
- other insurance revenues/charges not collected (-/+)
- unpaid taxes and duties (+) 17,891 57,670 
- net adjustments of disposal groups classified as held for sale,
net of tax effect (-/+)

- other adjustments (+/-)
2. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets (8,066,343) (4,393,091)

- financial assets held for trading 342,091 357,403 
- financial assets designated at fair value
- financial assets available for sale (1,529,601) (2,395,158)
- due from banks: on demand 11,857 (13,779)
- due from banks: other receivables (6,517,181) (1,428,575)
- due from customers 23,745 (609,408)
- other assets (397,254) (303,574)

3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabilities 7,987,754 4,305,413 
- due to banks: on demand (667,822) 731,329 
- due to banks: other deposits 9,630,046 1,548,435 
- due to customers (302,351) 1,279,542 
- securities in issue 297,305 1,591,151 
- financial liabilities held for trading (293,809) (401,985)
- financial liabilities designated at fair value
- other liabilities (675,615) (443,059)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operations 50,466 44,671 
B. Investment activities
1. Liquidity generated by 3,037 5,306 

- sales of equity investmentss
- dividend collected from equity investments 3,037 5,306 
- sales of financial assets held to maturity
- sales of tangible assets   0 0 
- sales of intangible assets   
- sales of subsidiaries and company divisions

2. Liquidity absorbed by (2,899) (2,862)
- purchases of equity investmentss
- purchases of financial assets held to maturity
- purchases of tangible assets   (968) (869)
- purchases of intangible assets   (1,931) (1,993)
- purchases of subsidiaries and company divisions

Liquidity generated/absorbed by investment activities 138 2,444 
C. Funding activities

- issues/purchases of treasury shares
- issues/purchases of equity instruments
- distribution of dividend and other uses (50,604) (47,115)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activities (50,604) (47,115)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed in the period 0 0 
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RECONCILIATION
euros

Balance sheet items Amount Amount
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period 3 3 

Total net liquidity generated/absorbed in the period 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents: effect of variations in exchange rates 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 3 3 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Part A - Accounting policies 
Part B - Comments on the consolidated balance sheet 
Part C - Comments on the consolidated income statement 
Part D - Information on sectors 
Part E - Comments on risks and associated hedging policies 
Part F - Comments on the capital 
Part H - Transactions with related parties 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Part A – Accounting policies 
A.1 General Part 

– Section 1 - Declaration of conformity to International Accounting Standards    
– Section 2 - General accounting principles 
– Section 3 - Consolidation area and methods 
– Section 4 - Events after the balance sheet date 
– Section 5 - Other aspects 

A.2 The main aggregates of the financial statements 
1 - Financial assets held for trading 
2 - Financial assets available for sale 
3 - Financial assets held to maturity 
4 - Loans  
6 - Hedging derivatives  
8 - Property plant and equipment  
9 - Intangible assets  
11 - Current and deferred taxes  
12 - Provisions for risks and charges  
13 - Debt instruments and securities in issue  
14 - Financial liabilities held for trading  
16 - Currency transactions  
18 - Other information  

Part B - Comments on the consolidated balance sheet  
ASSETS  

– Section  1 - Cash and cash equivalents  
– Section 2 - Financial assets held for trading  
– Section  4 - Financial assets available for sale  
– Section  5 - Financial assets held to maturity  
– Section 6 - Due from banks  
– Section 7 - Due from customers  
– Section 8 - Hedging derivatives  
– Secton   9 - Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged potfolios  
– Section 12 - Property plant and equipment  
– Section 13 - Intangible assets  
– Section 14 - Tax credits and liabilities  
– Section 16 - Other assets  

LIABILITIES 
– Section 1 - Due to banks  
– Section 2 - Due to customers 
– Section 3 - Securities in issue  
– Section 4 - Financial liabilities held for trading 
– Section 6 - Hedging derivatives  
– Section 10 - Other liabilities 
– Section 11 - Provision for severance indemnities  
– Section 12 - Provisions for risks and charges  
– Section 15 - Group capital  
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Part C - Comments on the consolidated income statement  
– Section 1 - Interest  
– Section 2 - Commissions  
– Section 3 - Dividends and similar income 
– Section 4 - Trading gains (losses) 
– Section 5 - Hedging gains (losses)  
– Section 6 - Disposal/repurchase gains (losses)  
– Section 8 - Net adjustments for impairment  
– Section 11 - Administrative expenses  
– Section 12 - Net provisions for risks and charges  
– Section 13 - Net adjustments on tangible assets  
– Section 14 - Net adjustments on intangible assets 
– Section 15 - Other operating expenses and income  
– Section 20 - Tax on profit from continuing operations  

Part D – Information on the sector  
A  Primary schedule  
A.1 - Distribution according to business sectors: income details  
A.2 - Distribution according to business sectors: asset and liability details
B  Secondary schedule  
B.1 - Distribution according to geographical areas : income details  
B.2 - Distribution according to geographical areas : asset and liability details  

Part E – Comments on risks and associated hedging policies  
Section 1 - Risks for the banking group  

1.1 Credit risk 
Qualitative information  
Quantitative information  

A.  Credit quality  
A.1  Peforming and non-performing loans: amounts, adjustments, trends,

economic and geographical distribution  
A.2 Classification of exposures according to external and internal ratings  
A.3 Breakdown of secured loans according to type of guarantee  

B. Credit distribution and concentration  
B.1 Distribution of on and off balance sheet customer loans according to sector  
B.2 Distribution of loans to non-financial companies 
B.3 Distribution of on and off balance sheet customer loans according to area  
B.4 Distribution of on and off balance sheet loans to banks according to area  
B.5 Major exposures  

C.  Securitisation and asset disposal transactions  
C.1 Securitisation transactions  
C.2 Disposal transactions 
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1.2 Market risks 
1.2.1 Interest rate risk - Regulatory trading book 

Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

1.2.2 Interest rate risk - Banking book 
Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

1.2.3 Price risk - Regulatory trading book 
Qualitative information 

1.2.4 Price risk - Banking book 
Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

1.2.5 Exchange rate risk 
Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

1.2.6 Financial derivatives 
A. Financial derivatives 
B. Credit derivatives 

1.3 Liquidity risk 
Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

1.4 Operational risks
Qualitative information 
Quantitative information 

Part F – Comments on the capital 
Qualitative information 

Section 2 - Capital and minimum capital ratios 

Part H – Transactions with related parties 
1. Information on directors’ and managers’ remuneration 
2. Information on transactions with related parties 
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PART A – ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

Section 1 – Declaration of conformity to international accounting standards
The Financial Statements of the Dexia Crediop Group for the year ending 31 December 2007 were prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and the International Accounting Standards
(hereafter “IFRS”, “IAS”, or international accounting standards) issued by the International Accounting Stan-
dards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Commission according to procedures referred to in article 6
of Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council dated 16 July 2002, which were
approved on that date. 
The Financial Statements were also prepared in accordance with the instructions contained in Memorandum
no. 262, dated 22 December 2005, issued by the Bank of Italy.

The accounting principles and criteria for evaluation adopted in drawing up the financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2007 are given below.. 

Section 2 – General accounting principles
The consolidated financial statements were drawn up in true and fair fashion and consist of the balance sheet,
the income statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the statement of changes in the
financial position and the notes to the statements. The financial statements are also accompanied by the
Directors’ Report on Operations. The statements were drawn up in thousands of euro.

The balance sheet and income statement schedules consist of items identified with numbers and sub-items
identified with letters together with additional information (the various “references” made to the items and
sub-items). The items, sub-items and associated additional information make up the financial statement
accounts. Each account in the balance sheet and income statement also shows the amount relating to the
previous period. The balance sheet and income statement do not include any accounts with zero amounts
in both the year of reference and the previous financial year.

The notes to the statements were drawn up in thousands of euro. Any items and tables which do not have any
amounts are not mentioned in the notes to the statements.

The financial statements were drawn up according to the going concern principle and the accruals concept.
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Section 3 – Consolidation area and methods

1. 1. Equity investments in companies controlled exclusively by the Parent Bank or jointly

thousands of euros
Investment relationship % of votes held

Company name Head office Investor Stake %
company

A. Companies:
A.1 Consolidated line-by-line
Crediop Overseas Bank Limited Cayman Isl. Dexia Crediop 100% 100%
DCC – Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l. Rome Dexia Crediop 100% 100%
D.C.I. – Dexia Crediop Ireland Dublin Dexia Crediop 100% 100%

This period saw the incorporation of the subsidiary Dexia Crediop Ireland (DCI), an unlimited liability company
constituted under Irish law. Its registered offices are at 6 George’s Dock, Dublin 1 and the share capital amounts
to Euro 700 million represented by 700 million shares, each with a nominal value of 1 euro.
- 699,999,999 shares are held by Dexia Crediop S.p.A.;
- 1 share is held by Dexia Investments Ireland, in its capacity as Trustee for Dexia Crediop S.p.A..   

2. Other information
The consolidated financial statements of the Dexia Crediop Group consist of the individual financial statements
of the Parent Bank Dexia Crediop S.p.A., which have been supplemented to absorb the full consolidation of the
subsidiary companies.
The consolidation principles adopted for the financial statements as at 31 December 2007 are shown below:
• in drawing up the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the parent bank and the

subsidiaries were aggregated together on a line-by-line basis, adding together the respective asset and
liability amounts, the shareholders’ equity and the revenues and costs. In order for the consolidated
financial statements to show the information about the Group as a single economic entity, the following
procedures were adopted:
a. the book value of the parent bank’s equity investments in each subsidiary was eliminated together with

the corresponding part in each subsidiary’s shareholders’ equity;
b. the asset and liability balance sheet relations, off-balance-sheet operations, revenues and charges, as well

as profits and losses relating to transactions between companies included in the area of consolidation
were removed.

• with regard to the financial statements of DCC (Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione srl) only the
“above-the-line” financial statement balances were included in consolidation, whereas those relating to
“Separate Equity”, which includes the assets and liabilities and the economic components of the two
securitization operations, were already included in the individual financial statement in accordance with
IAS 39, which states that transferred assets and liabilities cannot be derecognised when the associated risks
and benefits deriving from them still exist.

Section 4 – Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events after the balance sheet date which entail a need to amend the results of the financial
statements as at 31 December 2007.
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Section 5 - Other aspects
On the closing date of these financial statements there were no apparent reasons to doubt the estimates which
could lead to material amendments in the book values of the assets and liabilities. In addition, there were no
changes made to the accounting estimates which have had effects in the current financial period.

A. 2 – MAIN AGGREGATES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 – Financial assets held for trading
The item “Financial assets held for trading” includes:
• financial assets, which, irrespective of their technical form, are held with a view to generating profits in the

short term;
• derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments.  
As regards financial assets, both debt and equity instruments are first recognised on the settlement date,
while derivatives are entered on the trade date. 
Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at fair value, which generally corresponds to the
settlement price. When the settlement price is different from fair value, the financial asset is recognised
at fair value and the difference compared to the settlement price is booked to the income statement.
Subsequent measurement is carried out on the basis of changes in the fair value and the result is booked
to the income statement. 
Differentials in derivative contracts classified in the trading portfolio and the results of the fair value
measurement are included in “Net trading gains (losses)”. 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is calculated on the basis of official prices existing on the
date of the financial statements, if the financial instruments are quoted in active markets. Otherwise, fair
value is calculated using prices supplied by external traders or commonly adopted measurement models
which take into account all the risk factors linked to the instruments and which are based on data available
on the market, such as: measurement of listed instruments with similar characteristics, calculation of discounted
cash flows, option price calculation models, and values recorded in recent comparable transactions.
Financial assets for trading are derecognised only on expiry of the contractual rights relating to the cash
flows or when the financial assets are sold with the transfer to third parties of all the risks and benefits
associated with them. However, if a significant proportion of the risks and benefits of the sold financial
assets are maintained, they continue to be recognised, even if ownership of such assets has effectively
been transferred. 
If substantial transfer of the risks and benefits cannot be ascertained, the financial assets are derecognised
when no type of control is maintained over the same. Otherwise, when such control is retained, even
partially, these assets are maintained on the balance sheet to the extent to which the said control is retained,
calculated according to exposure to changes in the value of the sold assets and variations in the cash flows
of the same. 
These financial assets are derecognised on the date they are disposed of (settlement date). 
Derivatives are considered financial assets if their fair value is positive and liabilities if their fair value is
negative. The Group does not compensate the current positive and negative values from transactions in
existence with the same counterparty.
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2 – Financial assets available for sale
The item “Financial assets available for sale” includes all financial assets other than derivatives, that are not
classified as loans and receivables, investments held to maturity or financial assets held for trading. The item
also includes debt securities and equity securities (including the equity investment in the Istituto per il Cre-
dito Sportivo) which cannot be classified as subsidiaries, associated companies or joint subsidiaries and which
do not, therefore, fall within the scope of application of IAS 28.  

For financial assets, debt and equity securities are first recognised on the settlement date, while loans are
recognised on the date they are disbursed.
Financial assets available for sale are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value, which is normally the same
as the purchase price, including any charges or revenue directly ensuing from the instrument. When the price
paid is different from fair value, the financial asset is designated at fair value and the difference compared to
the price is booked to the income statement. 
Subsequent measurement is carried out on the basis of changes in the fair value and variations are booked
to a specific reserve in shareholders’ equity, net of any tax effects. Any accumulated or unrealised profits or
losses on securities available for sale are recognised in the income statement when the asset is disposed of.
Financial assets available for sale are examined in order to verify whether there is any objective evidence of
a fall in value. If such evidence exists, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the book
value of the asset, net of any redemptions and amortizations,  and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate, or using specific valuation methods where
shares are concerned. If the reasons for the writedowns no longer exist, reversals are performed which are
booked to the income statement if they refer to debt securities or loans, and to shareholders’ equity if they
refer to equity securities.  
As regards determination of the fair value of financial assets available for sale and the criteria used for
derecognising them, the reader is referred to the information provided above for financial assets held for
trading.

3 – Financial assets held to maturity
The item “Financial assets held to maturity” includes financial assets other than derivatives, which have fixed
or calculable contractual payments and fixed maturity dates and which can be and are intended to be held
to maturity except for those which:
a) the Bank designates, at the time of initial recognition, at the fair value booked to the income statement;
b) the Bank designates as available for sale;
c) meet the definition of loans and receivables. 
If, following a change of plan or capacity, it is no longer appropriate to keep an investment classified as held
to maturity, it is reclassified among assets available for sale.
Financial assets held to maturity are first recognised on the settlement date. On initial recognition, financial
assets classified in this category are designated at fair value, on the trade date (IAS 39, para. 44 and AG 56)
including any charges and income directly attributable to the instrument. When the settlement price is
different from fair value, the financial asset is recognised at its fair value and the difference compared to the
settlement price is booked to the income statement. 
Financial assets included in this category as a result of reclassification from ‘Assets available for sale’, are
recognised at amortised cost, which is initially taken as being equal to the fair value of the asset on the date
of reclassification. 
After initial recognition, financial assets held to maturity are carried at amortised cost and are subjected to
tests aimed at identifying the existence of any objective evidence of reduced value. The amortised cost of an
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asset is the same as the value the asset was measured at on the date of initial recognition net of any capital
reimbursements. This is increased or reduced by the overall amortisation (determined using the effective
interest method) of any difference between the initial value and the value on maturity and minus any reduction
following a writedown or irrecoverability. 
Gains and losses relating to assets held to maturity are booked to the income statement at the moment in
which the assets are derecognised or have suffered an impairment loss, as defined in IAS 39, as well as through
the process of financial amortisation of the difference between the recognition value and the redemption
value on maturity.
Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the book value of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When the reasons for an impairment
loss no longer exist, a reversal is booked to the income statement which cannot, however, exceed the amortized
cost which the instrument would have had without the previous loss. 
As regards the criteria used for derecognising financial assets held to maturity, the reader is referred to the
information provided above for financial assets held for trading.

4 – Loans
The item “Loans and receivables” includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments,
which are not quoted in an active market, and which are not designated as “Financial assets available for sale” on
the date of initial recognition. 
Normally they include loans to banks and customers, including debt securities with characteristics similar to
receivables, previously classified under the item “Bonds and other debt securities”. 
Receivables are first entered on the date they are issued or, in the case of debt securities, on the settlement date.
Receivables are initially recognised at their fair value, equal to the amount paid out, or to the subscription price,
including any costs/income directly attributable to the single receivable and that was determinable on the
original date of the transaction. Even if they have the above features, costs which are reimbursed by the borrower
or which can be considered normal internal administrative costs are excluded. 
Receivables are subsequently measured at their amortised cost, using the effective interest method which, by
using financial logic, enables the economic effect of costs/revenues to be distributed over the expected remaining
life of the loan.
The book value of the loan portfolio is periodically subject to checks for the existence of any losses in value which
could determine a reduction in their presumable collection value. For a classification of impaired debts in the
various risk categories (non-performing loans, problem loans, restructured and expired exposures), reference is
made to the regulations issued on the subject by the Bank of Italy together with the internal provisions which
establish rules for classification and transfers within the scope of the various expected risk categories. 
Writedowns to be booked to loans and recognised in the income statement, net of any previous provisions, are
equal to the difference between the book value at the time of assessment (the amortised cost) and the current value
of expected future cash flows, calculated by applying the original effective interest rate. The estimate of future cash
flows takes account of expected recovery times, the presumable realization value of any existing guarantees and
costs considered necessary for recovery of the loan exposure. 
As regards loans classified within the categories of non-performing loans and problem loans, which show objective
evidence of long-term impairment, an analytical assessment is carried out. 
Loans which do not show any objective evidence of impairment or for which no impairment is forecast are
assessed collectively, by grouping them together in homogeneous categories with similar characteristics in terms
of credit risk, such as the technical form of the loan, the economic sector the counterparties belong to, their
geographical location and the type of existing guarantees. 
The original value of the loans is reinstated in subsequent financial periods to the extent to which the reasons for
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the writedown are no longer evident; the writeback is booked to the income statement and may not in any case
exceed the amortised cost that the loan would have had in the absence of previous writedowns.
Financial guarantees given which are not represented by derivatives are assessed taking into account the
provisions of IAS 39 which stipulate, on the one hand, recognition of the fee received, pursuant to IAS 18, and
on the other, measurement of the risks and charges connected with the guarantees by applying the principles
provided for in IAS 37.  
Sale and repurchase transactions are also included in the item “loans and receivables”.
Securities received within the context of a repurchase transaction which contractually provides for their subse-
quent sale, and securities delivered as part of transaction which contractually provides for their subsequent
repurchase are not recognised or derecognised respectively. Consequently, when a security is purchased with an
agreement for its resale, the amount paid is recognised as a loan to (or amount due from) customers or banks; if
a security is sold with an agreement for its repurchase the liability is recognised among loans from (amounts due
to) banks or customers. 
Revenues from loans, consisting of coupons maturing on the securities themselves and of the difference between
the spot price and the repurchase price, are recognised as interest in the Income Statement of the relative period.
During 2004 and 2005 two securitisation transactions were performed on securities for Italian local authorities
through the 100% subsidiary company, “DCC-Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l.” (henceforth “DCC”).
To support these operations Dexia Crediop issued an unconditional guarantee to the bearer of the senior ABSs
(another company in the Dexia Group). Owing to this guarantee, and therefore to the obligation to re-purchase
the securities and reimburse all the ABSs against any form of credit or fiscal event, we are of the opinion that, even
if the legal ownership of the securities is transferred, control over the cash flows of the securities is in fact still
retained, as well as the substantiality of the risks and benefits (continuing involvement). 
Since the conditions provided for in IAS 39 for derecognition of the securities being sold do not exist, the
pre-existing situation was reinstated in the balance sheet, with reattribution within the Dexia Crediop accounts
of DCC’s separate equity. In particular, the individual securities were attributed to the accounting portfolios L&R
- Loans and Receivables and AFS - Financial assets available for sale. 

4.1 – Due from banks
The item “Due from banks” includes loans to banks which foresee fixed and determinable payments not
quoted in active markets and securities with characteristics similar to loans, previously classified under the
item “Bonds and other debt securities”.

4.2 – Due from customers
The item “Due from customers” includes loans to customers which foresee fixed and determinable payments
not quoted in active markets and securities with characteristics similar to loans, previously classified under
the item “Bonds and other debt securities”.

6 – Hedging derivatives
Hedging instruments are used to neutralize potential losses which may be recognised in a particular element
and attributable to one or more types of risk (interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, price risk, credit risk, etc.).
The types of hedging transactions used are the following:
• Fair value hedges, performed with the aim of hedging the exposure to variations in the fair value of

assets/liabilities recognised in the balance sheet;
• Cash flow hedges, performed with the aim of hedging the exposure to variations in cash flows of assets/liabilities

recognised in the balance sheet or relating to highly probable future transactions.
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A financial instrument is designated as a hedge if there is formal documentation on the relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument, which includes the risk management objectives, the strategy for
carrying out the hedge and the methods which will be used to test the effectiveness of the hedge itself.

The Dexia Crediop Banking Group conducts an assessment at the start and periodically, using forecasting and
retrospective tests, to see whether or not the hedge is highly effective in compensating the changes in fair
value or in cash flows of the hedged instrument. The tests on effectiveness are considered as passed if the ratio
between the changes in the fair value hedging instruments and those of the hedged items fall within the range
of 80-125%.
The hedging relationship ceases if: (i) the hedging operation through the derivative ceases or is no longer
highly effective; (ii) the derivative expires, is sold, annulled or exercised; (iii) the hedged item is sold, expires
or is redeemed; (iv) it is no longer highly probable that the future hedged operation will be performed.
The “Hedging derivatives” items among the assets (item 80) and liabilities (item 60) on the balance sheet
include the positive and negative value of derivatives which are part of effective hedging operations.
Like all derivatives, hedging derivatives are initially recognised in the balance sheet on the trade date and are
subsequently measured at fair value.
In the case of fair value hedging, any changes in the value of the hedging instruments and the hedged
instruments (as regards the part attributable to the hedged risk and when the hedge is effective) are booked
to the income statement. The differences between the variations in value constitute the partial ineffectiveness
of the hedge and lead to a net impact in the income statement, recognised under item 90. If the hedge ceases to
exist for reasons other than realization of the hedged item, the variations in value of the latter, which were
recognised in the balance sheet for as long as the effective hedge was maintained, are booked to the income
statement. When the hedge refers to interest-bearing financial instruments, this is done using the amortized
cost principle, or in other cases with a single amount. 
As regards cash flow hedges, the profit or loss portion on a hedging instrument that is considered effective
is initially recognised in shareholders’ equity (cash flow hedging reserve). If during the period any portion
of gain or loss associated with the hedging instrument exceeds the fair value variation of expected flows in
absolute value terms, it is immediately recognised in the income statement (overhedging); if the excess value
is on the hedged instrument (underhedging), the entire change in fair value recognised for the derivative is
booked to shareholders’ equity. When the cash flows being hedged become manifest and are recognised in
the income statement, the relevant gain or loss on the hedging instrument is transferred from shareholders’
equity to the corresponding item in the income statement. If the cash flow hedge for a future transaction is
no longer considered effective or the hedging relationship has ceased, the total gain or loss on the hedging
instrument which had been booked to shareholders’ equity stays booked to the specific equity reserve until
the transaction takes place (or until it appears unlikely that the transaction will actually take place). When
the transaction is actually completed, this amount is recognised in the income statement under item 80 “Net
trading gains (losses)”.

8 – Properties, plant and equipment 
The item “Properties, plant and equipment” includes assets held to be used for more than one financial period
in the production and provision of services or for administrative purposes (so-called “instrumental assets”),
together with real estate properties held for collecting rent and/or for the appreciation of the capital invested
(so-called “non-instrumental assets”).
When the standards were first adopted, the part attributable to plots of land associated with “sky-to-ground”
properties, was separated out since they were not subject to depreciation, as land has an indefinite useful life.
Similarly the historical cost of works of art not subject to depreciation was reinstated, because their useful
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life is deemed impossible to estimate and their value is not likely to fall with the passing of time. 
In line with paragraph 7 of IAS 16, properties, plant and equipment are recognised in the balance sheet only
when it is reasonably possible to determine the cost of the asset and it is probable that the associated future
economic benefits will accrue to the company. Therefore, it is important to establish the time when the risks
and benefits attached to an asset are effectively transferred to the company, irrespective of when ownership
is formally conveyed. 
Properties, plant and equipment are initially entered at cost, which includes not only the purchase price but
also any associated charges directly ensuing from the purchase and costs involved in starting up the asset. The
expenses incurred, subsequent to purchase, increase the book value of an asset or are recognised as separate
assets only when they lead to an increase in future economic benefits due to the use of the asset; other expenses
incurred subsequent to purchase are booked to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
In periods subsequent to that of initial recognition, assets are recognised in the accounts on the basis of the
amortisable historical cost method. The relevant amortisation is carried out on the basis of the possible
residual useful life of the assets. The useful life of properties, plant and equipment subject to depreciation is
periodically re-assessed.

9 – Intangible assets
The item “Intangible assets” includes assets that can be identified and are without physical consistency, which
originate from legal or contractual rights and which are held to be used over a number of years. In the main,
they are represented by application software.
Intangible assets are recognised at cost, net of overall depreciation and permanent impairment losses, only
if the future economic benefits ascribable to the asset are likely and if the cost of the asset itself can be measured
reliably. Otherwise, the cost of the assets is booked to the Income Statement in the year in which it was incurred.
Intangible assets recognised in the balance sheet are amortised on the basis of their residual useful life
according to a straight-line method. The period and method of amortisation are re-assessed at the end of each
financial period.

11 – Current and deferred taxes 
Current income taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax result for the year. These taxes are entered as tax
liabilities if they exceed the amounts already paid in advance during the year, and as tax assets if the amounts
paid in advance exceed the taxes for the period.
Current taxes are booked as a revenue or as a charge and are included in profits or losses for the year except
for taxes that refer to items that are accredited or debited directly to shareholders’ equity, in  which case they
are booked directly to shareholders’ equity.
Deferred taxes are calculated by applying the so-called balance sheet liability method, bearing in mind the
fiscal effect connected with the temporary differences between the book value of assets and liabilities and their
fiscal value, which lead to taxable or deductible amounts in future periods.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated by applying current tax rates to taxable temporary differences
for which it is likely that taxes will effectively be sustained, and to deductible temporary differences for which
there is a reasonable certainty of recovery. Deferred tax assets  relating to the same kind of tax which fall due
in the same period are offset against each other.
If deferred tax assets and liabilities refer to items booked to the income statement, the contra-item is the
associated income tax. When deferred tax assets and liabilities refer to transactions directly involving
shareholders’ equity, with no direct influence on the income statement (such as adjustments relating to first
adoption of IAS/IFRS, and measurements of financial instruments available for sale or of cash flow hedging
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derivatives), they are booked as contra-entries to shareholders’ equity, and entered in the specific reserves if
appropriate. 
Assets and liabilities booked for deferred tax assets and liabilities are systematically assessed to take into
account both any amendments in legal provisions or changes in rates and any different subjective situations
of the Group companies.

12 - Provisions for risks and charges 
Provisions for risks and charges include allocations for liabilities with amounts or due dates that are uncertain
and that relate to present obligations resulting from a past event for which the expenditure of financial
resources is likely in order to fulfil the said obligation, as long as the relevant amount can  be reliably estimated. 
If the time factor is significant, the provisions, which are recognised in contra-items in the income statement, are
discounted at current market rates. 
The item includes provisions for early retirement incentives, applying the rules of the national contracts for
bank workers and of specific company agreements.

12.1 – Provisions for retirement funds and similar benefits
Staff pension funds include the various forms of complementary retirement schemes with defined benefits,
established to implement company agreements and recognised in the accounts in compliance with the
provisions of IAS 19 "Employee benefits". 
Liabilities relating to such plans and the associated social security costs of current employee service are
determined by independent actuaries on the basis of actuarial and financial hypotheses defined by the Dexia
Group.
The actuarial gains or losses, considered cumulatively, are booked to the income statement on the basis of the
so-called “corridor” method. The part of actuarial gains or losses not recognised at the end of the previous
period, which exceeds whichever is greater between 10% of the current value of the benefits generated by the
plan, and 10% of the fair value of the assets serving the plan, is booked to the income statement on the basis
of the average residual duration of the Fund’s benefits. 
The regular contributions charged to the Company are booked to the income statement and determined on
the basis of employee service.

12.2 – Other provisions 
This item includes provisions made against legal and implicit obligations existing at the close of the period,
including provisions for employee early retirement schemes and other social security and health charges,
and provisions for the creation of the reserve required for paying employees their long-service bonuses
according to the terms of company regulations.
These liabilities are determined, in the same way as pension funds, on the basis of an assessment conducted
by an independent actuary using the methods laid down in IAS 19. 
The actuarial gains and losses are therefore recognized in the balance sheet with a contra-item in the income
statement.
The provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

13 – Payables and securities in issue
The items “Due to banks”, “Due to customers”, and “Securities in issue” include various forms of provisioning
from banks and customers, reverse repurchase agreements and provisioning through bonds and other funding
instruments in issue (net of any portions repurchased). 
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Initial recognition of such financial liabilities is made when the sums collected are received or when the
securities are issued, on the basis of the fair value of the liabilities, which is normally equal to the amount
received or the issue price, with an increase for any additional costs/revenues directly connected to the single
funding or bond issue operation and not reimbursed by the lender. Internal administrative costs are excluded. 
After initial recognition, debts and the securities in issue, with the exception of on-demand and short-term
entries booked at the price received, are valued at their amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have expired or are extinguished. They are also derecognised in
the case of repurchase of  previously issued securities. The difference between the book value of a liability and
the amount paid for purchase is booked to the Income Statement. 
Replacement on the market of own securities after buyback is considered a new issue with recognition at the
new placement price, with no effect on the Income Statement.

14 – Financial liabilities for trading 
The item includes the negative value of trading derivatives.
All financial liabilities for trading are initially booked on the trade date and are designated at fair value and
the result of the valuation is entered on the income statement.

16 – Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are first entered in the accounting currency, applying the exchange rate in
force at the moment of the transaction.
At the end of every financial year or interim period, foreign currency items are measured as follows:
• cash items are converted at the exchange rate in force on the balance sheet date;
• non-cash items are carried at their historical cost converted at the exchange rate in force on the date of the

transaction;
• non-cash items designated at fair value are converted at the exchange rate in force on the balance sheet date.

Exchange rate differences resulting from the settlement of cash elements or from the conversion of non-cash
elements at rates other than those of the initial conversion or the conversion rate of the previous financial
statements, are booked to the Income Statement of the financial period in which they arise.
When a gain or loss relating to a non-monetary item is recognised in shareholders’ equity, the exchange rate
difference associated with this item is also booked to shareholders’ equity. On the contrary, if a gain or loss
is booked to the income statement, the associated exchange rate difference is also booked to the income statement.

17 – Other information

17.1– Accruals and deferrals
Accrued income and deferred expenses include portions of revenues/expenses relating to several financial
periods in part already matured during the current financial period (and in the previous ones) but not
yet received/paid. Deferred income and prepaid expenses include portions of revenues/expenses already
received/paid in the reporting period (or in previous ones) but relating to the current financial period
or subsequent ones. 
These amounts are recognised in the balance sheet, adjusting the assets and liabilities they refer to.
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17.2 – Recognition of revenues and costs
Revenues from the sale of goods or the provision of services are recognised in the balance sheet at the fair value
of the consideration received on the basis of the accruals concept. In the majority of cases the consideration
consists of cash or similar means and the amount of the revenues is the sum of cash or similar means received
or due.
Costs are booked to the income statement in the periods when the associated revenues are recognised.

17.3 – Valuation reserves
This item includes valuation reserves relating to financial assets available for sale and cash flow hedges, net
of the associated current or deferred taxation.
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PART B – COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

SECTION 1 - Cash and cash equivalents – Item 10

1.1 Cash and cash equivalents: breakdown
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Others Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

a) Cash 3 3 3
b) Unrestricted deposits at Central Banks
Total 3 3 3 

SECTION 2 - Financial assets held for trading - Item 20

2.1 Financial assets held for trading: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007  31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
A Cash assets
1. Debt securities

1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities

2. Equity securities
3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loans

4.1 Repurchase agreements
4.2 Others

5. Impaired assets
6. Assets sold but not derecognized
Total A
B. Derivative instruments
1. Financial derivatives 950,764 950,764 1,290,042 

1.1 for trading 950,764 950,764 1,290,042 
1.2 associated with fair value option
1.3 others

2. Credit derivatives 11,310 11,310 8,179
2.1 for trading 11,310 11,310 8,179 
2.2 associated with fair fair value option
2.3 others

Total B 962,074 962,074 1,298,221 

Total (A+B) 962,074 962,074 1,298,221
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2.2 Financial assets held for trading: breakdown by debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Cash assets
1. Debt securities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other issuers

2. Equity securities
a) Banks
b) Other issuers:

- insurance companies
- financial companies
- non-financial companies
- others

3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loan facilities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

5. Impaired assets
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

6. Assets sold but not derecognized
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other issuers

Total A
B. Derivative instruments

a) Banks 469,415 469,415 432,656 
b) Customers 492,659 492,659 865,565 

Total B 962,074 962,074 1,298,221 
Total (A+B) 962,074 962,074 1,298,221
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2.3 Financial assets held for trading: derivative trading instruments
2.3.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of derivatives/ Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other Total Total
underlying assets rates and gold securities 1/12/2007 31/12/2006
A) Listed derivatives
1) Financial derivatives:

• with equity swap
- options purchased
- other derivatives

• without equity swap
- options purchased
- other derivatives

2) Credit derivatives:
• with equity swap
• without equity swap

Total A
B) Unlisted derivatives
1) Financial derivatives: 897,795 11,651 31,662 0 9,656 950,764 1,290,042 

• with equity swap 11,651 5,957 
- options purchased
- other derivatives 11,651 5,957 

• without equity swap 897,795 31,662 9,656 939,113 1,284,085 
- options purchased 1,431 21,617 23,048 66,816 
- other derivatives 896,364 10,045 9,656 916,065 1,217,269

2) Credit derivatives: 11,310 11,310 8,179 
• with equity swap
• without equity swap 11,310 11,310 8,179

Total B 897,795 11,651 31,662 11,310 9,656 962,074 1,298,221 
Total (A+B) 897,795 11,651 31,662 11,310 9,656 962,074 1,298,221
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SECTION 4 - Financial assets available for sale - Item 40

4.1 Financial assets available for sale: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007  31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
1. Debt securities 2,071,784 4,393,089 2,071,784 4,393,089 9,356,243 5,898,063 

1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities 2,071,784 4,393,089 2,071,784 4,393,089 9,356,243 5,898,063 

2. Equity securities 142,013 142,013 141,883 
2.1 Carried at fair value 142,013 142,013 141,883 
2.2 Carried at cost

3. Mutual fund shares 1,362 1,362 674 
4. Loan facilities
5. Impaired assets
6. Assets sold but 

not derecognized 5,123,580 5,194,636 5,123,580 5,194,636 
Total 7,195,364 9,731,100 7,195,364 9,731,100 9,356,243 6,040,620

"Assets sold but not derecognized" include financial assets used in repurchase agreements. In 2006 these assets
were included in "Debt securities".

Details relating to equity securities and mutual fund shares are shown below: 

thousands of euros
Equity securities and mutual fund shares Financial Statements at 31/12/2007 AFS reserve at 31.12.2007 

after tax
Istituto per il Credito Sportivo 140,276 113,882
European Investment Fund 1,736 726 
Idroenergia S.c.r.l. 1 0
Europolis Invest S.A. 0 (17) 
Equity securities 142,013 114,591 
Dimensione Network Fund       (Mutual fund shares) 606 (127) 
Mid Capital Mezzanine Fund    (Mutual fund shares) 756 (50)
Mutual fund shares 1,362 (177) 
Total 143,375 114,4

As regards the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo (ICS), Dexia Crediop S.p.A. holds 2,065,864 shares, with a
nominal value of 1 euro each, out of a total of 9,554,452 shares, which corresponds to a 21.622% stake.
Since the interest held by Dexia Crediop S.p.A. does not express the same proportion of voting rights
and does not confer significant influence, the shares have been classified as financial assets available for
sale (AFS).

DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



4.2 Financial assets available for sale: breakdown by debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Debt securities 6,464,873 6,464,873 15,254,306 
a) Governments and Central banks 90,149 90,149 1,078,111 
b) Other public bodies 1,712,539 1,712,539 6,060,686 
c) Banks 2,066,615 2,066,615 2,307,392 
d) Other issuers 2,595,570 2,595,570 5,808,117

2. Equity securities 142,013 142,013 141,883 
a) Banks 142,012 142,012 141,882 
b) Other issuers: 1 1 1 

- insurance companies
- financial companies
- non-financial companies 1 1 1 
- others

3. Mutual fund shares 1,362 1,362 674 
4. Loan facilities

a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

5. Impaired assets
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies
c) Banks
d) Other subjects

6. Assets sold but not derecognized 10,318,216 10,318,216 
a) Governments and Central banks 3,354,808 3,354,808 
b) Other public bodies 4,382,900 4,382,900 
c) Banks 762,237 762,237 
d) Other subjects 1,818,271 1,818,271 

Total 16,926,464 16,926,464 15,396,863

4.3 Financial assets available for sale: hedged assets  
4.3.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
assets hedged

Assets/type of hedging 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
Fair value Cash flows Fair value Cash flows

1. Debt securities 7,661,937 765,342 7,364,398 0
2. Equity securities
3. Mutual fund shares
4. Loan facilities
5. Portfolio
Total 7,661,937 765,342 7,364,398 0
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4.4 Financial assets available for sale: assets with specific hedges
thousands of euros

Items/Components Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Financial assets with specific  
fair value hedges 7,661,937 7,661,937 7,364,398 
a) interest-rate risk 6,880,551 6,880,551 6,525,019 
b) price risk
c) exchange rate risk
d) credit risk
e) multiple risks 781,386 781,386 839,379 

2. Financial assets with specific  
cash flow hedges 765,342 765,342 0
a) interest-rate risk 765,342 765,342 0
b) exchange rate risk
c) other risks

Total 8,427,279 8,427,279 7,364,398

4.5 Financial assets available for sale (other than those sold but not derecognized and impaired assets):
annual change  
4.5.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Debt Equity UCITS Loans Total

securities securities units 
A. Opening balances 15,254,306 141,883 674 0 15,396,863 
B. Increases 4,322,692 130 982 0 4,323,804 

B1. Purchases 4,262,755 982 4,263,737 
B2. Positive changes in FV 28,585 130 28,715 
B3. Writebacks
- booked to the income statement X 
- booked to shareholders' equity
B4. Tranfers from other portfolios
B5. Other changes 31,352 31,352 

C. Decreases 13,112,125 0 294 0 13,112,419 
C1. Sales 3,319,704 205 3,319,909 
C2. Redemptions 528,797 528,797 
C3. Negative changes in FV 262,707 89 262,796 
C4. Writedowns for impairment
- booked to the income statement
- booked to shareholders' equity
C5. Transfers to other portfolios
C6. Other changes 9,000,917 0 9,000,917 

D. Closing balances 6,464,873 142,013 1,362 0 6,608,248 
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SECTION 5 - Financial assets held to maturity - Item 50

5.1 Financial assets held to maturity: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
components of the group group companies companies 31/12/2007  31/12/2006

Book Fair Book Fair Book Fair Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value value value value value value value

1. Debt securities 477,813 487,445 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691 
1.1 Structured securities
1.2 Other debt securities 477,813 487,445 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691 

2. Loan facilities 
3. Impaired assets 
4. Assets sold but 

not derecognized 
Total  477,813 487,445 477,813 487,445 525,580 557,691

5.2 Financial assets held to maturity: debtors/issuers
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Debt securities 477,813 477,813 525,580 
a) Governments and Central banks 
b) Other public bodies 477,813 477,813 525,580 
c) Banks 
d) Other issuers 

2. Loan facilities 
a) Governments and Central banks
b) Other public bodies 
c) Banks 
d) Other subjects 

3. Impaired assets 
a) Governments and Central banks 
b) Other public bodies 
c) Banks 
d) Other subjects 

4. Assets sold but not derecognized 
a) Governments and Central banks 
b) Other public bodies 
c) Banks 
d) Other subjects 

Total  477,813 477,813 525,580 
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5.4 Financial assets held to maturity (other than those sold but not derecognized and impaired assets):
annual change  

thousands of euros
Debt securities Loans Total  

A. Opening balances 525,580 0 525,580 
B. Increases 6 0 6

B1. Purchases 
B2. Writebacks 
B3. Tranfers from other portfolios 
B4. Other changes 6 

C. Decreases 47,773 0 47,773 
C1. Sales 
C2. Redemptions 41,950 
C3. Writedowns 
C4. Transfers to other portfolios 
C5. Other changes 5,823 

D. Closing balances 477,813 0 477,813 

SECTION 6 - Due from banks - Item 60

6.1 Due from banks: breakdown by type
6.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
A. Due from Central Banks 104,920 0

1. Restricted deposits 
2. Compulsory  reserve 89,751 
3. Reverse repurchase agreements 
4. Others 15,169 

B. Due from banks    13,657,142 8,351,769 
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 50,850 167,627 
2. Restricted deposits 2,823,624 2,431,082 
3. Other loans 8,395,226 5,477,744 

3.1 Reverse repurchase agreements 1,613,132 805,362 
3.2 Leasing 
3.3 Others 6,782,094 4,672,382 

4. Debt securities 2,387,442 275,316 
4.1 Structured securities 
4.2 Other debt securities 2,387,442 275,316 

5. Impaired assets 
6. Assets sold but not derecognized 1,095,030 0

Total (book value) 14,857,092 8,351,769 
Total (fair value) 14,799,982 8,171,922
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6.2 Due from banks: microhedged assets
6.2.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Loans with specific fair value 3,183,646 2,983,983 

a) interest-rate risk 3,129,927 2,983,983 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) credit risk
d) multiple risks 53,719 0 

2. Loans with cash flow hedges 2,589,104 1,047,252 
a) interest rate 2,589,104 1,047,252 
b) exchange rate
c) other risks

Total 5,772,750 4,031,235 

SECTION 7 - Due from customers - Item 70

7.1 Due from customers: breakdown by type
7.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Current accounts
2. Reverse repurchase agreements
3. Loans 15,472,292 15,387,357 
4. Credit cards, personal loans, salary-backed loans
5. Leasing
6. Factoring
7. Other transactions 197,968 100,369 
8. Debt securities 3,103,790 4,058,816 

8.1 Structured securities
8.2 Other debt securities 3,103,790 4,058,816 

9. Impaired assets 147 170 
10. Assets sold but not derecognized 749,755 0
Total (book value) 19,523,952 19,546,712 
Total (fair value) 19,617,980 20,218,583

"Assets sold but not derecognized" include financial assets used in repurchase agreements. In 2006 these assets
were included among "Debt securities".
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7.2 Due from customers: breakdown by debtors/issuers
7.2.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Debt securities: 3,103,790 4,058,816 

a) Governments
b) Other public bodies 3,049,362 3,932,792 
c)  Other issuers 54,428 126,024 

- non-financial companies 3,494 45,908 
- financial companies 50,934 80,116 
- insurance companies
- others

2. Loans to: 15,670,260 15,487,726 
a) Governments 7,439,422 2,456,442 
b) Other public bodies 6,217,570 9,412,835 
c) Other subjects 2,013,268 3,618,449 

- non-financial companies 1,225,666 2,211,759 
- financial companies 773,605 1,379,984 
- insurance companies 0 0
- others 13,997 26,706

3. Impaired assets: 147 170 
a) Governments
b) Other public bodies 147 170 
c) Other subjects

- non-financial companies
- financial companies
- insurance companies
- others

4. Assets sold but not derecognized: 749,755 
a) Governments
b) Other public bodies
c) Other subjects 749,755 

- non-financial companies
- financial companies
- insurance companies
- others 749,755 

Total 19,523,952 19,546,712

7.3 Due from customers: microhedged assets
7.3.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1. Loans with specific fair value hedges 11,504,598 12,091,262 

a) interest-rate risk 11,501,230 12,087,137 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) credit risk
d) multiple risks 3,368 4,125 

2. Loans with specific cash flow hedges 2,944,734 2,948,836 
a) interest-rate risk 2,944,734 2,948,836 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

Total 14,449,332 15,040,098
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SECTION 8 - Hedging derivatives - item 80

8.1 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by type of contract and underlying assets
8.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other Total

rates and gold securities
A) Listed 
1) Financial derivatives:

• with equity swap 
- options purchased 
- other derivatives 

• without equity swap 
- options purchased 
- other derivatives 

2) Credit derivatives: 
• with equity swap 
• without equity swap 

Total A 
B) Unlisted derivatives 
1) Financial derivatives: 779,818 118,856 561,802 0 48,748 1,509,224 

• with equity swap 118,382 
- options purchased 
- other derivatives 118,382 

• without equity swap 779,818 474 561,802 -   48,748 
- options purchased 120,041 
- other derivatives 779,818 474 441,761 48,748 

2) Credit derivatives: 3,072 3,072 
• with equity swap 
• without equity swap 3,072 

Total B 779,818 118,856 561,802 3,072 48,748 1,512,296
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 779,818 118,856 561,802 3,072 48,748 1,512,296 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 1,085,377 66,020 0 3,585 -   1,154,982

8.2 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by portfolios hedged and type of hedging (book value)
8.2.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Transaction/Type of hedging Fair value hedging Cash flow hedges

interest exchange credit price multiple generic specific generic
rate risk rate risk risk risk risk 

1. Financial assets available 
for sale 203,816 115,074 X 24,441 X 

2. Loans  502,579 X 849 X -   X 
3. Financial assets held 

to maturity X X X X 
4. Portfolio X X X X X 461 X 
Total assets 706,395 0 0 0 115,923 461 24,441 0
1. Financial liabilities 163,032 0 0 X 496,514 X 5,530 X 
2. Portfolio X X X X X X 
Total liabilities 163,032 0 0 496,514 0 5,530 0
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SECTION 9 - Fair value adjustment of financial assets in hedged potfolios - Item 90

9.1 Fair value adjustments of hedged assets: breakdown by portfolios hedged

thousands of euros
Fair value adjustments of hedged  Banking Insurance Other 31/12/2007
assets/Components of group group companies companies
1. Increases 407 407 

1.1 of specific portfolios: 407 
a) loans 247 
b) assets available for sale 160

1.2 total
2. Decreases 493 493 

2.1 of specific portfolios: 493 
a) loans 493 
b) assets available for sale

2.2 total
Total (86) (86)

9.2 Assets of the banking group with macro hedging of interest rate risk: breakdown

thousands of euros
Hedged assets 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
1.  Loans (246)
2.  Assets held for sale  160
3.  Portfolio 
Total (86) 0
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SECTION 12 - Property, plant and equipment – Item 120

12.1 Property, plant and equipment: breakdown of assets carried at cost 
thousands of euros

Assets/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Assets for business purposes
1.1 company owned 44,762 44,762 44,592 

a) land 28,844 28,844 28,844 
b) buildings 13,477 13,477 13,220 
c) furniture 2,161 2,161 2,229 
d) electronic systems 0 0 0
e) others 280 280 299 

1.2 acquired on lease
a) land
b) buildings
c) furniture
d) electronic systems
e) others

Total A 44,762 44,762 44,592 
B. Assets held as investments
2.1 company owned 49 49 50 

a) land
b) buildings 49 49 50 
c) furniture

2.2 acquired on lease
a) land
b) buildings
c) furniture

Total B 49 49 50 
Total (A+B) 44,811 44,811 44,642

Additional information
The amortisation method used for property, plant and equipment, which is deemed to reflect the ways in
which the related future economic benefits will be used, is the straight line method. This method involves
amortisation of a constant charge throughout the useful life of the asset if its residual value does not change.
During the period there have been no changes to the expected uses of the future economic benefits such as
to require change in the amortistion method.
The useful life of assets is calculated on the basis of their expected usefulness. Since land and works of art have
an unlimited useful life, they are not subject to depreciation.
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12.3 Property, plant and equipment for business purposes: annual change 
12.3.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Land Buildings Furniture Electronic Others Total

systems
A. Gross opening balances 28,844 19,970 3,226 0 1,068 53,108 
A.1 Net total adjustments 0 6,750 997 0 769 8,516 
A.2 Net opening balances 28,844 13,220 2,229 0 299 44,592
B. Increases 0 868 39 0 77 984 
B.1 Purchases 0 852 39 0 77 968 
B.2 Expenses for capitalised improvements
B.3 Writebacks
B.4 Increases in fair value booked to:

a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Reclassification from buildings 

held as investments
B.7 Other changes 16 16
C. Decreases 0 612 107 0 95 814 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Depreciation 0 612 107 0 95 814 
C.3 Impairment losses booked to:

a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

C.4 Decreases in fair value booked to:
a) shareholders' equity
b) income statement

C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Reclassification to:

a) tangible assets held as investments
b) assets held for sale

C.7 Other changes
D. Net closing balances 28,844 13,476 2,161 0 281 44,762 
D.1 Net total adjustments 0 7,362 1,104 0 865 9,331 
D.2 Gross closing balances 28,844 20,838 3,265 0 1,146 54,093 
E. Measurement at cost
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12.4 Property, plant and equipment held as investments: annual change 

Property, plant and equipment held as investments are carried at cost as allowed by IAS 40.

thousands of euros
Banking group Insurance companies Other companies Total

Land Buildings Land Buildings Land Buildings Land Buildings
A. Opening balances 0 50 0 50 
B. Increases 0 0 0
B.1 Purchases
B.2 Expenses for capitalised improvements 
B.3 Increases in fair value
B.4 Writebacks
B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Reclassification from fixed assets  

for business purposes
B.7 Other changes
C. Decreases 0 1 1 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Depreciation 1 1 
C.3 Decreases in fair value
C.4 Writedowns for impairment
C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Transfers to other asset portfolios

a) Properties for business purposes
b) Non-current assets held for sale

C.7 Other changes
D. Closing balances 0 49 0 49 
E. Designated at fair value 0 155 0 155 
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SECTION 13 - Intangible assets - Item 130

13.1 Intangible assets: breakdown by type of asset
thousands of euros

Assets/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Limited Unlimited Limited Unlimited Limited Unlimited Limited Unlimited Limited Unlimited
duration duration duration duration duration duration duration duration duration duration

A.1 Goodwill X X X X X
A.1.1 pertaining to 

the Group X X X X X 
A.1.2 pertaining to 

third parties X X X X X 
A.2 Other intangible 

assets 1,952 1,952 2,034
A.2.1 Assets carried 

at cost: 1,952 1,952 2,034 
a) Intangible  

assets
generated in
the company

b) Other assets  1,952 1,952 2,034 
A.2.2 Assets designated

at fair value:
a) Intangible  

assets
generated in
the company

b) Other assets  
Total 1,952 1,952 2,034

The intangible assets consist of software purchased from third parties in the process of amortization.
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13.2 Intangible assets: annual change
13.2.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Other intangible assets: Other intangible assets:

generated internally others

Goodwill Limited Unlim. Limited Unlim. Total
A. Opening balances 20,356 20,356 
A.1 Net total adjustments 18,322 18,322 
A.2 Net opening balances 2,034 2,034
B. Increases 1,932 1,932 
B.1 Purchases 1,932 1,932 
B.2 Increases in internal 

intangible assets X 
B.3 Writebacks X 
B.4 Increases in fair value

- to shareholders' equity X 
- to income statement X 

B.5 Positive exchange-rate differences
B.6 Other changes
C. Decreases 2,014 2,014 
C.1 Sales
C.2 Writedowns 2,014 2,014 

- Depreciation X 2,014 2,014 
- Devaluations:

+ shareholders' equity X 
+ income statement

C.3 Decreases in fair value: 
- to shareholders' equity X 
- to income statement X 

C.4 Reclassification to non-current  
assets held for sale

C.5 Negative exchange-rate differences
C.6 Other changes
D. Net closing balances 1,952 1,952
D.1 Net total adjustments 20,336 20,336 
E. Gross closing balances 22,288 22,288 
F. Measurement at cost

Key
Limited:: of limited duration
Unlim.: of unlimited duration
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SECTION 14 – Tax credits and liabilities - Item 140 of the assets and Item 80 of the
liabilities

14.1 Deferred tax assets: breakdown

Deferred tax assets mainly refer to negative fair values of the AFS and CFH reserves, as well as to provisions
for risks and charges.

The deferred tax asset amount has been adjusted to the new nominal tax rates for IRES (Corporate Income
Tax) and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), which should come into effect from 2008 onwards,
in accordance with Italian Law no. 244/2007. This has led to a reduction in deferred tax assets, as shown in
the tables below, with an impact on the Income Statement of Euro 2,164 thousand and on Shareholders'
Equity of Euro 1,729 thousand.

14.2 Deferred tax liabilities: breakdown

The deferred tax liabilities mainly refer to positive fair values of the AFS and CFH reserves and of equity
investments, to provisions for credit risks as a non-accounting entry, and to the deferment of taxability of
capital gains (properties).

The deferred tax liability has been adjusted to the new nominal tax rates for IRES (Corporate Income Tax)
and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), which should come into effect from 2008 onwards, in
accordance with Italian Law no. 244/2007. This has led to a reduction in deferred tax liabilities, as shown in
the tables below, with an impact on the Income Statement of Euro 27,243 thousand and on Shareholders'
Equity of Euro 4,488 thousand.

14.3 Change in deferred tax assets (with matching entry in income statement) 
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Opening balance 17,433 17,433 20,289 
Increases 1,024 1,024 1,394

2.1 Deferred tax assets arising in the year 1,024 1,024 1,394 
a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) writebacks 
d) other 1,024 1,024 1,394 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates 
2.3 Other increases 

Decreases 5,689 5,689 4,250 
3.1 Deferred tax assets cancelled in the year 3,525 3,525 4,250 

a) reversals 3,525 3,525 4,250 
b) written down as now considered unrecoverable 
c) change in accounting policies 

3.2 Reduction in tax rates 2,164 2,164 0 
3.3 Other decreases 

Closing balance 12,768 12,768 17,433
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14.4 Change in deferred tax liabilities (with matching entry in income statement) 
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Opening balance 169,741 169,741 152,316 
2. Increases 20,952 20,952 17,895 
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities arising in the year 20,952 20,952 17,895 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) other 20,952 20,952 17,895 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates 
2.3 Other increases 
3. Decreases 27,688 27,688 470 
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities cancelled in the year 445 445 

a) reversals 445 445 470 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) other

3.2 Reduction in tax rates 27,243 27,243 470 
3.3 Other decreases 
4. Closing balance 163,005 163,005 169,741 

14.5 Change in deferred tax assets (with matching entry to equity) 
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Opening balance 11,146 11,146 22,419 
2. Increases 10,615 10,615 11,145 
2.1 Deferred tax assets arising in the year 10,615 10,615 11,145 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) other 10,615 10,615 11,145 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates  
2.3 Other increases  
3. Decreases 1,729 1,729 22,418 
3.1 Deferred tax assets cancelled in the year 0 0 22,418 

a) reversals 0 0 22,418 
b) written down as now considered unrecoverable 
c) change in accounting policies 

3.2 Reduction in tax rates  1,729 1,729 0 
3.3 Other decreases  
4. Closing balance 20,032 20,032 11,146 
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14.6 Change in deferred tax liabilities (with matching entry to equity) 
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Opening balance 30,858 30,858 38,021 
2. Increases 4,672 4,672 26,517 
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities arising in the year 4,672 4,672 26,517 

a) relating to prior years 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) other 4,672 4,672 26,517 

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates   
2.3 Other increases   
3. Decreases 7,855 7,855 33,680 
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities cancelled in the year 3,367 3,367 33,680 

a) reversals 3,367 3,367 33,680 
b) due to changes in accounting policies 
c) other

3.2 Reduction in tax rates   4,488 4,488 0
3.3 Other decreases   
4. Closing balance 27,675 27,675 30,858 

14.7 Assets in the form of current taxes: breakdown

The assets in the form of current taxes mainly refer to the difference between the tax advances paid and the
sum allocated for taxes of the Parent Company for the period.

SECTION 16 - Other assets - Item 160

16.1 Other assets: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
components of the group group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Adjustments to derivative exchange rates 65,494 65,494 13,625

2. Other assets 54,436 54,436 31,252

Total 119,930 119,930 44,877 
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LIABILITIES

SECTION 1 - Amounts due to banks - Item 10

1.1 Amounts due to banks: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
components of the group group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Amounts due to central banks 14,824,882 14,824,882 9,833,998 
2. Amounts due to banks  11,881,092 11,881,092 7,909,751 
2.1 Current accounts and demand deposits 98,127 98,127 755,490 
2.2 Restricted deposits 4,009,234 4,009,234 1,266,318 
2.3 Loan facilities 6,450,283 6,450,283 4,768,237 

2.3.1 Leasing
2.3.2 Others 6,450,283 6,450,283 4,768,237 

2.4 Amounts due for commitments to  
repurchase own equity instruments

2.5 Amounts due for assets sold but 
not derecognized 1,323,448 1,323,448 1,119,706
2.5.1 Repurchase agreements 1,323,448 1,323,448 1,119,706
2.5.2 Others

2.6 Other payables
Total 26,705,974 26,705,974 17,743,749 
Fair value 26,629,606 26,629,606 17,739,789

1.2 Details of item 10 "Amounts due to banks": subordinated debts
On 31 December 2007 subordinated debts stood at Euro 400,222 thousand.

1.4 Details of item 10 "Due to banks": payables with specific hedges
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Payables with specific fair value hedges 218,343 334,775 

a) interest-rate risk 218,343 291,185 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) more than one risk 0 43,590

2. Payables with specific cash flow hedges 11,343,938 594,843
a) interest-rate risk 11,343,938 594,843 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

Total 11,562,281 929,618
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SECTION 2 – Due to customers – Item 20

2.1 Due to customers: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
Components of the group group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 754,095 754,095 847,623 
2. Restricted deposits 0 0 437,710 
3. Public funds administered
4. Loan facilities 1,264,500 1,264,500 1,001,963 

4.1 leasing
4.2 others 1,264,500 1,264,500 1,001,963 

5. Due for commitments to repurchase  
own equity instruments

6. Due for assets sold but not derecognized 789,217 789,217 822,867 
6.1 Repurchase agreements 789,217 789,217 822,867 
6.2 others

7. Other payables
Total 2,807,812 2,807,812 3,110,163 
Fair value 2,737,432 2,737,432 3,102,262 

The item "Liabilities against assets disposed of but not written off the balance sheet" includes debts connected with
the operations selling financial assets which do not conform to the IAS 39 requirements for total cancellation from
the balance sheet.

SECTION 3 - Securities in issue - Item 30

3.1 Securities in issue: breakdown by type
thousands of euros

Type of security/
components of the group Banking Insurance Other Total Total

group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
BV FV BV FV BV FV BV FV BV FV

A. Listed securities 6,625,091 6,390,463 6,625,091 6,390,463 7,182,373 7,197,062 
1. Bonds 6,625,091 6,390,463 6,625,091 6,390,463 7,182,373 7,197,062 

1.1 structured
1.2 others 6,625,091 6,390,463 6,625,091 6,390,463 7,182,373 7,197,062 

2. Other securities
2.1 structured
2.2 others

B. Unlisted securities 14,734,015 14,612,754 14,734,015 14,612,754 13,879,428 13,758,008 
1. Bonds 14,733,429 14,612,168 14,733,429 14,612,168 13,879,428 13,758,008 

1.1 structured
1.2 others 14,733,429 14,612,168 14,733,429 14,612,168 13,879,428 13,758,008 

2. Other securities 586 586 586 586 
2.1 structured
2.2 others 586 586 586 586 

Total 21,359,106 21,003,217 21,359,106 21,003,217 21,061,801 20,955,070 
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3.3 Details of item 30 "Securities in issue": securities with specific hedges
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Securities with specific fair value hedges: 19,309,052 18,815,070 

a) interest-rate risk 19,199,142 18,588,451 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) more than one risk 109,910 226,619 

2. Securities with specific cash flow hedges: 63,192 63,060 
a) interest-rate risk 63,192 63,060 
b) exchange-rate risk
c) other risks

Total 19,372,244 18,878,130

SECTION 4 - Financial liabilities from trading - Item 40

4.1 Financial liabilities from trading: breakdown by type
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Type of security/ Banking group Insurance companies
Components of the group FV FV

NV Listed Unlisted FV* NV Listed Unlisted FV* NV
A. Cash liabilities
1. Due to banks
2. Due to customers
3. Debt securities

3.1 Bonds
3.1.1 Structured X X 
3.1.2 Other bonds X X 

3.2 Other securities
3.2.1 Structured X X 
3.2.2 Others X X 

Total A
B. Derivative instruments
1. Financial derivatives X 950,962 X X X X 

1.1 Trading X 950,962 X X X X 
1.2 Associated with fair value option X X X X X 
1.3 Others X X X X X 

2. Credit derivatives X 6,927 X X X X 
2.1 Trading X 6,927 X X X X 
2.2 Associated with fair value option X X X X X 
2.3 Others X X X X X 

Total B X 957,889 X X X X 
Total (A+B) X 957,889 X X X X 
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thousands of euros
Other companies Total 31/12/2007 Total 31/12/2006

FV FV FV
Listed Unlisted FV* NV Listed Unlisted FV* NV Listed Unlisted FV*

X X X 
X X X 

X X X 
X X X 

X X 950,962 X X 1,251,698 X 
X X 950,962 X X 1,251,698 X 
X X X X X 
X X X X X 
X X 6,927 X X X 
X X 6,927 X X X 
X X X X X 
X X X X X 
X X 957,889 X X 1,251,698 X 
X X 957,889 X X 1,251,698 X



4.4 Financial liabilities for trading: derivative instruments 
4.4.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Loans Other Total Total

rates and gold securities 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 
A) Listed derivatives
1) Financial derivatives:

• with equity swap
- options issued
- other derivatives

• without equity swap
- options issued
- other derivatives

2) Credit derivatives:
• with equity swap
• without equity swap

Total A
B) Unlisted derivatives
1) Financial derivatives: 898,004 11,648 31,654 0 9,656 950,962 1,251,698 

• with equity swap 470 11,648 12,118 6,155 
- options issued 470 470 193 
- other derivatives 11,648 11,648 5,962 

• without equity swap 897,534 31,654 9,656 938,844 1,245,543 
- options issued 2,102 21,736 23,838 66,921 
- other derivatives 895,432 9,918 9,656 915,006 1,178,622

2) Credit derivatives: 6,927 6,927 0
• with equity swap
• without equity swap 6,927 6,927 0

Total B 898,004 11,648 31,654 6,927 9,656 957,889 1,251,698 
Total (A+B) 898,004 11,648 31,654 6,927 9,656 957,889 1,251,698
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SECTION 6 - Hedging derivatives - item 60

6.1 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by type of contract and underlying assets
6.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of derivatives/underlying assets Interest Currencies Equity Receivables Other Total

rates and gold securities 31/12/2007
A) Listed
1) Financial derivatives:

• with equity swap
- options issued
- other derivatives

• without equity swap
- options issued
- other derivatives

2) Credit derivatives:
• with equity swap
• without equity swap

Total A
B) Unlisted
1) Financial derivatives: 809,747 69,028 398,731 0 0 1,277,506 

• with equity swap 68,548 68,548 
- options issued
- other derivatives 68,548 68,548 

• without equity swap 809,747 480 398,731 1,208,958 
- options issued
- other derivatives 809,747 480 398,731 1,208,958 

2) Credit derivatives: 2,315 2,315 
• with equity swap 2,022 2,022 
• without equity swap 293 293

Total B 809,747 69,028 398,731 2,315 0 1,279,821 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 809,747 69,028 398,731 2,315 0 1,279,821
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 1,834,006 62,628 0 1,142 0 1,897,776 

6.2 Hedging derivatives: breakdown by hedged portfolio and type of hedge
6.2.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Transactions/Type of hedging Fair value hedging Cash flow hedges

specific
interest exchange credit price multiple generic specific generic

rate risk rate risk risk risk risk
1. Financial assets available 

for sale 98,403 6,004 X 3,892 X 
2. Loans 369,106 X 2,786 X 218 X 
3. Financial assets held 

to maturity X X X X 
4. Portfolio X X X X X 402 X 
Total assets 467,509 0 0 0 8,790 402 4,110 0 
1. Financial liabilities 332,673 444,997 X 21,340 X 
2. Portfolio X X X X X X 
Total liabilities 332,673 0 0 0 444,997 0 21,340 0
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SECTION 10 - Other liabilities - Item 100

10.1  Other liabilities: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
Components of the group group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Relations with suppliers/professionals 8,965 8,965  7,168
2. Accrued expenses and deferred income 

of various kinds 2,370 2,370  2,836
3. Other payables 37,069 37,069  31,249
Total 48,404 48,404  41,253

SECTION 11 - Provision for severance indemnities - Item 110

11.1 Provision for severance indemnities: annual change
thousands of euros

Banking Insurance Other Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007

A. Opening balances 5,762 5,762 
B. Increases 202 202 
B.1 Provision for the year 202 202 
B.2 Other increases
C. Decreases 1,550 1,550 
C.1 Indemnities paid 518 518 
C.2 Other decreases 1,032 1,032 
D. Closing balances 4,414 4,414
Total 4,414 4,414

Italian Legislative Decree no. 252/2005 introduced reforms of Severance Indemnities (TFR) and was followed
by various implemental decrees and memoranda issued by INPS (Italian Social Security) and the Tax Authorities. 

Owing to the effect of the reforms on complementary pension schemes, employees had to make a choice
(according to the procedure of explicit or tacit opting) with regard to the Sev. Indem. quotas that would accrue
from 1 January 2007 onwards, whether to:
a) allocate them to complementary pension schemes;
b) retain them within their employer's company, which would transfer the Sev. Indem. quotas to the Treasury
Fund created by INPS (hereafter referred to as the Fund).

On the basis of current legislation, the level of quotas referred to in the previous points may vary according  to
the type of employee.

Following these legislative changes, the calculation of the Sev. Indem. "accrued" on 1 January 2007 was modified,
which created an excess in the Fund as at 31 December 2006 amounting to Euro 1,032 thousand attributed to the
Income Statement for 2007. 
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SECTION 12 - Provisions for risks and charges - item 120

12.1 Provisions for risks and charges: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Components Banking Insurance Others Total Total
group companies enterprises 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1 Provisions for retirement benefits 259 259 1,266 
2. Other provisions for risks and charges 1,163 1,163 1,616 

2.1 legal disputes
2.2 personnel expenses 1,124 1,124 1,577 
2.3 others 39 39 39 

Total 1,422 1,422 2,882

12.2 Provisions for risks and charges: annual change
thousands of euros

Items/Components Banking group Insurance companies Other companies Total 31/12/2007
Pension Other Pension Other Pension Other Pension Other

funds provisions funds provisions funds provisions funds provisions
A. Opening balances 1,266 1,616 1,266 1,616 
B. Increases 1,000 167 1,000 167 
B.1 Provision for the year 1,000 167 1,000 167 
B.2 Changes due to the passing

of time
B.3 Changes due to alterations to

the discount rate
B.4 Other changes 
C. Decreases 2,007 620 2,007 620 
C.1  Use during the period 2,001 620 2,001 620 
C.2  Changes due to alterations to

the discount rate
C.3 Other changes 6 6 0
D. Closing balances 259 1,163 259 1,163

12.3 Company defined-benefit pension funds
1. Description of the funds
The sub-item "Retirement funds and similar benefits" includes provisions recorded on the basis of IAS 19
"Employee benefits" against various forms of complementary retirement schemes with defined benefits.
These commitments were formed exclusively by the Parent Company and based on calculations carried out
by independent Actuaries using the projected unit credit method. In particular, the provisions are the same
as the current value of the obligation with defined benefits net of the fair value of the fund's assets and
having taken into consideration the actuarial profits and losses not recognised in the balance sheet by applying
the so-called corridor option. This "corridor option" stipulates that the actuarial profits/losses, taken in
accumulation, which might come about due to the effect of adjustments caused by the re-formulation of the
previous actuarial assumptions, are only recorded for the part that exceeds 10% of the higher amount between
the fair value of the assets and the fair value of the obligation and on the basis of the average residual duration
of the benefits of the Fund and starting from the following period.
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You can see below the information relating to the variations in the funds during the financial period, the
reconcilement between the current value of the funds, the current value of the assets serving the schemes
and the assets and liabilities entered in the balance sheet, together with the main actuarial assumptions.

thousands of euros
2007 2006

A Variations in the obligations for defined benefits
1. Fair value of the obligations at the start of the year 41,432 42,300 
2. Retirement benefit costs relative to current work performance   1,130 972 
3. Interest expenses 1,753 1,581 
4. Contributions from those taking part in the scheme 216 216 
5. Benefits paid out (1,949) (1,254)
6. Actuarial losses (gains) (3,040) (2,383)
7. Fair value of the obligations at the end of the year 39,542 41,432 
B. Variations in the assets of the schemes
1. Fair value of the assets at the start of the year 36,261 31,275 
2. Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022 
3. Contributions from the employer 1,857 5,002 
4. Contributions from those taking part in the scheme 216 216 
5. Benefits paid out (1,949) (1,254)
6. Actuarial losses (gains) on the assets 27 0 
7. Fair value of the assets at the end of the year 37,954 36,261 
C. Reconcilement of the obligations and assets of the schemes
Fair value of the obligations 39,542 41,432 
Fair value of the assets 37,954 36,261 
Actuarial deficit (surplus) on the financed schemes 648 4,282 
Actuarial deficit (surplus) on the non-financed schemes 940 889 
Actuarial losses (gains) not recognized in the balance sheet 1,329 3,905 
Liabilities (assets) recognized in the balance sheet 259 1,266 
D. Cost components
Retirement benefit costs relative to current work performance   1,130 942
Interest expenses 1,753 1,581
Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022
Actuarial losses (gains) recognized in the balance sheet 98 438
Total costs recognized in the balance sheet 1,439 1,969
F. Summary of amounts recognized in the balance sheet
1. Balance sheet assets 745
2. Balance sheet liabilities 1,004 1,266
3. Balance of liabilities (assets) recognized in the balance sheet 259 1,266
G. Main actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 5.5% 4.5%
Expected rate of yield of the assets 5.5% 4.5%
Expected rate of salary increases 2.5% 2.5%
Inflation rate 2.5% 2.5%
H. Further comments
Average residual duration of the benefits of the funds (years) 10 10 

12.4 Provisions for risks and charges – other provisions
The "other provisions" amounting to Euro 1,163 thousand consist of:
- personnel expenses: The fund holds Euro 1,124 thousand for charges relating to early retirement incentive

schemes, employee bonuses for long service and life insurance benefits; 
- other risks and charges: the fund stands at Euro 39 thousand.
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SECTION 15 - Group capital - Items 140, 160, 170, 180, 190, 200 and 220

15.1 Group capital: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Amount Amount
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Share capital 450,210 450,210 
2. Share premiums 
3. Reserves 455,712 413,640 
4. (Treasury shares) 

a) parent bank 
b) subsidiaries 

5. Valuation reserves 90,193 121,737 
6. Equity instruments 
7. Profit (Loss) for the period pertaining to the Group 115,795 92,677 
Total  1,111,910 1,078,264

15.2 "Share capital" and "Treasury shares": breakdown
The share capital is fully subscribed and paid up and amounts to Euro 450,210,000 consisting of
174,500,000 ordinary shares with a nominal unit value of Euro 2.58.

15.3  Share capital - number of shares of the Parent Bank: annual change
thousands of euros

Items/Types Ordinary Others
A. Shares existing at start of period 174,500,000 

- fully paid up 174,500,000 
- not fully paid up

A.1 Treasury shares ( - )
A.2 Shares in circulation: opening balance 174,500,000
B. Increases
B.1 New issues

- against payment:
- company merger operations
- bond conversion
- warrant exercise
- others

- free of charge:
- for employees
- for directors
- others

B.2 Sale of treasury shares
B.3 Other changes
C. Decreases
C.1 Cancelled
C.2 Purchase of treasury shares
C.3 Corporate sale transactions
C.4  Other changes
D. Shares in circulation: closing balance 174,500,000 
D.1 Treasury shares ( + )
D.2 Shares existing at end of period 174,500,000 

- fully paid up 174,500,000 
- not fully paid up
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15.5 Profit reserves: other information
thousands of euros

Legal reserve Other reserves
A. Opening balances 58,460 180,042 
B. Increases 4,643 37,430 
Allocation of 2006 net income 4,643 37,430 
C. Decreases 0 0 
D. Closing balances 63,103 217,472 
Total 63,103 217,472

The profit reserves consist of the legal reserve and the profits carried forward from previous periods in
accordance with the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting.
Pursuant to article 2430 of the Italian Civil Code, the legal reserve is constituted by the allocation of a portion
amounting to at least one twentieth of the net annual profits until the reserve reaches one fifth of the share
capital.

15.6 Valuation reserves: breakdown 
thousands of euros

Items/Components Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Financial assets available for sale 78,715 78,715 116,863 
2. Property plant and equipment 
3. Intangible assets 
4. Foreign investment hedging 
5. Cash flow hedging 11,478 11,478 4,874 
6. Exchange rate differences 
7. Non-current assets held for sale 
8. Special revaluation laws 
Total  90,193 90,193 121,737

15.7 Valuation reserves: annual change 
15.7.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Financial Tangible Intangible Foreign Cash Exchange Non-current Special

assets assets assets investment flow rate assets revaluation
available hedging hedging differences held laws

for sale for sale 
A. Opening balances 116,863 4,874 
B. Increases 54,286 21,753 
B1. Increases in fair value 48,686 21,753 X 
B2. Other changes 5,600 0
C. Decreases 92,434 15,149 
C1. Decreases in fair value 86,469 15,149 X 
C2. Other changes 5,965 0
D. Closing balances 78,715 11,478  
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15.8 Reserves from valuation of financial assets available for sale: breakdown
thousands of euros

Assets/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Positive Negative Positive Negative Positive Negative Positive Negative Positive Negative
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve

1. Debt securities 49,606 85,305 49,606 85,305 30,518 23,620 
2. Equity securities 114,608 17 114,608 17 110,088 16 
3. Mutual fund shares 0 177 0 177 0 107
4. Loan facilities 
Total  164,214 85,499 164,214 85,499 140,606 23,743 

15.9 Reserves from valuation of financial assets available for sale: annual change

15.9.1 Pertaining to the banking group
thousands of euros

Debt Equity UCITS Loans
securities securities units

1. Opening balances 6,898 110,072 (107) 0
2. Increases 49,767 4,519 0 0
2.1 Increases in fair value 48,534 152 
2.2 Reversal  to income statement of negative reserves 1,233 

- for impairment
- for disposal 1,233 

2.3 Other changes 4,367 
3. Decreases 92,364 0 70 0
3.1 Decreases in fair value 86,399 70 
3.2 Impairment losses
3.3 Reversal to income statement of positive reserves:

- for disposal 5,965 0 0
3.4 Other changes
4. Closing balances (35,699) 114,591 (177) 0

DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



OTHER INFORMATION

1. Guarantees given and commitments   
thousands of euros

Transactions Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1)  Financial guarantees 4,248,577 4,248,577 5,561,184
a) Banks 3,979,299 3,979,299 5,268,675 
b) Customers 269,278 269,278 292,509

2)  Commercial guarantees 0 0 0
a) Banks
b) Customers

3)  Irrevocable commitments to grant finance 4,556,760 4,556,760 4,930,657 
a) Banks 43,035 43,035 94,705 

i) certain to be called on 43,035 43,035 94,705 
ii) not certain to be called on 

b) Customers 4,513,725 4,513,725 4,835,952 
i) certain to be called on 4,513,725 4,513,725 4,835,952 
ii) not certain to be called on -

4)  Commitments underlying credit derivatives:  
sales of protection 852,626 852,626 857,886 

5) Assets pledged in guarantee   
of third-party obligations

6) Other commitments 396,629 396,629 347,995
Total 10,054,592 10,054,592 11,697,722

The sum of trade sureties given as at 31 December 2006 was re-classified among financial sureties given in
order to allow the data to be compared.  

2. Assets pledged as guarantees for own liabilities and commitments 
thousands of euros

Portfolio 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Financial assets held for trading
2. Financial assets at fair value
3. Financial assets available for sale 10,953,937 9,057,392 
4. Financial assets held to maturity 358,145 387,502 
5. Loans and advances to banks 1,095,030 -   
6. Loans and advances to customers 8,328,445 4,216,481 
7. Property plant and equipment
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5. Administration and dealing on behalf of third parties: banking group* 
thousands of euros

Type of services Amount
1. Trading of financial instruments for third parties

a) purchases
1. settled
2. not settled

b) sales
1. settled
2. not settled

2. Portfolio management
a) individual
b) collective

3. Custody and administration of securities 36,251,159 
a) third-party securities on deposit as custodian bank (excluding portfolio management schemes)

1. securities issued by consolidated companies
2. other securities

b) other third party securities on deposit (excluding portfolio management schemes): other 14,924,123 
1. securities issued by consolidated companies 8.004 
2. other securities 14,916,119 

c) third-party securities deposited with third parties 6,557,224 
d) portfolio securities deposited with third parties 21,327,036 

4. Other transactions

6. Provisions for losses on realization
Information is given below on the reconcilement of the variations which occurred during the period on
portfolio adjustments recognized for every class of financial asset.    

thousands of euros
Portfolio adjustments Total

Financial Financial Due Due
assets assets from from

available held to banks customers
for sale maturity

A. Opening balances 0 0 0 22,866 22,866 
B. Increases 0 0 0 0 0
B.1 Writedowns 0 0 0 0 0
C. Decreases 0 0 0 985 985
C.1 Writebacks 0 0 0 985 985
D. Closing balances 0 0 0 21,881 21,881
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7. Fair value
The fair values of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet and shown below are determined
by referring to listings on active markets or using valuation techniques based on observable market data.
More precisely, the first method is used for the majority of AFS securities in the portfolio while the second
relates to all derivatives and other assets and liabilities other than those which are held for sale.  

thousands of euros
Balance sheet item FAIR VALUE

Market Valuation Book Total
prices techniques value

based on (1)
observable

market data
ASSETS
item 20 - FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 962,074 962,074
item 40 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE 7,195,364 9,731,100 16,926,464
item 50 - FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD TO MATURITY 487,445 487,445
item 60 - DUE FROM BANKS 8,533,926 6,266,056 14,799,982
item 70 - DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 19,569,881 48,099 19,617,980
item 80 - HEDGING DERIVATIVES 1,512,296 1,512,296
TOTAL 31.12.2007 7,682,809 40,309,277 6,314,155 54,306,241
TOTAL 31.12.2006 9,913,934 33,379,625 3,504,703 46,798,262
LIABILITIES
item 10 - DUE TO BANKS 4,661,896 21,967,710 26,629,606 
item 20 - DUE TO CUSTOMERS 928,676 1,808,756 2,737,432 
item 30 - SECURITIES IN ISSUE 6,390,463 14,612,754 21,003,217 
item 40 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR TRADING 957,889 957,889 
item 60 - HEDGING DERIVATIVES 1,279,821 1,279,821 
TOTAL 31.12.2007 6,390,463 22,441,036 23,776,466 52,607,965
TOTAL 31.12.2006 7,197,062 22,149,398 15,600,135 44,946,595

(1) The book value shown in the table refers to short-term assets/liabilities whose book value represents a reasonable approximation of fair value. In particular
it refers to repurchase agreements and deposits with banks and customers.

7. Day one profit
During the period the Company proceeded with recognizing the so-called “Day One Profit” (DOP) in the
Income Statement, i.e. the difference, if any exists at the time of initial recognition, between the fair value
on that date of financial instruments in the trading portfolio and the amount determined  using valuation
models whose variables include only observable market data. For the purposes of calculating this gain/loss,
the transaction price was used as the fair value of the financial instrument at the time of initial recognition
(i.e. the fair value of the amount paid or collected).
Gains and losses calculated in this way were recognized in item 80 "Net trading gains (losses)". 
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PART C - COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

SECTION 1 - Interest - Items 10 and 20

1.1  Interest and similar income: breakdown
1.1.1. Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Items/Technical types Performing financial assets

Debt Loans Impaired Other 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
securities financial assets

assets
1 Financial assets held for trading
2 Financial assets designated at fair value
3 Financial assets available for sale 719,802 719,802 529,249 
4 Financial assets held to maturity 25,796 25,796 27,433 
5 Due from banks 138,893 378,345 517,238 257,886 
6 Due from customers 172,830 756,434 929,264 754,250 
7 Hedging derivatives  
8 Financial assets sold but  

not derecognized
9 Other assets  10,986 10,986 9,699 
Total 1,057,321 1,134,779 0 10,986 2,203,086 1,578,517 

1.3 Interest and similar income: other information
thousands of euros

Items 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1.3.1 Interest income on financial assets in foreign currencies 55,020 56,260 

1.4 Interest and similar expenses: breakdown
1.4.1. Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Items/Technical types Payables Securities Others Total Total

liabilities 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1. Due to banks (928,528) (928,528) (495,094) 
2. Due to customers (124,828) (124,828) (88,555) 
3. Securities in issue (799,732) (799,732) (648,697) 
4. Financial liabilities for trading
5. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
6. Financial liabilities for assets sold but not derecognized
7. Other liabilities
8. Hedging derivatives (211,702) (211,702) (195,255) 
Total (1,053,356) (799,732) (211,702) (2,064,790) (1,427,601)
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1.5 Interest and similar expenses: differentials on hedging transactions                          
thousands of euros

Items/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Positive differentials on transactions involving:
A.1 Specific hedges of the fair value of assets 89,763 89,763 31,760 
A.2 Specific hedges of the fair value of liabilities 158,244 158,244 143,133 
A.3 Macro hedges of interest rate risk 7 7 0 
A.4 Specific hedges of cash flows from assets 2,975 2,975 10,371 
A.5 Specific hedges of cash flows from liabilities 9,926 9,926 8,191 
A.6 Macro cash flow hedges
Total positive differentials (A) 260,915 260,915 193,455 
B. Negative differentials on transactions involving:
B.1 Specific hedges of the fair value of assets 155,262 155,262 272,518 
B.2 Specific hedges of the fair value of liabilities 282,959 282,959 85,754 
B.3 Macro hedges of interest rate risk
B.4 Specific hedges of cash flows from assets 8,809 8,809 14,939 
B.5 Specific hedging of liability cash flows 25,587 25,587 15,499 
B.6 Macro cash flow hedges
Total negative differentials (B) 472,617 472,617 388,710 
C. Balance (A-B) (211,702) (211,702) (195,255)

1.6 Interest and similar expenses: other information
thousands of euros

Items 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
1.6.1 Interest paid on financial liabilities in foreign currency (54,946) (61,794)  
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SECTION 2 - FEES AND COMMISSIONS - Items 40 and 50

2.1 Fee and commission income: breakdown
2.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Type of service/Sector 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) guarantees given 1,041 730 
b) credit derivatives   
c) management, broking and consulting services: 7,841 8,653  

1. financial instrument trading
2. foreign exchange trading
3. asset management

3.1. individual
3.2. collective

4. custody and administration of securities 3,514 2,550 
5. depositary bank
6. placing of securities 1,057 4,356 
7. collection of orders
8. advisory services 3,270 1,747 
9. distribution of third-party services

9.1. asset management
9.1.1. individual
9.1.2. collective

9.2. insurance products
9.3. other products

d) collection and payment services
e) servicing of securitisation transactions
f) services for factoring transactions
g) management of rate- and tax-collection agencies
h) other services  2,565 1,413
Total 11,447 10,796

2.2 Fee and commission income: product and service distribution channels: banking group

thousands of euros
Channels/Sectors 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) through own branches:

1. asset management
2. placing of securities
3. third-party services and products

b) door-to-door: 1,057 4,356 
1. asset management
2. placing of securities 1,057 4,356 
3. third-party services and products

c) other distribution channels: - 
1. asset management
2. placing of securities
3. third-party services and products

Total 1,057 4,356
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2.3 Fee and commission expenses: breakdown
2.3.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Services/Sectors 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) guarantees received (2,087) (1,927)
b) credit derivatives  
c) management and brokerage services: (992) (671)

1. financial instrument trading 0 0 
2. foreign exchange trading
3. asset management:

3.1 own portfolio
3.2 third-party portfolio

4. custody and administration of securities (992) (671)
5. placing of financial instruments
6. external marketing of financial instruments, products and services

d) collection and payment services (77) (67)
e) other services (192) (321)
Total (3,348) (2,986)

SECTION 3 - Dividend and similar income - Item 70

3.1 Dividend and similar income: breakdown
thousands of euros

Items/Income Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

dividend from dividend from dividend from dividend from dividend from
Mutual Mutual Mutual Mutual Mutual

fund fund fund fund fund
shares shares shares shares shares

A. Financial assets held   
for trading 

B. Financial assets available 
for sale 3,037 3,037 5,306 

C. Financial assets 
designated at fair value

D. Equity investments  X X X X X
Total 3,037 3,037 5,306
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SECTION 4 - Net trading gains (losses) - Item 80

4.1 Net trading gains (losses): breakdown
4.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Transactions/Income components Capital Trading Capital Trading Net result

gains profits losses losses [(A+B) -
(A) (B) (C) (D) (C+D)]

1. Financial assets held for trading
1.1 Debt securities
1.2 Equity securities
1.3 Mutual fund shares
1.4 Loan facilities
1.5 Others

2. Financial liabilities held for trading
2.1 Debt securities
2.2 Payables
2.3 Others

3. Other financial assets and liabilities:  
foreign exchange differences X X X X (87)

4. Derivative instruments 982,296 327,623 1,019,188 284,713 6,030 
4.1 Financial derivatives      978,772 324,573 1,011,868 284,686 6,803 

-  on debt securities and interest rates 953,031 320,557 986,127 280,733 6,728 
-  on equity securities and stock indices 21,206 3,295 21,206 3,232 63 
-  on currencies and gold X X X X 12 
-  Others 4,535 721 4,535 721 0 

4.2 Credit derivatives 3,524 3,050 7,320 27 (773)
Total 982,296 327,623 1,019,188 284,713 5,943

SECTION 5 - Net hedging gains (losses) - Item 90

5.1 Net hedging gains (losses): breakdown
thousands of euros

Income components/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Income relating to: 913,560 913,560 835,425 
A.1 Fair value hedging derivatives 800,527 800,527 715,565 
A.2 Hedged financial assets (fair value) 
A.3 Hedged financial liabilities (fair value) 113,033 113,033 119,860 
A.4 Cash flow hedging derivatives
A.5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
Total hedging income (A) 913,560 913,560 835,425 
B. Expenses relating to: 912,878 912,878 837,012
B.1 Fair value hedging derivatives 
B.2 Hedged financial assets (fair value) 912,878 912,878 837,012 
B.3 Hedged financial liabilities (fair value) 
B.4 Financial cash flow hedging derivatives  
B.5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
Total hedging expenses (B) 912,878 912,878 837,012 
C. Gains less losses on hedging (A – B) 682 682 (1,587)
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SECTION 6 - Gains (losses) from sale/repurchase - Item 100

6.1 Gains (Losses) from sale/repurchase: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income Items/ Banking Insurance Other Total Total
Components Group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net
result result result result result

Financial assets
1. Due from banks 143 0 143 143 0 143 156 111 45 
2. Due from 

customers 5,453 0 5,453 5,453 0 5,453 5,058 19 5,039 
3. Financial assets 

available 
for sale 7,768 148 7,620 7,768 148 7,620 18,153 14,830 3,323 
3.1 Debt 

securities 7,759 143 7,616 7,759 143 7,616 17,578 14,830 2,748 
3.2 Equity 

securities 9 0 9 9 0 9 575 0 575 
3.3 Mutual fund

shares 0 5 (5) 0 5 (5) 0 0 0 
3.4 Loan facilities

4. Financial assets held 
to maturity

Total assets 13,364 148 13,216 13,364 148 13,216 23,367 14,960 8,407 
Financial liabilities
1. Due to banks
2. Due to customers
3. Securities 

in issue 5,267 0 5,267 5,267 0 5,267 2,282 0 2,282 
Total liabilities 5,267 0 5,267 5,267 0 5,267 2,282 0 2,282

SECTION 8 - Net adjustments for impairment  - Item 130

8.1 Net adjustments for impairment: breakdown
8.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Transactions/ Income components Writedowns (1) Writebacks (2)

Specific Specific      Of portfolio Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006
(3)=(1)-(2) (3)=(1)-(2)

Write-offs Others Of portfolio A B A B
A. Loans to banks
B. Customer loans 985 985 (5,139)
C. Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 985 985 (5,139)
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SECTION 11 - Administrative expenses - Item 180

11.1 Personnel expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of expense/Sectors Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1) Employees (28,624) (28,624) (26,027)
a) wages and salaries (18,944) (18,944) (17,403)
b) social security contributions (5,046) (5,046) (4,514)
c) retirement indemnities (1,013) (1,013) (301)
d) other pension costs
e) provisions for severance indemnities (202) (202) (649)
f) provision for retirement and similar benefits:  (1,000) (1,000) (677)

- defined contribution
- defined benefit (1,000) (1,000) (677)

g) payments to complementary  
external pension funds: (1,231) (1,231) (1,153)
- defined contribution
- defined benefit (1,231) (1,231) (1,153)

h) costs pursuant to payment agreements  
based on own equity instruments

i) other employee benefits (1,188) (1,188) (1,330)
2) Other personnel  0 0 0
3) Directors (1,033) (1,033) (1,828)
Total (29,657) (29,657) (27,855)

11.2 Average number of employees by category: banking group

thousands of euros
Employees Banking Insurance Other Total Total

group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) managers 34 34 31
b) Total middle managers  108 108 101

- of 3rd and 4th level 58 58 50
c) other employees 96 96 103 

Other personnel
Total 238 238 235

11.3 Company defined-benefit pension funds: total costs
thousands of euros

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
a) Retirement benefit costs (1,130) (972)
b) Interest expenses (1,753) (1,581)
c) Yield of the assets 1,542 1,022 
d) Actuarial losses (gains) recognized in the balance sheet (98) (438)
Total (1,439) (1,969)

11.4 Other employee benefits
The costs for provisions in the year amounted to Euro 167 thousand.
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11.5 Other administrative expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Type of expense/Amount 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Maintenance costs on furniture and equipment (12) (8)
Property rental payments (507) (506)
Telephone expenses (293) (199)
Postage and telegraph expenses (58) (67)
Costs for maintenance and updating of software (1,057) (1,015)
Security (175) (172)
Car leasing instalments (353) (412)
Energy, heating and water expenses (254) (269)
Maintenance costs on company-owned buildings (703) (451)
IT Services (3,977) (3,967)
Stationery and printing (80) (158)
Costs for cleaning premises (220) (249)
Professional fees (3,075) (2,100)
Advertising and public relations (1,237) (1,260)
Books, periodicals and information services (94) (96)
Expenses for issuing securities (13) (15)
Insurance premiums (55) (72)
Membership fees (525) (487)
Study grants (107) (171)
Emoluments of directors and statutory auditors 0 (209)
Charges for personnel on secondment from third parties 0 (1,642)
Cultural and social contributions (116) (118)
Other expenses (866) (917)
Total (13,777) (14,560)
Indirect taxes
–  Local property taxes 0 (294)
–  Flat-rate tax, Decree 601/73 4,442 0 
–  Other  (464) (116)

Total 3,978 (410)
Total other administrative expenses (9,799) (14,970)

The charges for personnel on secondment from third parties were classified as at 31 December 2007 in the
sub-item "Personnel expenses" instead of the sub-item "Other administrative expenses".
The sum of Euro 4,442 thousand refers to a refund of the registration tax paid in 1996 when a branch of the
Company was sold to San Paolo IMI Bank.

SECTION 12 - Net provisions for risks and charges - Item 190

12.1 Net provisions for risks and charges: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income Items/Components Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Provisions Utilisation Net result Provisions Utilisation Net result
A. Risks
Total Risks
B. Charges
1. Employees (167) (167) (442) (442)
2. Others 0 0 0 295 295 
Total Charges (167) 0 (167) (442) 295 (147)
Total Risks and Charges (167) 0 (167) (442) 295 (147)
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SECTION 13 - Net adjustments on tangible assets - Item 200

13.1 Net adjustments on tangible assets: breakdown
13.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Assets/Income components Amortization Writedowns Writebacks Net

(a) for (c) result
impairment (b) (a + b - c)

A. Tangible assets
A.1 Company owned: (815) (815)
- for business purposes (814) (814)
- for investment (1) (1)
A.2 Acquired on lease
- for functional use 
- for investment 
Total (815) (815)

SECTION 14 - Net adjustments on intangible assets - Item 210

14.1 Net adjustments on intangible assets: breakdown
14.1.1 Pertaining to the banking group

thousands of euros
Assets/Income components Amortization Impairment Writebacks Net

(a) losses (c) result
(b) (a + b - c)

A. Intangible assets
A.1 Company owned: (2,014) (2,014)

- Generated within the company
- Other (2,014) (2,014)

A.2 Acquired on lease
Total (2,014) 0 0 (2,014)

SECTION 15 - Other operating expenses and revenues - Item 220

15.1 Other operating expenses: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income components/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007

Interbank charges (74) (74)
Other expenses (26) (26)
Total (100) (100)
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15.2 Other operating revenues: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income components/Amounts Banking Insurance Other Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007

Rents collected 220 220
Interbank revenues 104 104
Refund of expenses 54 54
Other income 335 335
Total 713 713

SECTION 20 - Income tax for the period on continuing operations - Item 290

20.1 Income tax for the period on continuing operations: breakdown
thousands of euros

Income components/Sectors Banking Insurance Other Total Total
group companies companies 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

1. Current taxes ( - ) (19,945) (19,945) (37,518)
2. Changes in current taxes compared  

to previous periods ( +/- ) (17) (17) (403)
3. Decreases in current taxes for the period ( + )
4. Changes in deferred tax assets ( +/- ) (4,665) (4,665) (2,856)
5. Changes in deferred tax liabilities ( +/- ) 6,736 6,736 (16,893)
6. Taxes for the period (-)  

(-1+/-2+3+/-4+/-5) (17,891) (17,891) (57,670)

The variation in deferred tax assets is attributable to movements in the period amounting to Euro -2,501 thousand
and to the adjustment in deferred tax assets (amounting to Euro - 2,164 thousand) due to the new nominal tax
rates for IRES (Corporate Income Tax) and IRAP (Regional Tax on Productive Activities), as laid down by Italian
Law no. 244/2007 for the years from 2008 onwards.

The variation in deferred taxes is attributable to movements in the period amounting to Euro 20,507 thousand
and to the adjustment in deferred tax liabilities (amounting to Euro - 27,243 thousand) due to the new nominal
tax rates for IRES and IRAP, as laid down by Italian Law no. 244/2007 for the years from 2008 onwards.

20.2 Reconciliation between theoretical tax burden and tax burden according to the financial statements
thousands of euros

Taxable income/variations/taxes ( +/- ) 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Taxable amount Tax Tax

Pre-tax profit - Rate (38.25%) 99,503 38,060 57,771 
Pre-tax profit - Rate (12.5%) 4,642 580 
1  Increases in taxes (Rate 38.25%) 16,751 6,407 25,347 
2  Decreases in taxes (Rate 38.25%) 12,749 4,876 30,815 
3  Greater taxable amount for IRAP (Reg. Bus. Tax) (Rate 5.25%) 53,312 2,799 5,367 
4  Adjustment to deferred tax rates on IRES Corporation tax (33.00%-27.50%) (106,345) (5,849)
5  Adjustment to deferred tax rates on Company tax

and Regional Business tax (38.25%-32.32%) (324,136) (19,230)
6  Difference on taxable amount for IRES and IRAP 17,891 57,670 
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PART D – INFORMATION ON SECTORS

A. Primary schedule

A.1 Distribution according to business sectors: income details 2007
thousands of euros

Income Statement items Public and Structured Financial Other Dexia Crediop
Finance Markets Group

Net interest and other banking income (item 120) 121,707 9,211 43,621 174,539
Net adjustments for impairment (item 130) 985 0 0 985 
Net adjustments of tangible and intangible  
assets (items 200 and 210) 0 0 (2,829) (2,829)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax (item 280) 88,348 411 44,927 133,686

Notes - Public and Structured Finance: loans and financial services to the public sector and corporate customers
Financial markets: business in the financial and monetary markets

Other: free capital, equity investments and other assets not allocated elsewhere

A.1.1 Distribution according to business sectors: income details 2006
thousands of euros

Income Statement items Public and Structured Financial Other Dexia Crediop
Finance Markets Group

Net interest and other banking income (item 120) 139,718 17,059 44,213 200,990
Net adjustments for impairment (item 130) (5,139) 0 0 (5,139)
Net adjustments of tangible and intangible  
assets (items 200 and 210) 0 0 (2,985) (2,985)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax (item 280) 104,570 8,693 37,084 150,347

Notes - Public and Structured Finance: loans and financial services to the public sector and corporate customers
Financial markets: business in the financial and monetary markets
Other: free capital, equity investments and other assets not allocated elsewhere

A.2 Distribution according to business sectors: asset and liability details 2007
thousands of euros

Balance Sheet items Public and Structured Financial Other Dexia Crediop
Finance Markets Group

Financial assets held for trading (item 20) 615,386 346,688 - 962,074 
Financial assets available for sale (item 40) 12,116,299 4,666,790 143,375 16,926,464 
Financial assets held to maturity (item 50) 477,813 - - 477,813 
Due from customers (item 70) 19,523,952 - - 19,523,952 
Due from banks (item 60) 8,085,731 6,701,280 70,081 14,857,092 
Due to banks (item 10) 6,052,319 18,899,348 1,754,307 26,705,974 
Due to customers (item 20) 2,018,595 789,217 - 2,807,812 
Securities in issue (item 30) 21,359,106 - 21,359,106 
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 2,916 2,916 

Notes - Public and Structured Finance: loans and financial services to the public sector and corporate customers
Financial markets: business in the financial and monetary markets
Other: free capital, equity investments and other assets not allocated elsewhere
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A.2.1 Distribution according to business sectors: asset and liability details 2006
thousands of euros

Balance Sheet items Public and Structured Financial Other Dexia Crediop
Finance Markets Group

Financial assets held for trading (item 20) 1,031,369 266,852 1,298,221 
Financial assets available for sale (item 40) 10,970,982 4,197,489 228,392 15,396,863 
Financial assets held to maturity (item 50) 525,580 525,580 
Due from customers (item 70) 19,546,712 19,546,712 
Due from banks (item 60) 4,672,425 3,671,370 7,973 8,351,769 
Due to banks (item 10) 4,250,058 13,493,691 17,743,749 
Due to customers (item 20) 1,866,310 1,243,853 3,110,163 
Securities in issue (item 30) 21,061,801 21,061,801 
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 2,862 2,862 

Notes - Public and Structured Finance: loans and financial services to the public sector and corporate customers
Financial markets: business in the financial and monetary markets
Other: free capital, equity investments and other assets not allocated elsewhere

B. Secondary schedule

B.1 Distribution according to geographical areas : income details 2007
thousands of euros

Income Statement items Italy Rest of Dexia Crediop
the world Group

Net interest and other banking income (item 120) 117,793 56,746 174,539 

Note - Geographical distribution based on residence of the counterparty.
This item includes, amongst other things, derivative transactions on the notional, consisting of the customers' debt, in the form
of  loans or securities, and the associated hedging of interest rate risk  using swaps (balanced intermediation) with major foreign
banking counterparties, also belonging to the Dexia Group. 

B.1.1 Distribution according to geographical areas : income details 2006
thousands of euros

Income Statement items Italy Rest of Dexia Crediop
the world Group

Net interest and other banking income (item 120) 124,056 76,934 200,990 

Note - Geographical distribution based on residence of the counterparty.
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B.2 Distribution according to geographical areas : asset and liability details 2007
thousands of euros

Balance Sheet items Italy Rest of Dexia Crediop
the world Group

Financial assets held for trading (item 20) 741,097 220,977 962,074 
Financial assets available for sale (item 40) 14,296,033 2,630,431 16,926,464 
Financial assets held to maturity (item 50) 477,813 0 477,813 
Due from customers (item 70) 19,431,464 92,488 19,523,952 
Due from banks (item 60) 2,133,163 12,723,929 14,857,092 
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 2,916 - 2,916 

Note - Geographical distribution based on residence of the counterparty.

B.2.1 Distribution according to geographical areas : asset and liability details 2006
thousands of euros

Balance Sheet items Italy Rest of Dexia Crediop
the world Group

Financial assets held for trading (item 20) 1,025,630 272,591 1,298,221 
Financial assets available for sale (item 40) 14,865,210 531,653 15,396,863 
Financial assets held to maturity (item 50) 525,580 525,580 
Due from customers (item 70) 19,406,070 140,642 19,546,712 
Due from banks (item 60) 1,091,632 7,260,137 8,351,769 
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 2,862 2,862 

Note - Geographical distribution based on residence of the counterparty.



PART E – COMMENTS ON RISKS AND ON THE ASSOCIATED HEDGING

POLICIES

SECTION 1 - Risks for the Banking Group

1.1 Credit risk

Qualitative information

1. General points 
The area of operations concentrates on financing investments in the public sector and large infrastructure
schemes. The remaining part of the loan portfolio refers to assets purchased following an investment logic
which is based on high market liquidity and fundability with the European Central Bank. In line with this
fundamental strategy, the development of the loan portfolio follows trends in the reference market which in
recent years has tended to gradually substitute mortgage loans with bonds. 

2. Policies for managing credit risks 

2.1 Organisational aspects
The credit risk is the risk of losses associated with an inability of counterparties to meet their financial
obligations. 

The factors which influence the level of this risk are:
- the creditworthiness of the counterparty, measured using an internal rating (determined on the basis

of specific models) or a scoring; 
- the relevant customer segment (public sector, corporate, project finance, banking and financial sector etc.);
- the economic, regulatory and financial context in which the counterparty operates;
- the type of transaction arranged; 
- the duration of the transactions; 
- any (real/personal/financial) guarantees backing the transaction. 

It should be pointed out that the vast majority of existing loans are to customers in the public sector, with a
low level of risks, and subject, in addition, to the particular constraints associated with their public nature.
Credit risks (in the same way as operational, market and liquidity risks) are monitored by the Risk Management
Structure divided into two units - Credit and Operational Risks and Market and ALM Risks - which ensure
control of their respective risk categories.

Risk Management has no hierarchical relationship with the Bank’s operating units.  The department therefore
operates absolutely independently from the Front Office structures.

Specific Committees form an integral part of the internal auditing systems, helping to ensure that the system
works correctly.

The Credit Committee’s task is to examine loan proposals of any technical type. The Committee takes decisions
relating to risks and financial conditions on the basis of proposals made by the competent operational
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Department and an opinion regarding the level of risk provided by the Risk Management Department.

The Default/Watchlist Committee examines situations falling within the criteria of defaults as established
by the Supervisory Authorities.

2.2 Management, measuring and auditing systems
As regards the methods of management, measuring and auditing, certain guidelines have been fixed at Group
level.

The Group has developed a number of internal rating systems (IRSs) for counterparties in the Corporate and
Project Finance sectors, in the Western European Local Public Sector (LPS), and for banks and sovereign
states. For counterparties not yet covered by a specific IRS, ratings are calculated on the basis of so-called
“expert methods” or using scoring.

The internal rating system (IRS) defined on the basis of the most advanced methods (Advanced IRBA) involves:
• the adoption of internal procedures which allow for the calculations by and historical documentation of

the IRSs;
• the progressive development of an information system (FERMAT) aimed at consolidating - in a common

standardised form - the information relating to all counterparties (Client Database) and all exposures
(Exposure Database) of the Group;

• the adoption of a system for measuring the Bank’s entire risks on the basis of an approach based on its own
economic resources.  

2.3 Credit risk mitigation techniques
As regards derivative transactions, the ISDA Master Agreement includes the “Credit Support Annex” (CSA)
for the majority of banking counterparties. This collateralization agreement minimises credit risk through
the periodic (weekly or monthly) exchange of margins guaranteeing the net value of the bilateral exposure.

The forms of real guarantees used are essentially pledges (mainly on securities) and much less frequently
mortgages on properties. The management of these guarantees is the task of the administrative and legal offices.
The counterparties offering personal guarantees are banks, in the vast majority of cases, and sometimes
public local or territorial authorities. The credit risk of these counterparties is assessed on the basis of the
external and internal ratings attributed to them.

The purchase of credit derivatives is not normally used as a mitigation technique, although it is permissible.

Since financing activities are mainly aimed at the domestic public sector, the majority of guarantees backing
loans consist of the issue of payment notes or guarantees provided by the Italian State (of a contractual
nature or arising from legislation).

2.4 Impaired financial assets
The Group has issued specific rules governing the treatment of non-performing loans and actions to be
taken in order to manage such loans so as to ensure that the procedures aimed at a positive outcome are
implemented correctly.

These rules define the general guidelines within which the individual organisational units treat this subject
within the scope of their own responsibilities.
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The various conditions of each non-performing loan have been classified within the scope of a watchlist
consisting of four categories with an ascending scale of seriousness:
- monitored loans;
- pre-problem loans;
- problem loans;
- non performing loans.

The default/watchlist Committee is responsible for examining the non-performing positions and proposes:
• their classification in one of the four categories;
• the adoption of specific writedowns on the loans;
• the adoption of statistical or flat-rate adjustments which reflect the Expected Loss.

Transactions which previously included in the default/watchlist categories are re-classified as “performing”
when the counterparty emerges from a situation of economic/financial difficulty and returns to making
all payments regularly as before.

Quantitative information

A. Credit quality

A.1 Imapaired and performing loans: amounts, adjustments, trends, economic and
geographical distribution

A.1.1 Distribution of financial assets by portfolio and credit quality (book values)
thousands of euros

Portfolio/quality Banking group Other companies
Bad loans Problem Restructured Past due Country Other Impaired Others Total

loans loans loans risk assets
1. Financial assets held

for trading 962,074 962,074 
2. Financial assets available 

for sale 16,926,464 16,926,464 
3. Financial assets held

to maturity 477,813 477,813 
4. Due from banks 14,857,092 14,857,092 
5. Due from customers 147 19,523,805 19,523,952 
6. Financial assets designated 

at fair value
7. Financial assets held for sale
8. Hedging derivatives 1,512,296 1,512,296 
Total 31/12/2007 147 54,259,544 54,259,691 
Total 31/12/2006 170 46,273,957 46,274,127 
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A.1.2 Distribution of financial assets according to portfolio and creditworthiness (gross and net values)
thousands of euros

Portfolio/quality Impaired assets Other assets
Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Portfolio Net Total

exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns exposure (net
exposure)

A.Banking group
1. Financial assets held 

for trading X X 962,074 962,074 
2. Financial assets available 

for sale 16,926,464 16,926,464 16,926,464 
3. Financial assets held 

to maturity 477,813 477,813 477,813 
4. Due from banks 14,857,092 14,857,092 14,857,092 
5. Due from customers 220 73 147 19,545,686 21,881 19,523,805 19,523,952 
6. Financial assets designated

at fair value X X 
7. Non-current assets  

held for sale
8. Hedging derivatives X X 1,512,296 1,512,296 
Total  A 220 73 0 147 51,807,055 21,881 54,259,544 54,259,691 
B. Other companies included 

in consolidation
1. Financial assets held 

for trading X X 
2. Financial assets available 

for sale
3. Financial assets held 

to maturity
4. Due from banks
5. Due from customers
6. Financial assets designated 

at fair value X X 
7. Non-current assets  

held for sale
8. Hedging derivatives X X 
Total  B
Total 31/12/2007 220 73 0 147 51,807,055 21,881 54,259,544 54,259,691 
Total 31/12/2006 243 73 0 170 43,843,621 22,867 46,273,957 46,274,127



A.1.3 Cash and off-balance-sheet exposure to banks: gross and net amounts
thousands of euros

Type of exposure/amounts Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure adjustments adjustments exposure

A. CASH EXPOSURES
A.1 Banking group
a) Non-performing loans
b) Problem loans
c) Restructured loans
d) Past due  loans
e) Country Risk X 
f) Other assets  17,827,956 X 17,827,956 
Total  A.1 17,827,956 17,827,956 
A.2 Other companies
a) Impaired
b) Other X 
Total  A.2
TOTAL  A 17,827,956 17,827,956 
B. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES
B.1 Banking group
a) Impaired
b) Other 5,906,356 X 5,906,356 
Total  B.1 5,906,356 5,906,356 
B.2 Other companies
a) Impaired
b) Other X 
Total  B.2
TOTAL B 5,906,356 5,906,356
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A.1.6 Cash and off-balance-sheet exposures to customers: gross and net amounts
thousands of euros

Type of exposure/amounts Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure adjustments adjustments exposure

A. CASH EXPOSURES 
A.1 Banking group 
a) Non-performing loans 220 73 147 
b) Problem loans 
c) Restructured loans 
d) Past due loans 
e) Country Risk X 
f) Other assets   33,979,099 X 21,881 33,957,218
Total  A.1 33,979,319 73 21,881 33,957,365 
A.2 Other companies 
a) Impaired 
b) Other X 
Total  A.2 
TOTAL  A 33,979,319 73 21,881 33,957,365 
B. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES 
B.1 Banking group 
a) Impaired 
b) Other 5,434,858 X 5,434,858
Total  B.1 5,434,858 5,434,858 
B.2 Other companies 
a) Impaired 
b) Other X 
Total  B.2 
TOTAL B 5,434,858 5,434,858

A.1.7 Cash exposures to customers: trend of gross impaired loans and loans subject to "country risk"
thousands of euros

Reasons/Categories Non-performing Problem Restructured Past due Country
loans loans loans loans risk

A. Gross initial exposure 243 
- of which: loans sold off but not derecognized
B. Increases 0
B.1 transfers from performing loans
B.2 transfers of impaired loans from other categories
B.3 other increases
C. Decreases 23
C.1 transfers to performing loans
C.2 write-offs
C.3 collections 23 
C.4 disposals
C.5 transfers of impaired loans to other categories
C.6 other decreases
D. Gross closing exposure 220 
- of which: loans sold but derecognized
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A.1.8 Cash exposures to customers: trend of total adjustments
thousands of euros

Reasons/Categories Non-Performing Problem Restructured Expired Country
loans loans loans loans risk

A. Total initial adjustments 73 
- of which: loans sold but derecognized
B. Increases 0
B.1 writedowns
B.2 transfers of impaired loans from other categories
B.3 other increases
C. Decreases 0
C.1 writebacks from valuations
C. 2 writebacks from collections
C.3 write-offs
C.4 transfers of impaired loans to other categories
C.5 other decreases
D. Total final adjustments 73 
- of which: loans sold but derecognized

A.2 Classification of exposures according to external and internal ratings

A.2.1 Distribution of cash and off-balance-sheet loans according to external rating classes (book values)
thousands of euros

Exposure External rating classes
rating A. rating I.& BB  B. Lower Without Total

Aaa/AAA Baa2/BBBSPA-ROME than B- rating
A. Loan exposure 34,869,815 11,761,191 1,770,537 750,619 182,014 55,425 2,395,720 51,785,321 
B. Derivatives 2,121,728 279,772 28,066 20,134 24,191 0 479 2,474,370 
B.1 Financial derivatives 2,111,385 275,732 28,066 20,134 24,191 479 
B.2 Loan derivatives 10,343 4,040 
C. Guarantees given 3,979,299 163,492 24,410 79,438 1,938 4,248,577 
D. Commitments to 

disburse funds 3,674,548 588,447 198,650 14,513 80,602 4,556,760 
Total 44,645,390 12,792,902 2,021,663 864,704 206,205 55,425 2,478,739 63,065,028 
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A.3 Distribution of secured loans according to type of guarantee

A.3.1 Secured loans to banks and customers
thousands of euros

Collateral guarantee (1) Personal guarantee (2)
Loan derivatives Unsecured loans

Amount of Real Securities Other Govern. Other Banks Other Govern. Other Banks Other Total
exposure estate assets public subjects public subjects (1)+

bodies bodies (2)
1. Secured loans 

to banks:
1.1 fully 

secured 36,678 22,227 14,451 -   36,678 
1.2 partially 

secured
2. Secured loans 

to customers:
2.1 fully 

secured 1,604,517 21,858 126,475 110,272 782,084 158,424 5,225 400,179 1,604,517 
2.2 partially 

secured

A.3.2 Secured "off-balance-sheet" loans to banks and customers
thousands of euros

Collateral guarantee (1) Personal guarantee (2)
Loan derivatives Unsecured loans

Amount of Real Securities Other Govern. Other Banks Other Govern. Other Banks Other Total
exposure estate assets public subjects public subjects (1)+

bodies bodies (2)
1. Secured loans 

to banks:
1.1 fully secured
1.2 partially secured

2. Secured loans 
to customers:
2.1 fully secured 191,106 9,658 78,108 103,340 191,106 
2.2 partially secured



B. Credit distribution and concentration

B.1 Distribution of on- and off-balance-sheet customer loans according to sector

Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio
exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns

A. Loan exposure
A.1 Non-performing loans 220 73 0 147 
A.2 Problem loans 
A.3 Restructured loans 
A.4 Past due loans 
A.5 Other exposures 11,376,709 X 11,376,709 16,596,120 X 18,253 16,577,867 3,469,015 X 
Total  A 11,376,709 11,376,709 16,596,340 73 18,253 16,578,014 3,469,015 
B. "Off-balance-sheet" loans 
B.1 Non-performing loans 
B.2 Problem loans 
B.3 Other impaired assets 
B.4 Other exposures 2,708,004 X 2,708,004 1,774,175 X 1,774,175 160,461 X 
Totale   B 2,708,004 2,708,004 1,774,175 0 0 1,774,175 160,461 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 14,084,713 14,084,713 18,370,515 73 18,253 18,352,189 3,629,476 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 5,712,328 5,712,328 22,860,246 73 22,867 22,837,306 6,154,271
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B.2 Distribution of loans to non-financial companies   
thousands of euros

Aggregate sector of economic activity
Energy products 761,982
Construction and public works 125,861
Commercial services 0
Internal transport services 73,026
Transport-linked services 35,660
Other types of business 33,598
Communication services 0
Other marketable services 195,539

Governments and Central banks Other public bodies Finance Exposure/Counterparts
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Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net Gross Specific Portfolio Net
exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure exposure writedowns writedowns exposure

3,469,015 27,415 X 27,415 2,258,818 X 3,587 2,255,231 251,022 X 41 250,981 
3,469,015 27,415 27,415 2,258,818 3,587 2,255,231 251,022 41 250,981 

160,461 X 474,535 X 474,535 317,683 X 317,683 
160,461 0 0 474,535 0 474,535 317,683 0 317,683 

3,629,476 27,415 27,415 2,733,353 3,587 2,729,766 568,705 41 568,664 
6,154,271 2,307,231 2,307,231 3,232,618 0 3,232,618 26,863 0 26,863

Insurance companies Non finance companies Other subjectscompanies

B.3 Distribution of cash and "off-balance-sheet" customer loans according to geographic area 
thousands of euros

Exposure/Geographical area Italy Other  European countries America Asia Rest of the world
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure
A. Loan exposure 
A.1 Non-performing loans 220 147 
A.2 Problem loans 
A.3 Restructured loans 
A.4 Past due loans 
A.5 Other exposures 33,815,127 33,793,386 164,119 163,979 
Total A 33,815,347 33,793,533 164,119 163,979 
B. "Off-balance sheet" loans 
B.1 Non-performing loans 
B.2 Problem loans 
B.3 Other impaired assets 
B.4 Other exposures 5,277,492 5,277,492 127,261 127,261 30,105 30,105 
Total B 5,277,492 5,277,492 127,261 127,261 30,105 30,105 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 39,092,839 39,071,025 291,380 291,240 30,105 30,105 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 39,618,046 39,595,106 626,305 626,305 49,208 49,208 



B.4 Distribution of cash and "off-balance-sheet" loans to banks  
thousands of euros

Exposure/Geographical area Italy Other  European countries America Asia Rest of the world
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure
A. Loan exposure
A.1 Non-performing loans 
A.2 Problem loans 
A.3 Restructured loans 
A.4 Past due loans 
A.5 Other exposures 4,878,900 4,878,900 12,948,755 12,948,755 296 296 5 5 
Total A 4,878,900 4,878,900 12,948,755 12,948,755 296 296 5 5 
B. "Off-balance-sheet" loans 
B.1 Non-performing loans 
B.2 Problem loans 
B.3 Other impaired assets 
B.4 Other exposures 4,669,264 4,669,264 1,236,769 1,236,769 323 323 
Total B 4,669,264 4,669,264 1,236,769 1,236,769 323 323 
Total (A+B) 31/12/2007 9,548,164 9,548,164 14,185,524 14,185,524 619 619 5 5 0 0
Total (A+B) 31/12/2006 9,226,682 9,226,682 8,453,996 8,453,996 20,524 20,524 24 24 4 4

B.5 Significant risks 
thousands of euros

a) Amount 4,217,340 
b) Number 19 
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C. Securitisation and asset disposal transactions

C.1 Securitisation transactions

Qualitative information
The Bank organised two securitisation operations pursuant to Italian Law no. 130/1999, which were concluded
in 2004 and 2005. In organising these securitisation operations, the bank sought assistance from the leading
specialised rating Agencies: Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and FitchRatings.

The transactions were carried out via the special purpose vehicle DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione
S.r.l. (“DCC”), whose share capital is held entirely by Dexia Crediop S.p.A., which issued ABSs representing a
portfolio of securities issued by Local and District Authorities in Italy. The securitisation transactions are aimed
at the medium-to-long term refinancing of public-sector bonds held in the Parent Bank’s portfolio.

The two securitisation operations, of a traditional type, have the same financial structure and involve hedging
against the interest rate risks inherent in the separate assets and in the ABSs issued, by agreeing interest rate swaps
with Dexia Crediop.

The class A (Senior) ABSs benefit from an unconditional on-demand guarantee issued by Dexia Crediop S.p.A.;
owing to the effects of this guarantee and therefore of the obligation to repurchase the securities and reimburse
the entire ABS on occurrence of any credit or fiscal event, the assets sold were not derecognised by the bank, in
accordance with the instructions contained in IAS 39.

In order to minimise management and operational risks, the services of the corporate servicer, paying agent and
account bank were provided by entities outside the Group.

As regards the role of investor, the portfolio as at 31 December 2007 consists wholly of senior securities deriving
mainly from the securitisation of loans to entities belonging to the Public Administration or from funds deriving
from their real estate assets.

DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



C.1.1 Exposure from securitisation transactions according to quality of underlying assets

Quality of underlying assets/Exposures Exposure in loans
Senior Mezzanine Junior Senior

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure

A. With own underlying assets: 
a) impaired 
b) others 
B. With underlying assets of third parties: 2,379,781 2,379,781 
a) impaired 
b) others 2,379,781 2,379,781 

C.1.3 Exposures from main "third party" securitisation transactions according to type  
of securitised asset and type of exposure

Type of underlying assets/Exposures Exposure in loans
Senior Mezzanine Junior Senior

Book Writedowns/ Book Writedowns/ Book Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/
value writebacks value writebacks value writebacks exposure writebacks

A.1  
-  Residential mortgage loans 47,744 
A.2  
-  Non-residential mortgage loans 201,217 
A.3  
-  Leasing 10,473 
A.4 
- Other assets 2,114,546 
A.5 
- Other non-performing loans 5,801 
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thousands of euros
Guarantees given Credit lines

Mezzanine Junior Senior Mezzanine Junior
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure exposure

thousands of euros
Guarantees given Credit lines

Mezzanine Junior Senior Mezzanine Junior
Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/ Net Writedowns/

exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks exposure writebacks



C.2  Disposal transactions
C.2.1 Financial assets sold but not derecognized

Technical types/Portfolio
Financial assets held Financial assets designated Financial assets available 

for trading at fair value for sale
A B C A B C A B C 

A. Cash assets 
1. Debt securities 10,318,216 
2. Equity securities
3. Mutual fund shares 
4. Loan facilities 
5. Impaired assets 
B. Derivatives X X X X X X 
Total 31/12/2007 10,318,216 
Total 31/12/2006 0

Key:
A = financial assets sold and fully recognized (book value)
B = financial assets sold and partially recognized (book value)
C = financial assets sold and partially rrecognized (full value)
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C.1.6 Interests in special purpose vehicles

thousands of euros
Name Registered office % Interest
DCC-Dexia Crediop per la cartolarizzazione S.r.l. Rome 100



C.2.2 Financial liabilities for assets sold but not derecognized

thousands of euros
Liabilities/Assets portfolio Financial Financial Financial Financial Due Due Total

assets assets assets assets from from
held for designated at available held to banks customers
trading fair value for sale maturity

1. Due to customers 0 0 165,305 0 622,906 1,006 789,217
a) for assets fully recognized 165,305 622,906 1,006 789,217 
b) for assets partially recognized 

2. Due to banks 0 0 856,523 0 466,925 0 1,323,448
a) for assets fully recognized 856,523 466,925 1,323,448
b) for assets partially recognized 

Total 31/12/2007 0 0 1,021,828 0 1,089,831 1,006 2,112,665 
Total 31/12/2006 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Financial liabilities against assets sold but not derecognized relate to repurchase agreements, as shown in tables 1.1 "Due
to banks" and 1.2 "Due to customers".
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thousands of euros

Financial assets held to Due from banks Due from customers Total
maturity

A B C A B C A B C 31-12-2007 31-12-2006

1,095,030 749,755 12,163,001 0
X X X X X X X X X 
X X X X X X X X X 

X X X X X X X X X 
1,095,030 749,755 12,163,001 0

0 0



1.2 Market risks
1.2.1 - Interest rate risk - Regulatory trading portfolio

Qualitative information
A. General aspects 
The portfolio mainly consists of medium/long term derivatives with squared intermediation and short-term
derivatives associated with treasury management.

The following aspects have an effect on these aggregates:

• the development of medium/long term operations relating to the management of public customer debt via
the creation of derivative operations on the notional value of the customers’ exposure, in the form of loans
or securities, and the closing of interest rate risk using swaps in the market (squared intermediation);

• the sale of derivative products to financial and Corporate customers and the consequent closing of the interest
rate risk using swaps in the market (squared intermediation);

• the management of fixing the variable interest rate by using short-term derivatives (forward rate agreements and
overnight indexed swaps).

• These financial instruments are used to transform the interest rate risk linked to the Euribor overnight
rate parameter.

The derivatives used are interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and overnight indexed swaps, referring
to parameters that can be found on the information networks normally used at international level or which
can nevertheless be calculated objectively.

B. Interest rate risk management and measuring methods
Monitoring market risks is the responsibility of the Market and ALM Risks dept. within the  Risk Management
Office. The risk profiles are grouped together according to Business Line (BL) within Finance Management. 

The BL activities are subject to a series of fixed operational limits on the following risk indicators, measured
on a daily basis:
• Shift Sensitivity of fair value;
• Value at Risk (VaR).

More specifically, the shift-sensitivity of fair value quantifies the variation in the value of financial portfolios
following parallel and instant increases in the market interest-rate curve.
VaR, which is the main indicator of measured risk, is defined as the maximum potential loss caused by possible
adverse changes in market yields with reference to a confidence level of 99% and a holding period of 10 working
days.
Scenario analyses are created to measure the impact on the monitored portfolio values of a series of instant,
non parallel, shocks to market interest rates. The internal model is not used to calculate the equity requisites for
market risks.
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1. Regulatory trading book: distribution according to residual duration (re-pricing date) of financial assets
and liabilities and financial derivatives

thousands of euros
Type/ Residual term on demand Up to Between 3 Between 6 Between 1 Between  5 beyond unspecified

3 and 6 months and year and and 10 10 term
months months 1 year 5 years years years

1. Cash assets
1.1 Debt securities 

- with early redemption option 
- others 

1.2 Other assets 
2. Cash liabilities 
2.1  Debt securities in issue 

- with early redemption option 
- others 

2.2 Other liabilities 
3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 241,200 
+ short positions 5,000 236,200 

- Others 
+ long positions -   -   -   
+ short positions -   -   -   

3.2 Without underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 91,786 32,732 507 46,527 12,954 15,817 
+ short positions 94,420 32,732 507 45,996 12,156 14,510 

- Others 
+ long positions -   33,400,194 18,499,182 10,581,619 13,782,601 8,645,391 13,019,186 
+ short positions -   42,120,243 17,330,246 5,653,872 13,899,925 8,491,377 12,438,509 
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2. Regulatory trading book - internal models and other sensitivity analysis methods  
Transactions that are part of the trading book (within short-term ALM) are analysed on a daily basis using
the risk indicators described in the previous paragraph. During 2007 the following risk measurements were
noted:

(Eur) Shift
VAR 10 days Sensitivity 100bps

(absolute values)
31 Dec 07 400,800 40,147
minimum 77,622 40,147
average 1,931,167 15,904,115
maximum 4,293,964 32,487,367

The following charts show the performance of the indicators during the year:

As regards the stress-scenario analyses, which measure the variation of results for non parallel instantaneous variations
in interest rates, the following end-of-year results were obtained:

Scenarios 31 Dec 07 (€)
flattening by increase -166,779
flattening by decrease -210,025
steepening by increase 208,344
steepening by decrease 142,870
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2.2 - Interest rate risk – Banking book

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement methods of interest rate risk 
The activity which is most exposed to interest rate risks in the banking book is managed by the BL ALM
(Asset Liabilities Management) Unit, which hedges the Group’s on- and off-balance-sheet financial and
liquidity risks.  
The ALM Unit’s operational proposals on risk situations, within the operating limits assigned to it in terms
of portfolio fair-value shift-sensitivity, are discussed and approved by the Finance Committee.
Fair value interest rate hedging derivatives are used to protect fixed-rate medium- to long-term assets and
liabilities from adverse fluctuations in market interest rates.
Cash flow hedging instruments are mainly used in order to stabilize short-term cash flows indexed to variable
parameters (usually Euribor).    
As with the regulatory trading book, the market risk monitoring activities are the responsibility of the Market
and ALM Risks Unit.  
As regards the Business Lines exposed to interest rate risk and the measurements and checks on their
compliance with the operating limits, all the points mentioned in the  paragraph relating to the interest rate
risk for the regulatory trading book are applied here, too.

B. Fair value hedging activities
In order to manage the interest rate risk, fair value hedges are used so as to immunize the market value of the
underlying financial instruments. Microhedges on financial assets and liabilities or homogeneous aggregates of
the same relate to interest rate risks and are realised at market conditions. The type of derivatives used are
Interest Rate Swaps.

Initial tests are performed on each hedge regarding the applicability of hedge accounting as well as regular
tests on their effectiveness in accordance with the IAS/IFRS principles.   

C. Cash flow hedging
Cash flow hedging instruments are mainly used on the short-term portfolio in order to stabilize cash flows
indexed to variable parameters, protecting them against adverse variations in market rates during the
hedging periods.

The hedges are used on homogeneous aggregates of financial assets and liabilities and are realised at market
conditions. The types of derivatives used are typically Overnight Indexed Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements
and Interest Rate Swaps.

Initial tests are performed on each hedge regarding the applicability of hedge accounting as well as regular
tests on their effectiveness in accordance with the IAS/IFRS principles.   

DEXIA CREDIOP BANKING GROUP | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Quantitative information
1. Banking book: distribution according to residual duration (re-pricing date) of financial assets and
financial liabilities     

thousands of euros
Type/ Residual term on demand Up to Between 3 Between 6 Between 1 Between  5 beyond Unspecified

3 and 6 months and year and and 10 term
months months 1 year 5 years 10 years years

1. Cash assets 
1.1 Debt securities 

- with early redemption option 986,519 286,728 75,582 672,951 370,397 856,956 
- others 5,069,320 2,253,578 1,271,297 2,500,427 3,116,879 7,136,285 

1.2 Due from banks 155,771 3,815,025 2,733,407 15,116 3,318,360 91,085 1,245,856 
1.3 Due from customers

- current accounts 
- other loans 

- with early redemption option 
- others 9,162 1,190,989 3,835,587 628,600 617,124 3,785,615 5,603,183 147 

2. Cash liabilities 
2.1 Due to customers 

- current accounts 754,095 
- other payables

- with early redemption option 
- others 173,296 92,234 16,268 31,085 951,617 

2.2 Due to banks
- current accounts 100 
- other payables 208,761 10,484,139 2,329,657 0 2,226 404,323 1,089,657 

2.3 Debt securities 
- with early redemption option 638 362,475 401,933 625,301 165,503 227,593 43,936 
- others 44,310 5,580,575 2,037,440 5,337,988 5,855,146 646,181 30,087 

2.4 Other liabilities  
- with early redemption option 
- others 

3. Financial derivatives 
3.1 With underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 
+ short positions

- Others 
+ long positions 
+ short positions 

3.2 Without underlying security 
- Options 

+ long positions 44,883 
+ short positions 77 77 2,468 12,031 30,231 

- Others 
+ long positions 24,422,406 34,072,839 5,084,411 4,298,573 1,960,118 1,836,620 
+ short positions 27,873,810 28,154,750 4,038,937 8,381,964 5,476,173 8,598,051 
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2. Banking book - internal models and other methods for analysing sensitivity 
The following indicators were noted during 2007 in relation to short-term ALM activities:  

(Eur) Shift
VAR 10 days Sensitivity 100bps

(absolute values)
31 Dec 07 780,813 7,803,531 
minimum 258,330 29,972
average 1,510,092 11,833,107
maximum 3,673,095 31,627,025

The following charts show the performance of the indicators during the year:

Similarly, for the securities business exposed to interest rate risk:

(Eur) Shift
VAR 10 days Sensitivity 1bps

(absolute values)
31 Dec 07 120,149 9,334
minimum 20,641 2,718
average 68,791 7,578
maximum 163,842 17,342
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As regards the stress-scenario analyses, which measure the variation of results for non-parallel instantaneous
changes in interest rates, the following end-of-year results are shown for the securities business exposed to
interest rate risk and the short-term ALM:

Scenarios (in euros) SECURITIES SHORT-TERM ALM
steepening by increase -333,629 -2,482,026
steepening by decrease 1,476,919 9,824,102
flattening by increase -1,455,700 -9,701,166
flattening by decrease 335,921 2,490,279

As regards medium-to-long term ALM, the interest rate risk is monitored using sensitivity measurements of
the portfolio value assuming there were an instant increase in interest rates of 100 bps. The following exposure
values (in millions of euro) were noted in 2007  

a) end of year: -20.6; 
b) average: -9.5;
c) minimum: -22.2;
d) maximum: +1.0.

The average effect of a variation +/- 100 bps on interest and net banking income for the year was calculated
to be 7.3 million.

1.2.3 - Price risk - regulatory trading book

Qualitative information

The Group does not have any exposure to price risks for equity securities, mutual fund shares or for derivative
contracts on mutual fund shares, equity securities, stock indices, precious metals (other than gold), goods,
or other assets classified in the "regulatory trading book".
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1.2.4 Price risk - banking book

Qualitative information

This portfolio includes equity securities classifes among the assets available for sale.  

A. General aspects, price risk management and measuring methods
From among the aforesaid unlisted equity investments, the one relating to the Istituto per il Credito Sportivo is
particularly noteworthy. The fair value was measured on the basis of various assessment techniques which
substantially led to values in line with the company's own fraction of net equity.

B. Hedge transactions to cover price risk
Considering the nature of the equity investments and the book value calculated on the basis of fair value no
price-risk hedging operations have been implemented.

Quantitative information
1. Banking book: exposure held in equity securities and mutual fund shares

thousands of euros
Items Book value 

Listed Unlisted
A.  Equity securities 142,013 
A.1 Shares 
A.2 Innovative equity instruments 
A.3 Other equity securities 142,013 
B.  Mutual fund shares 1,362 
B.1 Italian registered 1,362 

-  open harmonised
-  open non-harmonised 
-  closed 606 
-  reserved 
-  speculative 756 

B.2 Of other EU States 
-  harmonised  
-  open non-harmonised
-  closed non-harmonised 

B.2 Of non EU States 
-  open 
-  closed 

Total 143,375 
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1.2.5 Exchange rate risk

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, exchange risk management and measuring methods
The Group holds financial assets and issues bonds in non-euro currencies with the aim of exploiting favourable
market opportunities, taking into account the cost of exchange rate risks.

B. Hedge transactions to cover exchange risk
Financial assets and liabilities in currencies other than the euro are systematically hedged at the origin against
exchange rate risks using derivative products (currency and interest rate swaps) in relation to the fair value
hedge. The measuring and control activities of risks and hedge efficiency are the same as those described for
interest rate risks.

Quantitative information
1. Distribution according to currency of assets, liabilities and derivatives

thousands of euros
Items Valute

US Dollars Sterling Yen Swiss Other
francs currencies

A. Financial assets
A.1 Debt securities 731,869 177,269 
A.2 Equity securities 
A.3 Due from banks 9 713 547 24,192 16 
A.4 Due from customers 
A.5 Other financial assets 
B. Other assets 
C. Financial liabilities 
C.1 Due to banks 224,504 48,542 24,174 -   
C.2 Due to customers 30,758 
C.3 Debt securities 93,480 15,229 15,022 
C.4 Other liabilities
D. Financial derivatives
- Options 

+ long positions 
+ short positions 

- Others 
+ long positions 352,078 93,979 181,664 15,022 
+ short positions 765,333 177,269 181,664 

Total assets 1,083,956 177,982 94,526 205,856 15,038 
Total liabilities 1,083,317 177,269 94,529 205,838 15,022 
Differences (+/-) 639 713 (3) 18 16
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1.2.6 - Financial derivative instruments

A. Financial derivatives
A.1 Regulatory trading book: notional values at end of period and averages

thousands of euros
Type of transaction/ Debt securities and Equity securities Exchange rates Other Total Total
Underlying instrument interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
1. Forward rate agreements
2. Interest rate swaps 81,436,936 81,436,936 62,059,203 
3. Domestic currency swaps
4. Currency  i.r.s. 567,670 567,670 546,951 
5. Basis swaps 17,779,329 17,779,329 12,477,741 
6. Stock index swaps
7. Real index swaps
8. Futures
9. Cap options 143,413 143,413 167,625 

- purchased 55,275 
- issued 88,138 

10. Floor options 261,893 261,893 261,330 
- purchased 114,460 
- issued 147,433 

11. Other options 396,494 116,448 512,942 645,715 
- purchased 58,224 

- plain vanilla 58,224 
- exotic

- issued 396,494 58,224 
- plain vanilla 396,494 58,224 
- exotic

12. Forward contracts 270 270 
- purchases 135 
- sales 135 
-currency against currency

13. Other derivative contracts 292,800 46,144 338,944 
Total 100,018,335 409,248 567,670 46,144 101,041,397 76,158,565 
Averages 58,970,512 397,503 554,236 46,144 59,968,395 45,989,879
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A.2 Banking book: notional values at end of period and averages
A.2.1 For hedging

thousands of euros
Type of derivative/ Debt securities and Equity securities Exchange rates Other Total Total
Underlying instrument interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
1. Forward rate agreements 3,213,500 3,213,500 
2. Interest rate swaps 59,079,243 59,079,243 79,720,352 
3. Domestic currency swaps
4. Currency  i.r.s. 1,264,193 1,264,193 1,269,496 
5. Basis swaps 7,922,152 7,922,152 16,789,958 
6. Stock index swaps
7. Real index swaps
8. Futures
9. Cap options 22,442 22,442 22,519 

- purchased 22,442 
- issued

10. Floor options 22,442 22,442 22,519 
- purchased
- issued 22,442 

11. Other options 298,773 298,773 298,773 
- purchased 298,773 

- plain vanilla 298,773 
- exotic

- issued
- plain vanilla
- exotic

12. Forward contracts 179,196 179,196 214,175 
- purchases 179,196 
- sales
-currency against currency

13. Other derivative contracts 11,044,741 5,400 117,853 11,167,994 
Total 70,259,779 11,343,514 1,448,789 117,853 83,169,935 98,337,792 
Averages 42,954,512 10,597,076 1,138,893 117,853 54,808,334 44,354,885
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A.3 Financial derivatives: purchase and sale of underlying assets
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/ Debt securities and Equity securities Exchange rates Other Total Total
Underlying instrument interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables 31/12/2007 31/12/2006

Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted Listed Unlisted
A. Regulatory trading

book: 82,239,006 409,248 567,670 46,144 83,262,068 63,680,822 
1. Transactions with

equity swaps 281,764 567,670 849,434 866,444 
- purchases 281,629 283,835 565,464 591,469 
- sales 135 283,835 283,970 274,975 
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without
equity swaps 81,957,242 409,248 46,144 82,412,634 62,814,378 

- purchases 44,896,951 204,624 23,072 45,124,647 32,477,339 
- sales 37,060,291 204,624 23,072 37,287,987 30,337,039 
- currency against currency

B. Banking book: 62,337,626 11,343,514 1,448,790 117,853 75,247,783 81,547,833 
B.1 For hedging 62,337,626 11,343,514 1,448,790 117,853 75,247,783 81,547,833 
1. Transactions with

equity swaps 1,443,390 1,443,390 1,269,496 
- purchases 448,143 448,143 308,656 
- sales 995,247 995,247 960,840 
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without
equity swaps 62,337,626 11,343,514 5,400 117,853 73,804,393 80,278,337 
- purchases 11,305,000 373,420 5,400 117,853 11,801,673 23,442,448 
- sales 51,032,626 10,970,094 62,002,720 56,835,889 
-currency against currency

B.2 Other derivatives
1. Transactions with equity swaps

- purchases
- sales
- currency against currency

2. Transactions without equity swaps
- purchases
- sales
- currency against currency
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A.4 "Over the counter" financial derivatives: positive fair value - counterparty risk
thousands of euros

Counterpart/Underlying Debt securities Equity securities Exchange rates Other Other
instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables underlying assets

Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Compens. Future
gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure exposure

A. Regulatory trading 
book:

A.1 Governments and 
Central banks 317,683 155,577 

A.2 Public bodies 151,483 33,410 
A.3 Banks 416,482 195,402 31,662 17,610 11,651 8,712 9,656 115 
A.4 Financial

companies 12,905 2,970 
A.5 Insurance companies 
A.6 Non-financial 

companies 617 811 
A.7 Other subjects
Total A 31/12/2007 899,170 388,170 31,662 17,610 11,651 8,712 9,656 115 
Total 31/12/2006 1,217,270 168,849 66,815 12,209 5,957 15,758 0 0 

B. Banking book:
B.1 Governments and 

Central Banks 
B.2 Public bodies
B.3 Banks 765,032 171,941 499,783 271,260 115,600 50,047 13,829 306 
B.4 Financial

companies 14,751 4,521 62,019 37,441 3,256 1,350 34,919 283 
B.5 Insurance companies 
B.6 Non-financial 

companies 
B.7 Other subjects 
Total B 31/12/2007 779,783 176,462 561,802 308,701 118,856 51,397 48,748 589 
Total 31/12/2006 1,088,962 98,553 0 0 66,020 8,125 0 0 
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A.5 "Over the counter" financial derivatives: negative fair value – financial risk
thousands of euros

Counterpart/Underlying Debt securities Equity securities Exchange rates Other Other
instrument and interest rates and stock indices and gold valuables underlying assets

Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Uncomp. Comp. Future Compens. Future
gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure gross gross exposure exposure

A. Regulatory trading 
book: 

A.1 Governments and 
Central banks 

A.2 Public bodies 952 13,522 118 
A.3 Banks 853,007 391,229 21,387 14,076 11,648 8,712 9,656 115 4,182 94,841 
A.4 Financial

companies 40,515 14,657 7,955 2,088 
A.5 Insurance

companies 2,194 1,682 
A.6 Non-financial 

companies 4,688 1,623 
A.7 Other subjects 217 324 
Total A 31/12/2007 899,379 421,355 31,654 17,846 11,648 8,712 9,656 115 4,182 94,841 
Total 31/12/2006 1,179,124 557,186 66,921 12,929 5,962 15,758 0 0 0 0
B. Banking book:
B.1 Governments and 

Central banks
B.2 Public bodies
B.3 Banks 737,310 163,686 384,902 550,578 69,028 23,852 
B.4 Financial

companies 71,092 12,730 13,829 59,565 
B.5 Insurance

companies
B.6 Non-financial 

companies
B.7 Other subjects
Total B 31/12/2007 808,402 176,416 398,731 610,143 69,028 23,852 
Total 31/12/2006 1,834,837 350,234 0 0 62,628 64,787 

A.6 Residual term of "over the counter" financial derivatives: notional values
thousands of euros

Underlying instrument/ Residual term Up to 1 year Between 1 year More than Total
and 5 years 5 years

A. Regulatory trading book 24,654,695 33,228,962 43,835,740 101,719,397
A.1 Fin. derivatives on debt securities and interest rates 24,240,467 32,440,019 43,337,849 100,018,335 
A.2 Fin. derivatives on equity securities and stock indices 34,000 205,348 169,900 409,248 
A.3 Fin. derivatives on exchange rates and gold 380,230 17,449 169,991 567,670 
A.4 Fin. derivatives on other valuables 46,144 46,144 
B. Banking book 37,864,817 24,548,164 20,756,954 83,169,935 
B.1 Fin. derivatives on debt securities and interest rates 36,280,014 15,681,687 18,298,078 70,259,779 
B.2 Fin. derivatives on equity securities and stock indices 1,302,292 8,156,493 1,884,729 11,343,514 
B.3 Fin. derivatives on exchange rates and gold 282,511 592,131 574,147 1,448,789 
B.4 Fin. derivatives on other valuables 117,853 117,853 
Total 31/12/2007 62,519,514 57,257,124 64,434,694 184,211,332 
Total 31/12/2006 81,265,671 36,496,774 56,733,913 174,496,358
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B. Credit derivatives
B.1 Credit derivatives: notional values at end of period and averages

thousands of euros
Type of transaction Regulatory trading book Other transactions

on a single on several on a single on several
subject subjects (basket) subject subjects (basket)

notional value notional value notional value notional value

1. Protection purchases 802,877 49,749 
1.1 With equity swap 4,755 
Credit linked notes 4,755 
1.2 Without equity swap 802,877 44,994 
Credit linked notes 44,994 
Credit default swap 802,877 
Total 31/12/2007 802,877 49,749 
Total 31/12/2006 787,877 70,009 
Averages 795,562 49,749 
2. Protection sales 802,877 49,749 
2.1 With equity swap 4,755 
Credit default swap 4,755 
2.2 Without equity swap 44,994 
Credit default swap 802,877 44,994 
Total 31/12/2007 802,877 49,749 
Total 31/12/2006 787,877 70,009 
Averages 795,562 49,749 
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B.2 Credit derivatives: positive fair value - counterparty risk
thousands of euros

Type of transaction/Amount notional positive future
value fair value exposure

A. REGULATORY TRADING BOOK 
A.1 Protection purchases with counterparties: 
1. Governments and Central banks 
2. Other public bodies 
3. Banks 
4. Financial companies 
5. Insurance companies 
6. Non-financial companies 
7. Other subjects 
A.2 Protection sales with counterparties: 802,877 11,310 587 
1. Governments and Central banks 
2. Other public bodies 802,877 11,310 587 
3. Banks 
4. Financial companies 
5. Insurance companies 
6. Non-financial companies 
7. Other subjects 
B. BANKING BOOK 
B.1 Protection purchases with counterparties: 
1. Governments and Central banks 
2. Other public bodies 
3. Banks 
4. Financial companies 
5. Insurance companies 
6. Non-financial companies 
7. Other subjects 
B.2 Protection sales with counterparties: 32,993 3,072 2,539
1. Governments and Central banks 
2. Other public bodies 
3. Banks 15,493 2,501 1,239 
4. Financial companies 17,500 571 1,300 
5. Insurance companies 
6. Non-financial companies 
7. Other subjects 
Total 31.12.07 835,870 14,382 3,126 
Total 31.12.06 787,877 393 78,788  
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B.4 Residual term of derivative contracts on loans: notional values
thousands of euros

Underlying instrument/ Residual term Up to 1 year Between 1 year More than Total
and 5 years 5 years

A. Regulatory trading book 1,605,754 1,605,754
A.1 Credit derivatives with subordinated" reference obligation
A.2 Credit derivatives with "non-subordinated" reference obligation 1,605,754
B. Banking book 10,000 89,498 99,498
B.1 Credit derivatives with "subordinated" reference obligation
B.2 Credit derivatives with ""non-subordinated" reference obligation 10,000 89,498 0 99,498
Total 31/12/2007 10,000 89,498 1,605,754 1,705,252
Total 31/12/2006 39,400 100,618 1,575,754 1,715,772

1.3 - Liquidity risk

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measurement of liquidity risk
The Bank's lending operations are financed through bond issues on the home and international markets,
collecting funds on the interbanking market and with refinancing transactions with the European Central
Bank.

The Market and ALM Risks Department controls the liquidity risk using the following indicators:
a) liquidity gap (difference between assets and liabilities);
b) liquidity reserves (value of cashable instruments).

Compliance with the limits (liquidity ratios calculated as a ratio between liquidity reserves and the gap)
is monitored as regards short-term maturities (up to one week) and also mid- to long-term maturities (more
than one week).
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1. Time distribution of financial assets and liabilities according to residual contractual term - Currency: Euro

thousands of euros
Item/Time on From more From more From more From more Between Between Between More than Unspecified
bracket demand than 1 than 7 than 15 than 1 3 and 6 6 month 1 year 5 years

day to days to days to month to months and and 
7 days 15 days 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years

Cash assets
A.1 Government securities 52,703 3,392,253 X 
A.2 Listed debt securities 102,525 13,451 91,532 1,757,682 2,651,271 X 
A.3 Other debt securities 885 4,272 9,927 124,253 77,545 246,939 466,489 2,989,778 12,615,414 X 
A.4 Mutual fund shares 1,361 X 
Non-performing securities X X X X X X X X X 
Outstanding securities X X X X X X X X X 
A.5 Loans

- banks 166,833 258,197 244,943 118,361 2,719,300 1,729,339 32,202 4,844,227 1,261,218 X 
- customers 1,189,404 146,047 7,826 12,709 18,361 539,236 627,708 4,006,374 9,122,595 X 

Non-performing loans X X X X X X X X X 147 
Outstanding loans X X X X X X X X X 
Cash liabilities 
B.1 Deposits X 

- banks 110,065 3,981,302 181,564 1,013,502 2,661,481 75,261 445,628 X 
- customers 754,095 X 

B.2 Debt securities 47,110 7,747 0 0 127,981 210,699 1,691,887 14,630,290 4,643,392 X 
B.3 Other liabilities 84,646 10,424,419 530,967 733,628 1,389,745 163,928 309,708 1,749,360 3,118,061 
Off balance sheet transactions
C.1 Financial derivatives 

with equity swap
- long positions 10,000 135 27,244 212,866 14,690 242,574 606,442 625,709 X 
- short positions 10,000 135 194,192 200,250 490,735 118,429 X 

C.2 Deposits and loans 
to be received

- long positions 23,038 9,035 X 
- short positions 9,035 3,526 1,511 18,001 X 

C.3 Irrevocable commitments 
to disburse funds

- long positions 5,000 3,757,195 1,631,241 X 
- short positions 4,540,810 5,000 44,749 802,877 X 
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2. Distribution of financial liabilities by sector 
thousands of euros

Exposure/Counterparts Governments Other public Financial Insurance Non financial Other
and bodies companies companies companies subjects

Central banks
1. Amounts due to customers 1,540,525 427,683 838,596 1,008 
2. Securities in issue 4,147 1,377,458 121,884 19,855,617 
3. Financial liabilities for trading 1,070 52,485 2,194 4,689 897,451 
4. Financial liabilities at fair value
Total 31/12/2007 0 1,545,742 1,857,626 124,078 843,285 20,754,076 
Total 31/12/2006 77 989,879 2,458,375 871,066 854,190 20,250,075 

3. Geographical distribution of financial liabilities
thousands of euros

Exposure/Counterparts Italy Other America Asia Rest of
European countries the world

1. Amounts due to customers 2,526,014 281,798 
2. Amounts due to banks 16,254,985 10,450,989 
3. Securities in issue 15,604,326 4,581,687 1,173,093 
4. Financial liabilities for trading 273,317 680,897 3,095 580 
5. Financial liabilities at fair value
Total 31/12/2007 34,658,642 15,995,371 1,176,188 580 0   
Total 31/12/2006 28,792,704 12,527,790 1,915,311 0 8,523 
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SECTION 4 - Operational risks

Qualitative information
A. General aspects, management and measuring methods of operational risk 
Operational risk is  “the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems,
or from external events.” This definition includes legal risk, but not strategic risk (i.e. the risk of not
achieving the desired performance owing to assessment errors by the management) or reputational risk
(i.e. the risk of losing revenues owing to a loss of public confidence in the broker).

The method used by the Group for measuring operational risk is the Standardized Approach (SA).

As regards the qualitative method of assessing operational risks, an Operational Risks Unit has been created
within the Risk Management Office, and has responsibility for:
• laying down rules for the management and monitoring of operational risks;
• defining and adopting methods for measuring risks;
• defining, adopting and producing the reporting system on risk trends;

As regards management performance assessments, a number of Operational Risk Managers (ORM) have
been chosen within each of the Parent Bank’s structures, with the task of noting every operational risk event
and subsequently filing the information in the Group’s loss-database.

The Group has no significant lawsuits pending.

Quantitative information

The main causes of operational risk events are shown below in percentage terms:

CATEGORY OF EVENT %
internal fraud 0%
external fraud 0%
relationships with staff and safety in the workplace 0%
customers, products and business practice 5%
damage to or loss of tangible assets 0%
system failure or breakdown 0%
process execution, delivery and management 95%
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PART F - COMMENTS ON THE CAPITAL

A. Qualitative information
The company's capital consists of the share capital, reserves from profits in previous periods, valuation reserves
on financial assets available for sale and cash flow hedges and reserves as a result of first adoption of the
IAS/IFRS principles. Except for the part of the capital invested in equity interests and properties and the part
deriving from reserves consisting of the fair value of assets available for sale and cash flow hedges, the remainder
of the capital is mainly invested in fixed-rate mid- to long-term financial assets.

SECTION 2 - Capital and minimium capital ratios

2.2 Regulatory Banking Capital
thousands of euros

B. Quantitative information Total Total
31/12/2007 31/12/2006

A. Tier 1 capital before application of prudential filters 965,672 903,888 
B. Tier 1 capital prudential filters: (35,700) 0   

B.1 - positive IAS/IFRS prudential filters (+)
B.2 - negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-) (35,700)

C. Tier 1 capital inclusive of elements to be deducted (A+B): 929,972 903,888 
D. Elements to be deducted from tier 1 capital 12,329 
E. Total  Tier 1 capital (C-D) 917,643 903,888 
F. Tier 2 capital before application of prudential filters 400,000 
G. Tier 2 capital prudential filters 266 3,675 

G.1 - positive IAS/IFRS prudential filters (+) 266 3,675 
G.2 - negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-)

H. Tier 2 capital inclusive of elements to be deducted (F+G) 400,266 3,675 
I. Elements to be deducted from tier 2 capital  12,329 
L. Total Tier 2 capital (H-I) 387,937 3,675 
M. Elements to be deducted from total tier 1 and tier 2 capital   0   24,658 
N. Regulatory capital (E+L-M)   1,305,580 882,905 
O. Tier 3 capital   
P. Regulatory capital including Tier 3 (N+O) 1,305,580 882,905 
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2.3 Capital adequacy
thousands of euros

B. Quantitative information Unweighted amounts Weighted amounts/requirements
Categories/Amounts 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 31/12/2007 31/12/2006
A. RISK ASSETS
A.1 CREDIT RISK
STANDARD METHODOLOGY
CASH ASSETS
1. Exposure (other than capital securities and other  

subordinate assets) towards (or guaranteed by): 46,397,168 35,006,755 9,304,656 5,061,751 
1.1 Governments and Central banks 11,665,975 12,540,141 0 0
1.2 Public bodies 17,546,911 17,303,545 3,509,382 3,460,709 
1.3 Banks 14,236,260 4,452,533 2,847,252 890,507 
1.4 Other subjects (other than mortgage loans  

on residential and non-residential real estate) 2,948,022 710,536 2,948,022 710,535 
2. Mortgage loans on residential real estate 923,922 424,995 461,961 212,498 
3. Mortgage loans on non-residential real estate
4. Shares, equity investments and subordinated assets
5. Other cash assets 2,887,141 1,059,114 165,000 75,894 
OFF BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
1. Guarantees and commitments towards (or guaranteed by): 6,072,562 7,702,649 992,930 967,098 

1.1 Governments and Central banks 2,700,487 3,838,883 0 0
1.2 Public bodies 1,180,628 873,881 236,126 174,776 
1.3 Banks 1,716,421 2,644,838 343,284 528,968 
1.4 Other subjects 475,026 345,047 413,520 263,354 

2. Derivative contracts with (or guaranteed by): 2,805,463 1,572,956 634,363 355,115 
2.1 Governments and Central banks
2.2 Public bodies
2.3 Banks 2,561,228 1,437,877 512,246 287,575 
2.4 Other subjects 244,235 135,079 122,117 67,540 

B. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
B.1 CREDIT RISK 924,713 533,788 
B.2 MARKET RISKS 45,117 38,919 
1. STANDARD METHODOLOGY X X 

of which:
+ risk on debt security positions X X 22,047 21,591 
+ risk on capital security positions X X 
+ exchange rate risk X X 
+ other risks X X 23,070 17,328 

2. INTERNAL MODELS X X 
of which:
+ risk on debt security positions X X 
+ risk on capital security positions X X 
+ exchange rate risk X X 

B.3 OTHER PRUDENTIAL REQUIREMENTS X X 
B.4 TOTAL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS (B1+B2+B3) X X 969,830 572,707 
C. RISK ASSETS AND REGULATORY RATIOS X X 
C.1 Risk-weighted assets X X 12,122,882 7,158,841 
C.2 Tier 1 capital/ Risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 capital ratio) X X 7.57% 12.63%
C.3 Regulatory capital/ Risk-weighted assets (Total capital ratio) X X 10.77% 12.33%
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PART H – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

1. Information on directors’ and managers’ remuneration
The information referred to in paragraph 16 of IAS 24 regarding key management personnel is shown below:

thousands of euros

Short term benefits 4,828 

Post-employment benefits  1,076 

Other long term benefits -   

Severance indemnity 365 

Payment in shares -   

Total 6,269 

2. Information on transactions with related parties
The Company is the Parent bank of the Gruppo Bancario Dexia Crediop S.p.A. which, in addition to Dexia
Crediop S.p.A., includes the following subsidiaries:

1. Crediop Overseas Bank ltd, with a 100% shareholding;
2. DCC - Dexia Crediop per la Cartolarizzazione S.r.l., with a 100% shareholding;
3. D.C.I. - Dexia Crediop Ireland with a 100% shareholding.

The company is controlled (70% of the share capital) by Dexia Crédit Local SA with registered offices in -
Tour Dexia La Défense 2               1, Passerelle des Reflets - TSA 12203 F-92919 La Défense Cedex - Paris.
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The transactions made with these companies during the period were:

2.1 Transactions with the parent company
thousands of euros

Assets and Liabilities
Assets 
- Receivables for loans granted 4,841,440 
- Own securities 3,164,018 
- Hedging derivatives 197,465 
- Financial assets held for trading 22,144 
- Other assets 178

Total 8,225,244
Liabilities 
- Deposits  600,000 
- Hedging derivatives 229,061 
- Financial liabilities held for trading 72,849 
- Loans received 1,020,041 
- Subordinated debts 400,222 
- Other liabilities 1,431 

Total 2,323,603 

thousands of euros
Other transactions 
Guarantees given 57,571 
Guarantees received 5,483,933 

thousands of euros
Income and charges
Income 
- Interest and similar income 628,726 
- Trading derivative differentials 131,106 
- Fee and commission income 241 
Total 760,073 
Charges 
- Interest and similar charges 404,939 
- Trading derivative differentials 134,896 
- Fee and commission expense 189 
- Administrative expenses 1,349
Total 541,373 
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